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On behalf of the Board, | would like to present the annual report
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

2020 has been an extraordinary year. The outbreak of the novel
coronavirus disease (the “pandemic”) has severely impacted the
global economy, the food and beverage market, and business
operations. In the first quarter of 2020, a first negative year-over-year
growth in GDP since the 1990s was recorded in the PRC. The
revenue in the food and beverage industry in the PRC decreased by
32.8% in the first half of 2020, ending a years-long growth trend. In
the face of such unprecedented challenges, we adhered to the
operating philosophy of “Operating altruistically, Devoting relentless
efforts, and Conveying happiness”. While prioritizing the security of
our employees and customers’ safety and health, we made use of
the new consumption mode under the norms of the pandemic to
capture market opportunities and satisfy consumers’ pursuit of a
healthy, environmentally-friendly and high quality life. By
demonstrating the unlimited motivation, execution ability and
creativity of the Company and its employees, the Company was able
to achieve sustainable development.

ADAPTING TO THE NEW NORM IN THE
CATERING INDUSTRY

In 2020, in response to the new lifestyle of consuming at home
and reducing social gatherings, as well as consumers’ growing
concern for food safety and health, the Group endeavored to
develop four profitable models (dine-in consumption, public
domain platform takeaway, channelized product retail, private
domain platform takeaway and social marketing) to facilitate the
retail and e-commerce of food products through online and offline
linkages. We accelerated the development of our “One store,
Three shops” strategy in terms of product design, operational
support and marketing strategy. We developed diversified
e-commerce products and platforms to cater to different
consumer groups and scenarios with innovative products and
services to enhance user experience and satisfy consumers’
multifaceted needs for food and beverage, takeaway and retail.
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Chairman's Statement
FEHE

While maintaining the traditional craftsmanship of Cantonese
cuisine, we kept abreast of market trend and kept introducing
new flavors. In 2020, we upgraded and introduced new flavors,
living up to our brand reputation of “Quality Products, Safety
Assurance, Health Cultivation, Environmental Protection”.

NURTURING HIGHLY EFFECTIVE TALENTS

The Group actively optimizes the current employment model and
strives to cultivate highly effective talents in Tang Palace-style. In
2020, we established an all-rounded talent training system to
encourage employees to learn independently through the online
mobile learning platform, obtain corresponding skill certifications,
and become multi-skilled and compound talents to enhance their
competitiveness and master the path of their career development
independently.

The “Tang Palace Gold Medal Service Provider” award was
introduced in 2020. It gave staff positivity and motivation, enabling
them to win customer satisfaction and gain satisfaction and a
sense of accomplishment at work through excellent and touching
service.

With the time-honoured school-enterprise cooperation and the
Management Trainee (MT) Programme, we have been able to
identify and cultivate high-calibre catering talents who have
potential, motivation, enthusiasm and team spirit. In addition, we
have arranged 1,892 sessions/lectures for our training programme
with different levels and themes, with a total of 2,330 training
hours and around 69,000 participants, so that our employees can
maintain their enthusiasm for learning and an ambience of sharing
among them,
philosophy, theoretical knowledge, professional skills and spiritual

showing sustained improvement in business

cultivation, with a view to nurturing an outstanding catering team.
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In addition, we provide a platform for our employees to
demonstrate their gifted creativity. Serving as the spokespersons
of Tang Palace, hosting live stream events and participating in
various creative contests, talent competitions and tasting events,
they gained more enjoyment and meaning out of their jobs. This
helps not only to motivate our employees and strengthen their
sense of belonging, but also builds a talent pool for the Group in
the long run, which serves as a support for future store expansion
and an enhancement of competitiveness.

FULFILLING SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As a member of the community, we believe that caterers convey
happiness through delicacy and put social responsibility into
practice. When the Group announced the suspension of business
in February 2020 due to the pandemic, we immediately launched
three major “Love Initiatives”: the establishment of the Medical
Assistance Fund to support Tang Palace families in need; the
establishment of the Most Beautiful Volunteer and Best Volunteer
Team awards to encourage staff to volunteer and support
community and medical groups during the pandemic; and the
establishment of the Chairman’s Scholarship to encourage staff to
actively learn and acquire more knowledge and skills. In addition,
we have developed a tailor-made “Tang Palace Norms for Living
Guidelines in Special Period”, which combines elements of health,
learning and recreation for our staff, so that they can face
challenges with a positive attitude.
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Chairman's Statement
FEHE

During the period when dine-in services were suspended, we
participated in community volunteer services, offered meals to
medical staff, and provided safe products and services for
customers and colleagues who had difficulty in going outside.
Following the Group’s RMB1 million donation to the Hubei
Provincial Charity Association for medical aid, our staff from
various outlets from different districts initiated a further donation of
RMB250,000 to local charities for medical aid for the pandemic.
After the resumption of our dine-in business, we were selected as
the “Guaranteed Catering Unit for Pandemic Prevention and
Control” and became a safe and secure canteen for the public,
and were recognized as an “Outstanding Corporate Social
Responsibility Enterprise”. At the same time, we continued to
participate in various public welfare and environmental protection
projects, becoming a advocator for love and a practitioner of
happiness. For example, we have donated RMB120,000 for the
reconstruction of flood-stricken areas, donated Tang Palace
mooncakes to charitable organizations, donated to the Chi Heng
Foundation for making calendars, and participated in the recycling
of printed menus, the recycling of mooncake boxes and Earth
Hour, etc.

APPROACHING TANG PALACE’S 30TH
ANNIVERSARY

In 2021, Tang Palace is approaching its 30th anniversary.
Although the global economy is not expected to fully recover from
the pandemic and there are still many uncertainties in the catering
industry, in the coming year, we will continue to follow our
mission of “With Glorious Tang Culture as Foundation, Modern
Management as Core, Establishing Paradigm of a Blessed
Catering, Fostering a Centennial International Brand”, practice our
operating philosophy of “Altruistic Operation, Relentless Efforts
and Conveying Happiness”, and continue to optimize our internal
management in the following three main areas: business growth,
cost reduction and efficiency enhancement. We will continue to
optimize our internal management so that the Company can grow
sustainably and contribute to the happiness of our employees,
customers, shareholders and society.
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APPRECIATION

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express
my sincere gratitude to the management and staff of the Group
for their contribution during the year. | hope to extend my special
thanks to all staff for their perseverance and dedication in fighting
the pandemic. | would also like to express my sincere
appreciation to all of our supportive suppliers, business partners
and government authorities as well as our customers and
shareholders for their trust.

As Tang Palace reaches its 30th anniversary, may we continue to
move forward together to fulfill our dreams and walk along with
lovel
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEBIWRIN

INDUSTRY REVIEW

As a result of the global outbreak of novel coronavirus disease
(the “pandemic”) in 2020, work and industry in Mainland China
ground to a halt from January to March in response to the efforts
of the government to prevent and control the virus, which
significantly affected business activities and resulted in the first
negative year-over-year growth in GDP since the 1990s. The
consumer market was severely impacted, and the food and
beverage industry, in particular, faced an unprecedented
challenges. The revenue in the food and beverage industry in the
PRC decreased by 32.8% in the first half of 2020, ending a
years-long growth trend. With the gradual resumption of work in
Mainland China in April, business exchanges resumed gradually
among industries. However, due to the volatility of the global
outbreak of the pandemic, consumer sentiment has yet to fully
recover. Despite the fact that the year-on-year decline in revenue
of the food and beverage industry in 2020 decreased as the
consumer market became more active, there was still a 16.6%
decline. Moreover, with the far-reaching impact of the change in
consumption patterns due to the pandemic, food and beverage
operators are facing significant and long-term operational
challenges under new circumstances.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s overall business in 2020 was directly affected by the
pandemic, with most of its mainland operations suspended from
late January to March. Meanwhile, in Hong Kong, epidemic
prevention measures such as social distancing rules, dine-in
seating capacity limit and shortening of dine-in hours led to a
weak consumer sentiment. As at 31 December 2020, the overall
revenue of the Group decreased to RMB1,105.1 million as
compared with that in 2019 (2019: RMB1,495.1 million). In the
face of such unprecedented challenges, the Group not only took
prudent measures to swiftly respond to different operating
environments, adhered to its altruistic management philosophy of
strictly implementing protection measures to ensure the safety of
its employees and customers, but also continuously improved
| operational and management efficiency at the same time. As a
result, the Group was able to resume normal operations quickly
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Management Discussion and Analysis

when the pandemic in mainland China slowed down and the
government’s control measures were relaxed, and with various
strategies to expand revenue sources, the Group’s revenue grew
significantly in the second half of 2020 as compared to that in the
first half.

In view of the volatility of the global pandemic and the sluggish
economy, the Group’s core business strategy for the year was to
raise revenue, reduce costs, enhance personnel training and
corporate culture inheriting while taking strict precautions against
the virus. As the pandemic continued, the entire consumer market
was changing at an accelerated pace. Consumers were gradually
forming a new normal lifestyle of working from home and reducing
social gatherings, which had a huge impact on the food and
beverage industry, where dine-in services is a main part of the
business. Although work in mainland China has generally been
resumed since April, and the social economy has gradually
returned to normal operations, the consumption pattern has
already undergone structural changes. The Group believes that in
this particular environment, it is extremely important to maintain
customer interaction and strengthen customer loyalty. Therefore,
during the vyear, the Group focused on improving customer
satisfaction in both dine-in and takeaway services or other
consumption scenarios, with every marketing decision aimed at
improving the customer experience. In respect of dine-in
business, each region created a thematic environment and
atmosphere in advance of all festivals and holidays, and
proactively planned promotional activities in a systematic and
dedicated manner in order to impress customers. In view of the
current market situation, the Group shifted its focus from hosting
large-scale banquets to servicing smaller parties through providing
impressive services to tackle the challenges. The Group’s
e-membership system, which was launched earlier, also enabled
each region to proactively provide loyal customers with
promotional offers and other information during this extraordinary
period of time. Currently, the Group has more than 830,000
members, which allows each region to set up exclusive offers for
members in each marketing plan and increase the repeat
purchase rate of customers. Due to the Group’s efforts, the
dine-in business recovered by over 65% in the second half of
2020 as compared to the first half. In respect of takeaway
development, in addition to setting up a dedicated management
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEBIWRIN

team to coordinate planning and supervision, and ensuring strict
enforcement of food safety measures, the Group is working on
various fronts to improve takeaway sales. For example, the Group
created unique menu items such as family dinners, work meals
and online celebrity dishes for different scenarios. At the same
time, the Group developed multiple channels, including expanding
cooperation with public domain platforms such as Meituan and
other commercial units, and exploring potential private domain
platforms such as our own mini-programs, online live streaming,
community marketing and other online platforms for continuous
exposure to enhance communication with customers and expand
the original contact network. As a result of the Group’s efforts,
the Group’s overall takeaway revenue increased by 28.5% in
2020 as compared to the same period in 2019. The continuous
development of the online platform is conducive to increasing
customer base and takeaway sales; it also serves as a channel to
increase sales of new product launches, holiday promotions,
seasonal products and souvenirs, thereby bringing additional
revenue to the Group.

In addition to its efforts in opening up new sources of income, the
Group has also strengthened its efforts in cost control and
efficiency enhancement by continuing to actively negotiate with
local landlords for new rent and other concessions, as well as
applying for different subsidies from local governments for
COVID-19 prevention to reduce expenses. In addition, zoom
analysis of operating costs has allowed regions and even
departments to better control and improve workflow efficiency. On
the other hand, during the year, the Group optimized its
organizational structure to reduce costs and increase efficiency
through precise shift schedules, detailed analysis of daily
turnovers and assigned multi-tasks to employees in different
positions. With these measures adopted, and subsidies received
from local governments, the labour costs dropped over 22% in
the year. Besides, during the year, the Group conducted an
in-depth study on the optimization of the staff portfolio and
created the conditions for merging workflows from the work
environment to increase the scope of implementation of job
combination. In addition, the Group further expanded the original
program to multiple departments, and at the same time
consolidated the experience and developed related systems and
implementation details for continuous implementation. Such
system is expected to stabilize fixed staffing costs in the long run
in an external economy where staffing costs are rising.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Corporate culture and talent development are closely related, and
the Group sees them as indispensable elements for long-term
development. The operating philosophy “operating altruistically,
devoting relentless efforts, and spreading happiness” is the core
value of the Group. It is the way the Group passes on and even
inspire the society through continuous promotion within the Group
and the realization of various management systems and business
directions. The widespread outbreak of pandemic in 2020 was
rarely seen and caused an adverse impact on society. The Group
believes that bearing social responsibilities is the best way to
adhere to its ‘altruistic operation’ and ‘showing care’
philosophies. The Group organized volunteering teams to support
the community and medical groups in various regions once the
pandemic reached its peak; activities on caring, donations and
environmental protection continued even when the pandemic
subsided, which is in line with the objective of becoming a
century-old catering enterprise pursuits. It is also our Group’s
mission to cultivate a pool of talents with cultural qualities in the
catering industry. Despite the impact of the pandemic during the
year, the Group persisted in arranging various training programs
for all levels of staff through online courses, offline sharing and
practical implementation to enhance their professional knowledge,
business management skills and cultural cultivation. During the
year, the Group held a total of over 1,800 lessons, benefiting
employees at every level.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEBIWRIN

OUTLOOK

The Group expects that the global economy will not fully recover
in 2021 due to the impact of the pandemic, and the food and
beverage industry will face a whole-new landscape after the rapid
changes occurred during the pandemic, and the emergence of a
new consumption norm and various innovative business models
and industries due to the pandemic. In the face of a challenging
operating environment, the Group believes that in 2021, we
should maintain a flexible operating model, while proactively
seeking and exploring different business opportunities. Apart from
strengthening the existing strategic marketing for dine-in, take-out
and retail businesses, we will also expand our customer base
In the
meantime, we will continue to strengthen the relationship with our

through innovative products and operation models.

members, establish close interaction and improve customer
satisfaction. In addition, the Group will seek opportunities to
expand its business network to other cities to explore potential
customer groups with consuming power. On the other hand, other
than developing and expanding revenue streams, we will also
work on improving overall efficiency. The Group believes that in
2021, as long as we can consolidate, enhance and optimize
various management measures, actively explore revenue sources
and focus on enhancing customer satisfaction, we will be able to
break new ground.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

As at 31 December 2020, the Group was operating 57
restaurants and 11 other restaurants under joint ventures. The
table below illustrates the number of restaurants by major brands,
together with the average spending per customer and percentage
of revenue to the Group:

EEENWME DM

Bt % [0 B

RZTE_TF+_A=+—8B AEELE
STREE  SUNEERFALEENIREE-T
FINREZRENEREE  ERREAY
HEREAEEREZES

No. of restaurants

as at 31 December

R+=ZR=t+—-B2
EEHA

Brand W 2019
—NE

Tang’s Cuisine EEE% 1 1

Tang Palace* B2 31 31

Social Place BENE 8

Canton Tea Room BELXE

Pepper Lunch HREE 14 14

* including Tang Palace Seafood Restaurant and Tang Palace

As mentioned above, the Group’s overall revenue for the year
decreased by 26.1% to RMB1,105.1 million and the overall gross
profit margin has decreased by 0.9%.

During the year, the Group’s share award plan expense calculated
at market price amounted to approximately RMB4.5 million (2019:
RMB6.1 million). After deducting such expense, the Group’s staff
costs amounted to approximately RMB360.1 million, representing
a decrease of approximately RMB106.1 million or approximately
22.8% from RMB466.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2019. Such decrease was mainly attributed to the adoption of
control measures on staff cost by the Group during the year in
response to the impact of the pandemic.

Percentage of

Average spending revenue contributed
per customer to the Group

as at 31 December as at 31 December

Rt=ZA=+—-Hx Rt=AR=+—-H
BREAGHE HEAEBRZFS®

2019

350.7 360.3 2.5% 1.8%
195.2 193.2 78.8% 77.5%
137.2 138.0 10.7% 11.4%
91.4 84.3 4.5% 4.5%
50.7 63.4 3.2% 4.3%

* BREEESHHRES

a0 b SRl o AR S [ E R UR 2R A
261% &= AR1 1051 E BT BEEF X
T #0.9% -

EFER AEEATIBEEZ KRG EE R
BRI HAARBASEBL(ZE—NE:
ARBIBE L) - MR EBERZ%E K&
EMBEIKRALNAARKEI0IEET  BE

—NFFTZA=ZF+—HLEFENAR
#466.208 & LB HARKE106.18 B Lk
#228% - BARLETERANRAEBERF
NAEBEZBEZEME B T ARIZ S &
B BT 8K
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEBIWRIN

Utility expenses and consumables expenses of the Group for the
year amounted to approximately RMB66.6 million (2019: RMB81.7
million) representing a decrease of approximately RMB15.1 million
or approximately 18.5%. Such decrease was mainly attributed to
the effectiveness of control measures on operating cost adopted
by the Group during the year.

Rental and related expenses were mostly categorized as
depreciation of right-of-use assets and finance costs according to
HKFRS 16. During the year, depreciation of right-of-use assets of
approximately RMB92.7 million (2019: approximately RMB93.7
million), finance costs of approximately RMB24.4 million (2019:
approximately RMB27.7 million) and rental and related expenses
of approximately RMB12.8 million (2019: approximately RMB25.6
million) were recorded. Rental and related expenses recorded a
decrease of approximately RMB12.8 million. Such decrease was
mainly attributed to the successful application of the Group to the
landlords to waive certain lease payments and management fees
during the pandemic.

During the year, income tax expense of the Group for the year
amounted to approximately RMB15.4 million (2019: approximately
RMB45.3 million), which included withholding tax on dividend
income of RMB3.5 million (2019: approximately RMB5.3 million)
and deferred tax credit of RMB5.7 million (2019: deferred tax
expense of approximately RMB2.1 million). Due to the effect of
decline in revenue as a result of pandemic, the profit attributable
to owners of the Company for the year amounted to
approximately RMB4.4 million (2019: the profit attributable to
owners of the Company amounted to approximately RMB91.3
million).

Cash flow
Cash and cash equivalents increased by RMB19.5 million from

RMB382.5 million as at 31 December 2019 to RMB402.0 million
as at 31 December 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Net cash of RMB127.4 milion was generated from operating
activities during the year. Net cash used in investing activities
amounted to RMB16.8 million during the year, of which RMB31.9
million was related to the purchase of property, plant and
equipment and RMB14.5 million was related to the proceeds from
disposal of financial asset at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Net cash used in financing activities
amounted to RMB88.5 million for the year.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group’s funding and treasury activities are managed and
controlled by the senior management. The Group maintained cash
and cash equivalents and time deposits, in aggregate, of
RMB519.5 million as at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019:
RMB496.5 million). As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s total
assets, net current assets and net assets were RMB1,064.5
million (31 December 2019: RMB1,142.6 million), RMB144.9
million (31 December 2019: RMB122.6 million) and RMB418.9
million (31 December 2019: RMB429.0 million), respectively.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had bank borrowings of
RMB74.8 million (31 December 2019: RMB80.0 million). The
gearing ratio (calculated as bank borrowings divided by total
equity) was 17.8% as at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019:
18.6%).

As at 31 December 2020, the current ratio (calculated as current
assets divided by current liabilities) was 1.3 (31 December 2019:
1.3).

The directors are of the opinion that the Group has sufficient
working capital for the Group’s operations and expansion in the
near future.

EERENWRE DN

EFR KEEHEEAREI127488 TR
EFE-EFAN REZDARSFER
ARK168EETL EHREERBEYE K
ELEEEAREIIIOBETLAEERQAT
BEff \Ef2EKRENEREELXARE
US5EET AFHBEZSMARESFE
BARKESSSEET °

RBEERUBER

AEBMNESKEREHHaRAEREEEE
RiEsH  c AREBR T -_TF+_A=+—
HERELBESERERNTAREHRARKE
519588 (=% h$+ H +—H8:
ARBA9655H ET) ° i TF+ A
E+—E’$%§%§E%ﬁ*mﬁﬁﬁﬁ
BREEFESIAARE1,06458E8 T
(ZE—hEF+_A=Z+—HB: ARH
1,1426B &) ARB14495EL(ZF
—NWF+ZA=+—H8: AR¥12268 &
LI RARBH8EEL(ZE—NE+=
A=+—8: AR%42008&7T) °

777

ZEF+ZA=+—H AEEEFRE
I ARMETA8E B L(ZE—NF+=
—H: AR¥80.0BE L) - KR_T =
ZAZT—HMEABBLE (LR
= BRARERENE) RI7T8%(ZF
—NE+-_A=+—H:186%)°

m}++mw1+

RZZE_TF+_A=+—H
(J’/(//\LEJJQFKTL}\UIL@JE{/\H-I—
—hE+=ZA=+—H8:13)-

CRE R
L) R1.3(ZF

EERR AEEERHEEESHAKE
RARKRZEERBRMT -

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4% 21



Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEBIWRIN

Foreign Currency Exposure

The business operations of the Group’s subsidiaries were
conducted mainly in the Mainland China with revenues and
expenses of the Group’s subsidiaries denominated mainly in RMB.
The Group’s cash and bank deposits were denominated mainly in
RMB, with some denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Any
significant exchange rate fluctuations of Hong Kong dollars
against RMB as the functional currency may have a financial
impact to the Group.

As at 31 December 2020, the directors considered the Group’s
foreign exchange risk to be insignificant. During the year, the
Group did not use any financial instruments for hedging
purposes.

OTHER INFORMATION

Number and Remuneration of Employees

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had around 3,800
employees in Hong Kong and the PRC. The Group recognises the
importance of human resources to its success, therefore qualified
and experienced personnel are recruited for expansion of new
restaurants. Remuneration is maintained at competitive levels with
discretionary bonuses payable on a merit basis, which is in line
with industry practice. Other staff benefits provided by the Group
include mandatory provident fund, insurance schemes, share
options, share awards and performance related bonus.

Capital Commitment
The Group’s capital commitment was approximately RMB7.5

million and RMB3.0 million as at 31 December 2020 and 31
December 2019, respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Charges on Group Assets

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had pledged deposits of
RMB85.4 million (31 December 2019: RMB80.0 million) for
banking facilities amounting to RMB74.8 million (31 December
2019: RMB80.0 million).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

Material Acquisitions and Disposal of Subsidiaries,
Associates and Joint Ventures

During the year, there was no material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures of the Company.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities of
the Company

During the year, the trustee of the Share Award Plan adopted on
25 March 2011 by the Company and amended in 2013, pursuant
to the terms of the trust deed of the aforesaid plan, purchased on
the Stock Exchange a total of 3,082,000 shares of the Company
at a total consideration of approximately RMB2,299,000. Save as
disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EESNEHREEAEBEE

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Ms. WENG Peihe, aged 50, has been appointed as an executive
director of the Company since 25 March 2011 and is currently the
chairman of the Group. Ms. Weng has been the chief executive
officer of our Group since March 2000 until her appointment as
the chairman of the Board on 1 July 2020. She joined our Group
in January 1997 and worked as senior manager to general
manager from January 1997 to February 2000. Ms. Weng is
primarily responsible for our Group’s overall corporate operations,
planning and business development. Ms. Weng has rich
experience in the catering industry, and has unique contribution to
the Group on the aspects of building and maintaining core
management team, establishing corporate culture and actuating
lean management.

Ms. Weng was awarded Excellent Female Entrepreneur in China
Hospitality Industry by the China Hotel Association in 2004. She
was elected as one of the 2009-2010 China Hotel Industry 100
Elites and awarded the Platinum Five-Star Medal by the China
Hotel Industry Annual Conference in March 2010. Ms. Weng was
awarded as one of the Outstanding Entrepreneur in China Brand
Development for 2010 jointly by China United Business News,
Brand Magazine, China Wisdom Engineering Association, China
Academy of Management Science, China International Brand
Academy and National High Technology Industry Brand Academy
in January 2011. Ms. Weng was also awarded as one of the
Outstanding Female Entrepreneur in Shanghai Restaurant Industry,
jointly by China Hotel Association and Shanghai Restaurant
Association in December 2011. Ms. Weng was awarded 100
Outstanding Female Entrepreneur by China Outstanding Female
Entrepreneur Association in 2012 and 2015. She was selected as
the third awardee of the Best Female CEOs of Listed Company by
Forbes China in 2018 and was chosen as one of the one hundred
“Most Outstanding Women in Commerce in China” by Forbes
China in 2019.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

Ms. Weng completed the Certificate in Chinese Restaurant
Management Course at the Hong Kong Institute of Vocational
Education in 2002 and the International Business Management
CEO course at the Center for Overseas Academic and Cultural
Exchanges, Tsinghua University in November 2005, and
completed the Executive Master of Business Administration
Program organized by Peking University HSBC Business School in
2012.

Ms. Weng is currently the honorary consultant of the International
Quality Service Management Promotion Association. She was
invited by the Guangdong Industry Polytechnic to serve as deputy
dean of Hong Kong Tang Palace Hotel Management College in
2006, and was invited by the Peking University Alumni Association
in 2015 to serve as a special tutor in the special training course
of modern service industry during the Entrepreneur’s Training
Camp, Peking University.

Mr. YIP Shu Ming, aged 65, is one of the founders of our Group
and joined our Group in July 1992. Mr. Yip has been appointed
as an executive director of the Company since 25 March 2011,
and was also the chairman of the Group until June 2020. Mr. Yip
is responsible for our Group’s overall corporate strategic
development and also a director of certain subsidiaries of our
Group and acts as the chairman of a subsidiary (namely Hong
Kong Tang Palace Food & Beverage Group Company Limited) of
the Company. Mr. Yip has rich experience in restaurant business.
Mr. Yip is a honorary founding president of Shenzhen Overseas
Chinese International Association. Mr. Yip is a honorary president
of The Hong Kong Federation of Restaurants & Related Trades
Limited. He is a part-time consultant of the China Hotel
Management Company Limited and a permanent honorary
committee  member of The Chinese General Chamber of
Commerce. Mr. Yip is currently appointed as the 14th CPPCC
member of Changning District, Shanghai. Apart from his interest in
our Group, Mr. Yip is also one of the direct or indirect owners of
Meco Group and Dongguan Well Excellent, two entities held by
him for property investment and property leasing businesses and
the lessors under CCT Tenancy Agreements as disclosed under
the section headed “Directors’ Report — Continuing Connected
Transactions” in this annual report.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EENSREEAEBBE

Mr. CHAN Man Wai, aged 66, is one of the founders of our
Group and has been with our Group since its establishment in
July 1992. Mr. Chan has been appointed as an executive director
of the Company since 11 March 2010, and was also the vice
chairman of the Group until June 2020. He is responsible for our
Group’s overall corporate strategic development. Mr. Chan is also
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. He has rich
experience in restaurant business. Prior to the establishment of
Meco Petrochemical Limited in 1992, he co-owned and operated
with others the restaurants Fortune Flower Grill and Lounge and
Fortune City Restaurant in Hong Kong between 1983 and 1996.
Apart from his interest in the Group, Mr. Chan is also one of the
direct or indirect owners of Meco Group and Dongguan Well
Excellent, two entities held by him for property investment and
property leasing businesses and the lessors under the CCT
Tenancy Agreements as disclosed under the section headed
“Directors’ Report — Continuing Connected Transactions” in this
annual report.

Mr. KU Hok Chiu, aged 75, is one of the founders of our Group,
and has been appointed as an executive director of the Company
since 25 March 2011. Mr. Ku joined our Group as a shareholder
of Meco Petrochemical Limited since May 1996. He is responsible
for our Group’s overall corporate strategic development and also
a director of certain subsidiaries of our Group. Mr. Ku has rich
experience in restaurant business. Prior to joining the Group, he
was one of the indirect owners of Datong Restaurant, which
operated in China, from 1985 to 1997.

Mr. Ku is also engaged in kitchen equipment business in China
through Chiu Kwun, involving manufacture, sale, installation and
maintenance of kitchen equipment and provision of consultancy
services related to kitchen equipment and kitchen layout. Apart
from his interest in the Group, Mr. Ku is also () one of the
shareholders of Meco Group and Dongguan Well Excellent
respectively, two entities held by him for property investment and
property leasing and the lessors under the CCT Tenancy
Agreements as disclosed under the section headed “Directors’
Report — Continuing Connected Transactions” in this annual
report.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. CHEN Zhi Xiong, aged 50, is the chief executive officer of our
Group. He has been with our Group since May 2000 and has
served as the Group’s Vice President since January 2013 until his
appointment as the chief executive officer and the Company’s
executive director in July 2020. Mr. Chen is responsible for the
supervision and management of the Group’s catering business
and the food factory, as well as the overall corporate strategic
development. He was an editor on the China Hotel and Catering
Industry Book Series Editorial Board from May 2005, honorary
consultant to the Provincial and Hong Kong Gourmet Weekly from
March 2006 and chairman of the Expert Committee of Zhuhai
Food & Beverage Association from June 2006. He was accredited
as China Cooking Master by China Hotel Association in 2003 and
accredited National Judge Qualification (Hotel) — First Class from
China Hotel Association in 2004. Mr. Chen was also awarded the
group silver award in the 5th National Cooking Skills Competition
in 2003 by The Organizing Committee of the 5th National
Cooking Skills Competition, the Hong Kong, Guangdong and
Macau Top Ten Chefs 2004 — Gold Award by the Editorial Board
of the Hong Kong, Guangdong and Macau Chefs Ceremony and
the Quan Guo Shi Jia Jin Shao Jiang in the China Hotel System
Service Skill Competition by the China Hotel System Service Skill
Competition (Zhongnan District) Organizing Committee in 2005. He
obtained a certificate from the Nutritional Occupational Skills
Testing Authority of the Ministry of Labor and Social Security for
passing the tests for nutritionist and Chinese cook in December
2005 and June 2007 respectively. In 2006, he was awarded a
Diploma of Membership by Les Amis d’Escoffier Society, Inc. (now
known as Les Amis d’Escoffier Society of New York, Inc.) as
Chen completed the ERS 5S
Management Certificate Course from the Hong Kong

Honorary Chairman. Mr.

Environmental Resource and Safety Institute in April 2009.
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EENSREEAEBBE

Mr. WONG Chung Yeung, aged 43, is the chief financial officer
and company secretary of the Company. Mr. Wong joined our
Group in January 2012 and was appointed as the Company’s
executive director in July 2020. Mr. Wong is responsible for the
overall management of the Group’s finance and taxation,
information technology, investor relations and listing rules
compliance functions, as well as the overall corporate strategic
development. He graduated from the Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology in 1999 with a bachelor’s degree of
business administration in accounting and is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Wong
has rich experience in finance and accounting profession. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Wong worked in Ernst & Young from June
2000 to December 2011. Mr. Wong was appointed as a non-
executive director of Goal Forward Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
1854) since May 2016.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. KWONG Chi Keung, JP (Justice of the Peace), aged 66, has
been appointed as an independent non-executive director,
chairman of remuneration committee, member of audit committee
and of nomination committee of the Company since 25 March
2011. Mr. Kwong is qualified as a solicitor in Hong Kong,
England, Australia (Victoria) and Singapore. He is a senior partner
of Messrs. Sit Fung Kwong and Shum.

Mr. Kwong was an independent non-executive director of (i)
Sparkle Roll Group Limited (formerly known as Global Food
Culture Group Limited, Jade Dynasty Food Culture Group Limited
and Jade Dynasty Group Limited respectively) (Stock Code: 970),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from
August 2002 to October 2007 and (i) Hang Ten Group Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 448), a company which was listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange since October 2002 until it
was privatized and delisted with effect from 20 March 2012.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Kwong was a former Deputy Chairman of the Copyright
Tribunal of Hong Kong and a member of the Administrative
Appeals Board and Panel of Inland Revenue Board of Review. Mr.
Kwong is a Past President of the Asian Patent Attorneys
Association, a World Intellectual Property Organization appointed
Neutral for Alternative Dispute Resolution and Uniform Domain
Name Dispute Resolution Policy Panelist, fellow of the Chartered
Institute of Arbitrators (London) and Hong Kong Institute of
Arbitrators, a Chartered Arbitrator, Center for Effective Dispute
Resolution (CEDR) Accredited Mediator, and a Notary Public. He
is a listed Arbitrator and Adjudicator of the Hong Kong
International Arbitration Center. Mr. Kwong is a member of the
Advisory Committee on Review of Patent System in Hong Kong
and Convenor of its Working Group on Interim Regulatory
Measures of Patent Practitioners, member of Working Group on
Intellectual Property Trading and Convenor of its subgroup on IP
Arbitration and Mediation. He is also a member of the Steering
Committee on Mediation, Vice-Chairman of its Regulatory
Framework and Accreditation Sub-committee and Special
Committee on Evaluative Mediation set up by the Department of
Justice.

Mr. Kwong obtained a bachelor’'s degree in laws (LLB) in
November 1976 and a postgraduate certificate in laws (PCLL) in
July 1977, both from the University of Hong Kong.

Mr. KWONG Ping Man, aged 56, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director, chairman of audit committee,
member of nomination committee and of remuneration committee
of the Company since 25 March 2011.

Mr. Kwong has rich experience in accounting and administration
and is currently a director of O’Park Corporate Services Limited.
He had previously worked as accountant, company secretary and
chief financial officer at various private companies and main board
listed companies.
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EENSREEAEBBE

Mr. Kwong currently is the independent non-executive director of
Landrich Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 2132), Dragon King Group
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8493), Royal Deluxe Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 3789) and Rare Earth Magnesium
Technology Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as Group
Sense (International) Limited) (Stock Code: 601).

Besides, Mr. Kwong had been an independent non-executive
director of the following companies until he retired from his office:
Century Sunshine Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 509) until
June 2019, Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 907) until April 2017, Clear Lift Holdings Limited (now
known as Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group
Limited) (Stock Code: 1341) until March 2017.

Mr. Kwong obtained a bachelor’s degree in commerce accounting
from Curtin University of Technology in Australia in August 1996,
a postgraduate diploma in corporate administration (part-time)
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 1998
and a master’s degree in professional accounting from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in November 2003. He is a member
of the Australian Society of Certified Practicing Accountants (now
known as CPA Australia), a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
The Institute of Chartered Secretaries & Administrators
respectively.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. CHEUNG Kin Ting Alfred, aged 65, has been appointed as
an independent non-executive director, Chairman of nomination
committee, member of audit committee and of remuneration
committee of the Company since 25 March 2011. Mr. Cheung has
rich experience in the Chinese style fast food restaurant industry
in Hong Kong. From 2002 to 2009, he co-owned and operated
with others the Chinese-style fast food restaurants Cousin Cousin
Cafe in Hong Kong. Currently, Mr. Cheung has licensed the trade
name of aforesaid Chinese-style fast food restaurants to other
independent third parties in the PRC at no charge. Since 2004,
Mr. Cheung has been engaged in the provision of corporate
training on communication skills, interpersonal skills and team
building to corporations, including corporations in the restaurant
industry. He is also a film director, script-writer and producer.

He obtained a diploma of Arts in Chinese Language Literature
from the Hong Kong Baptist College (now known as Hong Kong
Baptist University) in June 1979 and an Executive Master of
Business Administration from The Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology in May 2009.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. WANG Zuochun, aged 58, is currently the Group’s controller
of human resources. Ms. Wang joined the Group in May 2008
has been serving as manager of human resources and general
manager of human resources and was appointed as the Group’s
controller of human resources in January 2015, with overall
responsibility for the strategic planning and target management of
human resources, establishment and improvement of human
resources management system and talent development of the
Company. Ms. Wang has extensive experience in human
resources since 2001 and has made significant contributions to
the Group management in promoting school-enterprise
cooperation. Ms. Wang graduated from Beijing University of
Chemical Technology with a bachelor’'s degree and obtained the
title of Senior Engineer in 1999; she obtained the Certificate of
Corporate Human Resources Manager in 2004 and completed the
ERS 5S Management Certificate Course of the Hong Kong

Environmental Resource and Safety Institute in April 2009.
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EENSREEAEBBE

Ms. HE Jianmei, aged 47, is the deputy chief operating officer of
the Group. Ms. He joined the Group in 1997 and served as the
general manager of Beijing operations and the chief operating
officer of Northern China in March 2008 and January 2015
respectively, until her appointment as the deputy chief operating
officer of the Group in March 2019, with overall responsibility for
the Group’s corporate culture building and business development
in Northern China. Ms. He graduated from the International
Business Management CEO course at the Center for External
Academic and Cultural Exchange of Tsinghua University in
November 2005. She completed an undergraduate course in law
from the Correspondence College of the Party School (E) in
December 2009. Ms. He completed the ERS 5S Management
Certificate Course of the Hong Kong Environmental Resources
and Safety Institute in April 2009 and was awarded a certificate of
completion of training as a therapeutic health practitioner by the
Education and Training Centre of the Ministry of Human
Resources and Social Security in April 2010. In the same vyear,
she was awarded the Certificate of Qualification for Level 2
Accreditation of Restaurant Services of the National Restaurant
Industry by the China Cuisine Association. In December 2012, she
was accredited as a senior nutrition caterer by the Beijing
Occupational Skills Certification and Management Centre.

Ms. He was appointed by the China National Radio as a
professional consultant for food and lifestyle programmes in June
2005 and was appointed by the China Association for the
Promotion of Chinese Medicine Research as the Deputy Secretary
General of the Professional Committee of Food Therapy and
Health in December 2009. In December 2018, she was awarded
the title of “Outstanding Integrity Entrepreneur” for 2018 A Grade
or above credit enterprises by the China General Chamber of
Commerce and was further awarded the title of “Honest and Self-
disciplined Meritorious Entrepreneur” for 2019 food industry in
July 2019.

32 TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED &' (FREl) 2R BIR D F

AEMLZL 47 RAEEZERIBE -
METE-NANEFNAREBLDRIRZ
EENF=ZANZE—RF—AERIERE
EEBEKERELREELE BEE_-ZT
—NFZRAEZTAEELERLE 20
BEAEBMNCEMEERMEL B EKH
B-MAZtR_ZTERF+—ABRBEEKX
BYHINEM R RR LD EEEBRERIR
HCEOM -HR _ZTTAF+-_AXKE
RUBEERERARBRR AR ZEE
NFHATKEEREERRLZEZZEEERS
SSEEBEERE FR_ZT—ZTENAES
ANERMHERETHEFIFLEER
BEEMMAMIE)ITHNES -RF  HES
PRZAREREREBREREBCERS
X_BATEERESE R_E—Z_F+=
A BESIEEMEBEREETEEROR
EaMEEREBEWK-

MZETR _ETZRAFAARFTRARERS
ARFEARMNMEETANHENERER -
YR-ZFBZFNF+ - AETE DB ERFITR
ERRRREELEXZBEIWNER -1
“E-NE+ A RETEABERT
E-NFAEUNELERAEXIEFHAELE
IR TER_ZE-NFLtABRTZ
Z-NEFRETEIHREERNLERIE
5% ©



Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

Ms. YE Lixia, aged 49, is the deputy chief operating officer of the
Group. Ms. Ye joined the Group in 1997. She had been serving
as the regional operations general manager of Eastern China since
June 2013 until she was appointed as the Group’s deputy chief
operating officer in March 2019 and became fully responsible for
the Group’s retail business management. Ms. Ye completed her
bachelor’s degree in management from the Beijing Technology
and Business University in July 2011, and completed the
Advanced Seminar on Business Management Core Curriculum
held by School of Continuing Education of Shanghai Jiao Tong
University in December 2019. Ms. Ye received the nutrition caterer
certification from Occupational Skills Appraisal Center of the
Ministry of Labor and Social Security in December 2005, she
completed the ERS 5S Management Certificate Course of the
Hong Kong Environmental Resource and Safety Institute in April
2009, and received the Registered Family Education Instructor
Position (Intermediate) Occupational Certificate from Shanghai
Talent Training Market & Development Center in October 2011.
Ms. Ye has extensive work experience in the food and beverage
industry, and she became a council member of Shanghai Cuisine
Industry Association on behalf of Shanghai Changning Tang
Palace Seafood Restaurant Co., Ltd in November 2012.

English names and tiles disclosed above are for identification
only.
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Corporate Governance Report
TtEERRE

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices to safeguard the interests of the
Company and its shareholders and to enhance corporate value
and accountability. These can be achieved by an effective and
diversified Board, segregation of duties with clear responsibility,
sound internal control, appropriate risk assessment procedures
and transparency to all the shareholders.

The Company has complied with all the code provisions as set
out in Appendix 14 (Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report) to the Listing Rules throughout the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is in charge of the task of maximizing the financial
performance of the Group and making decisions in the best
interest of the Company. The Board is responsible for formulating
business policies and strategies, monitoring the performance of
the senior management of the Company, adopting and monitoring
internal business and management control, approving and
monitoring annual budgets and business plans, reviewing
operational and financial performance, considering dividend policy,
reviewing and monitoring the Company’s systems of financial
control and risk management. The Board has delegated the day-
to-day management, administration and operation of the Group
and implementation and execution of Board policies and
strategies to the executive directors and management of the
Company.
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As at 31 December 2020, the Board consisted of nine members,
including six executive directors, Ms. WENG Peihe (Chairman), Mr.
YIP Shu Ming, Mr. CHAN Man Wai, Mr. KU Hok Chiu, Mr. CHEN
Zhi Xiong (Chief Executive Officer), Mr. WONG Chung Yeung
(Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary) and three
independent non-executive directors, Mr. KWONG Chi Keung, Mr.
KWONG Ping Man and Mr. CHEUNG Kin Ting Alfred. The Board’s
composition was established with diversification as a major
objective and consists of one female member, one aged between
40 and 49, three aged between 50 and 59 and five aged 60 or
above. All members are Chinese and except for Mr. CHEN Zhi
Xiong and Mr. WONG Chung Yeung who were appointed on 1
July 2020, all members have more than five years of service as
directors. Biographical details of each of the directors are set out
on pages 24 to 31 of this annual report. Save as disclosed in this
annual report, there is no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship among members of the Board.

All executive directors entered into service contracts with the
Company for a specific term commencing from 1 July 2020 and
expiring on 30 June 2023, which could be terminated by either
party by giving not less than three months’ written notice.

In compliance with Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules, the Company
has appointed three independent non-executive directors
(representing one-third of the Board), one of whom has
appropriate professional qualifications in accounting and financial
management. All the independent non-executive directors have
confirmed in writing to the Company that they have met all the
guidelines for assessing their independence as set out in rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. All independent non-executive directors
renewed their respective letter of appointment for a specific term
commencing from 1 July 2020 and expiring on 30 June 2023,
which could be terminated by either party by giving not less than
one month’s written notice.
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Corporate Governance Report
CEERRE

Not less than one-third of the Board are subject to retirement
from office by rotation at the annual general meeting provided
that every director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years in accordance with the Articles of
Association. Besides, a new director appointed by the Board to fill
a casual vacancy or as an additional director shall hold office only
until the next following general meeting and shall then be eligible
for re-election.

All directors, including independent non-executive directors, have
given sufficient time and effort to the affairs of the Group.
Independent non-executive directors have provided the Board with
their diversified expertise, experience and professional advice. The
Board believes that the ratio between executive directors and
independent non-executive directors is reasonable and adequate
to provide sufficient checks and balances in order to safeguard
the interests of shareholders of the Company and of the Group.
The Board also believes that the views and participation of the
independent non-executive directors in the Board and committee
meetings provide independent judgment on the issues relating to
strategy, performance, conflict of interest and management
process to ensure that the interests of all shareholders of the
Company are considered and safeguarded.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
in relation to the Group’s businesses and affairs as well as
unrestricted access to the advice and services of the company
secretary, who is responsible for providing directors with board
papers and related materials. The directors may seek independent
professional advice at the Company’s expenses in carrying out
their duties and responsibilities.

The Company has maintained appropriate and sufficient insurance

coverage on directors’ liabilities in respect of legal actions taken
against directors arising out of corporate activities.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board held four
regular board meetings. At these regular board meetings,
directors discussed and exchanged their views on significant
issues and general operations of the Group, formulated business
policies and strategies, reviewed the financial performance, budget
plan and approved the annual results for the year ended 31
December 2019 and the interim results of the Company for the
six months ended 30 June 2020.

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties set out in paragraph D.3.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code, and in this regard the duties of the Board shall include:

(@)  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and the senior
management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors of the Company; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for ensuring that sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems are maintained within
the Group. It is achieved by ongoing reviews through 2
committees, namely Audit Committee and risk management and
internal control committee (the “Risk and Control Committee”).
Risk and Control Committee comprises the chairman of the
Board, the chief executive officer and chief financial officer of the
Company, an external PRC legal advisor engaged by the
Company, and Mr. KWONG Ping Man (the independent non-
executive director, who possesses relevant experience to review
and assess the effectiveness and adequacy of the Company’s
internal control measures). Such reviews cover all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls.

The Company has also established an internal audit department in
which the internal audit manager is professionally qualified with
relevant experience to monitor and oversee daily operation of
internal control matters. The Risk and Control Committee is
responsible for i) the implementation of the remedial plans
recommended by the internal audit department and ii) ensuring
the compliance with the Listing Rules and applicable laws, rules
and regulations in various business locations. The internal audit
department and Risk and Control Committee facilitate the annual
review of the risk management and internal control systems and
directly report to the Audit Committee. Any deficiencies and risks
identified during the review process will be evaluated and
addressed in the Audit Committee and be reported to the Board
if the impact is considered as significant.

Pursuant to the paragraph C.2.4 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the process described above and the main feature of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems is through
effective  communications with various business units and
functional departments so as to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks. Such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.
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Besides, the Company has according to the requirement under
part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, established
written procedures for the handling and dissemination of inside
information and circulated to all staff and management who may
due to their roles and duties, be in possession of these potential
price sensitive information.

The Board, through the Audit Committee and Risk and Control
Committee, reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems for the year ended 31
December 2020 in accordance with the requirement set out in
paragraph C.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code, and
discussed with the management of the Company and its external
and internal auditors. It is considered that i) no material change in
the nature and extent of significant risks was noted since the last
annual review, i) no significant control failure or weakness that
may have a material impact on the Company’s financial
performance has been identified during the year, and iii) the
systems covered all material controls: including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions, and are effective and adequate to safeguard the
Group’s assets and shareholders’ interest.
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Attendance of the individual directors at the regular board HE_Z-_ZF+_A=+T—HLFEMEH
meetings and general meetings for the year ended 31 December ESHETHESg e RRRRE2LE

2020 is set out as follows: EHEHMT -
Regular Board Annual
Meetings General Meeting
Attended/Total Attended/Total
ExexEdes BRRBEKRE

HERE, B HERE,#AH

Executive directors

HITEE
Ms. WENG Peihe (Chairman) 4/4 11
SERZET(EE)
Mr. YIP Shu Ming 4/4 11
EEeA L
Mr. CHAN Man Wai 4/4 11
BRICE ST

3 Mr. KU Hok Chiu 4/4 1/1
HEBLE
Mr. CHEN Zhi Xiong (Chief Executive Officer) 3/4 N/A i A
BR S (B AR AL (Note?) (Fi51) (Note) (i #£1)
Mr. WONG Chung Yeung (Chief Financial Officer and

Company Secretary) 3/4 N/A i A

ERB kAt (EEEEEAGHZE) (Note?) (Fi51) (Note) (i1

Independent non-executive directors

BUHFHTESE

Mr. KWONG Chi Keung 4/4 1/1
BP0 ST A&

Mr. KWONG Ping Man 4/4 1/1
BB IR X 5 A=

Mr. CHEUNG Kin Ting Alfred 4/4 1/1
R ERRE K A

Note: Bt -

(1) Meeting attendance is counted from the effective date of the (1) HEHEeEEEASaREEEZTESA
respective director’s appointment. REETHE o
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At least 14 days’ notice prior to the date of a regular board
meeting is given to all directors and an agenda together with
board papers are sent to all directors no less than three days
before the date of a regular board meeting (or other agreed
period). All directors are given the opportunity to include in the
agenda any other matter that they would like to discuss in the
meeting. With respect to board committee meetings, reasonable
prior notice is given to all committee members. All directors and
committee members of board committees are urged to attend the
board meetings and board committee meetings in person. For the
directors and committee members who are unable to attend the
meeting, participation through electronic means are arranged and
available.

Should a director have a potential conflict of interest in a matter
being considered in the board meeting, he/she shall abstain from
voting. Independent non-executive directors with no conflict of
interest will be present at meetings dealing with such conflict of
interest issues.

The company secretary assists the chairman of the Board in
preparation of the agenda for the board meeting and board
committee meeting and ensures that all applicable rules and
regulations regarding the board meeting are followed. He also
prepares and keeps detailed minutes of each board meeting and
board committee meeting. Within a reasonable time after each
meeting, the draft minutes is circulated to all directors or
committee members for comment and the final and approved
version of minutes is sent to all directors or committee members
for their records. Board committees, including the audit
committee, nomination committee and remuneration committee, all
follow the applicable principles, practices and procedures used in

board meetings.
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TtEERRE
The Company has received from all directors records of their AARBEWEEZ S -_EF+_A=1+—
continuous professional development training for the year ended AEFEMBESNRAESZEEREEIIL
31 December 2020, details of which are set out below: B FEBHEMNWT
Type of Continuous Professional
Development
FEEXHRER
Attending Reading
training/ regulatory
seminar on updates or
regulatory information
development relevant to the
and directors’ Company or
duties its business
HERER Bl i & AT
EERER EEERHY
EERE BFBEARAAR
Mg HEE HEBNWER
Ms. WENG Peihe v v
F|mARLL
Mr. YIP Shu Ming v v
ERIREE
Mr. CHAN Man Wai v v/
PR X (2 & &
Mr. KU Hok Chiu v v
HEBELE
Mr. CHEN Zhi Xiong v v
PR 75 I o
Mr. WONG Chung Yeung v v/
mRBEE
Mr. KWONG Chi Keung v v
BP0 ST A&
Mr. KWONG Ping Man v v
BB I X 5 A=
Mr. CHEUNG Kin Ting Alfred v v/
R ERRE K A
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

During 1 January 2020 to 30 June 2020, Mr. YIP Shu Ming was
the chairman of the Board and Ms. WENG Peihe was the chief
executive officer of the Company. With effect from 1 July 2020,
Ms. WENG Peihe has been appointed as the chairman of the
Board and Mr. CHEN Zhi Xiong has been appointed as the chief
executive officer of the Company, in compliance with the Code
Provision A.2.1 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The divisions
of responsibilities between the chairman of the Board and the
chief executive officer of the Company are clearly divided to
ensure a balance of power and authority and to reinforce their
independence and accountability.

Ms. WENG Peihe, being the chairman of the Company, is
responsible for providing leadership to the Board and ensuring
that the Board functions effectively; that directors receive in timely
manner adequate information which is complete and reliable and
that all directors are properly briefed on issues arising at board
meetings. The chairman also encourages directors to participate
actively in and to make a full contribution to the Board’s affairs so
that the Board can act in the best interest of the Company.

Mr. CHEN Zhi Xiong, being the chief executive officer of the
Company, is responsible for the daily operations of the Company,
execution of business policies, strategies, objectives and plans as
formulated and adopted by the Board and leading the
management of the Company.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED
ISSUERS (THE “MODEL CODE”)

The Company has adopted its own code for securities
transactions by directors on terms no less exacting than the
Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. The
Company has made specific enquiry of all of the directors and all
of the directors confirmed that they have complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code during the year.
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COMPLIANCE WITH NON-COMPETE
UNDERTAKING

The Company has received confirmation from the Controlling
Shareholders in respect of their compliance with the terms of the
Non-compete Undertaking for the year under review.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparation of
the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December
2020 which are to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company and of the Group as at that date and of the
Group’s results and cash flows for the year then ended and are
properly prepared on the going concern basis in accordance with
the applicable statutory requirements and accounting standards.
The directors, having made appropriate enquiries, confirm that
they are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company
acknowledging their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements is set out in the “Independent Auditors’ Report”
contained in this annual report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three board committees, namely audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee, to
oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. The board
committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties.

The Board adopted a set of written terms of reference of each of
the board committees of the Company which are in line with the
Listing Rules requirements. The written terms of reference of each
of the board committees of the Company are posted on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

44 TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED &' (FREl) 2R BIR D F

4}

B

55

Vs

H#

B

ARBICHEZRERARENDEFEE
SABFAGE R MBEHOERE

ESYHMBHRRNEME

EENEREREBE_ZT_ZTF+_A
St RLEMREENMBHRRNAMLE - B
BHREANEAFRRART LA EEEHEZ
B R AEEEEZARILFENERE
RBRER  ARBEROEERE R GHE
ARFEREEEZRRE -EENELM
BEEEMREK BWRWFL MBI AR
EUHARARELERNENEARBZE
HHBERZERNTEERRE -

R X B SN A2 B B i 52 KL B B TS R P A
MR ETBRACHNAFRB LR
BEIA -

EEZET

ZE® YPHEERREATER MESR
|

REREBTHEAE

EZERMTARAIBEFZEENERR
REE ZETEEBEBETAS LHRAZ
Ko ARREEFZEENEMRERED
TIE R B P R R R B AU -



AUDIT COMMITTEE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

The Company has established an Audit Committee since 25
March 2011 with written terms of reference (as amended or
supplemented) in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Audit
Committee comprises three members who are all independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. KWONG Ping Man (the
Chairman), Mr. KWONG Chi Keung and Mr. CHEUNG Kin Ting
Alfred. The Audit Committee reports to the Board and is
delegated by the Board to assess matters related to the financial
statements. Under its terms of reference, the Audit Committee is
required to perform, amongst the others, the following duties:

° making recommendation to the Board on appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditor and approving
the remuneration and terms of engagement of that external
auditor, and any questions of its resignation or dismissal;

° reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

° reviewing the Company’s financial controls, risk management
and internal control procedures and systems;

° reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

° facilitating the communication between external auditors,
internal audit department and management;

° ensuring that management has performed its duty to have
an effective internal control and risk management systems;
and

° monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial statements
and annual reports and accounts and half-year reports.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020, four Audit Committee
meetings were held and all minutes were kept by the company
secretary. The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting
policies and practices adopted by the Company, annual results
and annual report of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2019, and the unaudited interim results and interim
report of the Company for the six months ended 30 June 2020,
assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control and
risk management systems, reviewed the renewal of the continuing
connected transactions. The Audit Committee reported that there
was no material uncertainty relating to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

BHE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HLEFERE
REBERITTHNAEREZESSE A
EERCOHBATMNERT BRZEGRA
$Aﬂ%mmaﬁﬁ ENREH  AAFHE
—hWE+_A=+—ALFENFEE
BRMFREARRBEE-_T-_TF A=+
HIEARBEAOREEZPHEE R AR
s FEAREABEIEREBRERRFN
i BHEBERERICEE -BEREE
EMERBEATHBPEMHRBRITERE
FERRNANFEKENEN -

Attendance of individual members of the Audit Committee at HE-_Z-_ZTFT_A=T—"HLFEER
meetings for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out as ZEGEMNKELFEERNLHEHIMNT
follows:
Meetings
Committee Members Attended/Total
ZEERE HERE B
Mr. KWONG Ping Man (Chairman) 4/4
BB IR S (£ )
Mr. KWONG Chi Keung 4/4
B Aok A&
Mr. CHEUNG Kin Ting Alfred 4/4
SR ER FE ST A
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditor is set
out as follows:

Corporate Governance Report
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¥ B4 B %7 A

SN TARBINSZEE 2 FHMEI T

Fee paid/payable

e ENEA
2020 2019
—E_EF —E—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T T
Type of service: Pk %% tE 48 -
Audit services Bz R 1,008 1,144
Non-audit services (Including tax advisory IEEZRSE (BERG
and tax compliance services) BRI ERRT) 22 23
Total #Et 1,030 1,167
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FMEES

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee since
25 March 2011 with written terms of reference in accordance with
Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules. The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company. The principal responsibilities
of the Remuneration Committee include but are not limited to
making recommendations to the Board on the overall
remuneration policy and structure and remuneration packages
relating to all directors and senior management of our Group and
ensure none of the directors determine their own remuneration.
The Remuneration Committee comprises three members who are
all independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. KWONG Chi
Keung (the Chairman), Mr. KWONG Ping Man and Mr. CHEUNG
Kin Ting Alfred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020, two Remuneration HE-_Z-_ZF+-_A=+—BHLFEAH
Committee meetings were held to review the remuneration MEEERT TMATHEZESSH B
packages of the directors and senior management. The ESRAREEABNTINESE - FES
Remuneration Committee has made recommendation to the board ERARABESERAEREBAENTHESE

on the remuneration package of directors and senior management MEETRLEZ SBFESHHAMNHE
of the Company. No director or his/her associate was involved in ANZHEEFERIHOEN -

deciding his/her own remuneration.

Attendance of individual members of the Remuneration Committee HE-_Z-_ZF+T_A=T—HLFEHN
at meetings for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out as ZEGEMKELFEERNLHEHIIMT
follows:
Meetings
Committee Members Attended/Total
ZEERE HERE B
Mr. KWONG Chi Keung (Chairman) 2/2
BB R ()
g Mr. KWONG Ping Man 2/2
BB IR 3 % &
Mr. CHEUNG Kin Ting Alfred 2/2
SR ER FE ST A

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the remuneration of the HE-_Z-_ZFF+-_A=+—HLFEa#k

members of the senior management by band is set out below: ERABZEHBMARFETMAT :
Number of
persons
Remuneration band (RMB) HEAR (AR A
1,000,000 and below 1,000,000k JA T~ 2
1,000,001 to 2,000,000 1,000,00122,000,000 2

Further particulars regarding the directors’ and chief executive’s BB EMRBWE T NEARES RITHRER
emoluments and the five highest paid employees as required to ZHENERRAEEaETWEERE 2 #E—F
be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules are set FEEES A B R M8 RO -

out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial statements.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Nomination Committee since 25
March 2011 with written terms of reference (as amended or
supplemented) in accordance with A.5 of Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company. The Nomination Committee is responsible for,
including but not limited to, making recommendations to the
Board regarding candidates to fill vacancies of the Board. The
Nomination Committee comprises three members who are all
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. CHEUNG Kin
Ting Alfred (the Chairman), Mr. KWONG Chi Keung and Mr. KWONG
Ping Man.

The Company recognises the importance of the Board’s diversity
in achieving a sustainable and balanced development. The
Company has adopted a board diversity policy. Therefore, while
the Board’s appointment will be based on meritocracy, a range of
diversity perspectives will also be considered, including but not
limited to cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge, gender, age, ethnicity and length of
service.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, two Nomination
Committee meetings were held by the Nomination Committee to
review the composition of the Board which is determined by
directors’ skills and experience appropriate to the Company’s
business and recommendations were made to the Board on the
appointment of new directors.

Having considered the Group’s future development and
management succession needs, with the recommendation of the
Nomination Committee, the Board has appointed two senior
management, Mr. CHEN Zhi Xiong and Mr. WONG Chung Yeung,
as new directors with effective date since 1 July 2020 which was
announced on 12 June 2020.
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Attendance of individual members of the Nomination Committee at
meetings for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out as
follows:

= TZA=tT-HIEFERS
ZEREMNKEHFESRNCEEIWT

Meetings
Committee Members Attended/Total
ZEEHE HERE B
Mr. CHEUNG Kin Ting Alfred (Chairman) 2/2
RERRESR A (F/E)
Mr. KWONG Chi Keung 2/2
BF 558 5 A&
Mr. KWONG Ping Man 2/2
BB IR X 5 A=

NOMINATION POLICY

Pursuant to the Nomination Policy, the Nomination Committee has
been delegated to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships.
The Board is ultimately responsible for selection and appointment
of new Directors.

The Nomination Committee should utilize various methods for
identifying candidates for directorship, including recommendations
from Board members, management, and professional search firms.
In addition, the Nomination Committee will consider candidates for
directorship properly submitted by the shareholders of the
Company.
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The evaluation of candidates for directorship by the Nomination
Committee may include, without limitation, review of resume and
job history, personal interviews, verification of professional and
personal references and performance of background checks. The
Board will consider the recommendations of the Nomination
Committee and is responsible for designating the candidates for
directorship to be considered by the Shareholders for their
election at the general meeting of the Company, or appointing the
suitable candidate to act as Director to fill the Board vacancies or
as an addition to the Board, subject to compliance of the
constitutional documents of the Company. All appointments of
Director should be confirmed by letter of appointment and/or
service contract setting out the key terms and conditions of the
appointment of the Directors.

The Nomination Committee should consider the following
qualifications as a minimum criteria to be required for a candidate
in recommending to the Board to be a potential new Director, or
the continued service of existing Director:

° the highest personal and professional ethics and integrity;

° proven achievement and competence in the nominee’s field
and the ability to exercise sound business judgment;

° skills that are complementary to those of the existing Board;

° the ability to assist and support management and make
significant contributions to the Company’s success;

° an understanding of the fiduciary responsibilities that is
required for a member of the Board and the commitment of
time and energy necessary to diligently carry out those
responsibilities;

° independence: the candidates for independent non-executive
directorship should meet the “independence” criteria as
required under the Listing Rules and the composition of the
Board is in conformity with the provisions of the Listing
Rules.

The Nomination Committee may also consider such other factors
as it may deem are in the best interests of the Company and its
Shareholders as a whole.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Convening EGM

The following procedures for shareholders to convene an EGM of
the Company are prepared in accordance with Articles 64 of the
Articles of Association:

(1) One or more shareholders (“Requisitionist(s)”) holding, at the
date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company having the right of
voting at general meetings, shall have the right, by written
notice, to require an EGM to be called by the directors for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

(2)  Such requisition shall be made in writing to the directors or
the company secretary of the Company and lodged with (i)
the head office and (ii) the registered office of the Company
in the Cayman Islands at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands.

(8) The EGM shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition.

(4) If the directors fail to proceed to convene the EGM within
twenty-one (21) days of such deposit, the Requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the Requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the directors shall be reimbursed to
the Requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings by shareholders

There are no provisions under the Articles of Association or the
Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands regarding procedures for
shareholders to put forward proposals at general meetings other
than a proposal of a person for election as director. Shareholders
may follow the procedures set out above to convene an
| extraordinary general meeting for any business specified in such
' written requisition.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director

The following procedures for a shareholder of the Company to
propose a person for election as a director of the Company are
prepared in accordance with article 110 of the Articles of
Association:

A shareholder may propose a person (“Candidate”) for election as
a director at a general meeting by lodging the following documents
within the period mentioned below at the head office and principle
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Unit 3 on 10th
Floor, Greenfield Tower, Concordia Plaza, No. 1 Science Museum
Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong or the branch share registrar and
transfer office (“Hong Kong Share Registrar”) of the Company in
Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong:

(@)  a written notice (“Proposal Notice”) of the intention to propose
the Candidate for election as a Director, which must (i) state
the information of the Candidate as required by Rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, which is available on the Stock
Exchange’s website (www.hkex.com.hk); and (i) must be
signed by the nominating shareholder; and

(b) a written notice (“Consent Notice”) by the Candidate, which
must () indicate his/her willingness to be elected as a
Director and consent to the publication of his/her personal
information as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules;
and (i) must be signed by the Candidate.

The Proposal Notice and the Consent Notice shall be lodged with
the head office or the Hong Kong Share Registrar of the
Company for a period of at least seven (7) clear days
commencing no earlier than the day after the despatch of the
notice of the general meeting and ending no later than seven (7)
clear days before the date of such general meeting.

To enable the shareholders to make an informed decision on their
election at a general meeting, the Company shall publish an
announcement or issue a supplemental circular as soon as
practicable after the receipt of the Proposal Notice and the
Consent Notice. The Company shall include particulars of the
Candidate in the announcement or the supplementary circular.
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The Company shall assess whether or not it is necessary to
adjourn the general meeting of the election to give shareholders
at least ten (10) business days to consider the relevant
information disclosed in the announcement or supplemental
circular.

The aforesaid procedures have been uploaded to the Company’s
website.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to
the Board

To direct enquiries to the Board, the shareholders should submit
his/her enquiries in writing with his/her detailed contact
information to the company secretary at the following:

By post to the head office

Tel: (852) 2180-7055

Fax: (852) 2180-7056

Email: info@tanggong.cn
Website: http://www.tanggong.cn

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
COMMUNICATIONS

The Company understands the importance of maintaining effective
mutual communication with its shareholders and values every
opportunity to communicate with them. The Company has
adopted a policy of disclosing clear and relevant information to
shareholders through various channels in a timely manner. Annual
and interim reports are printed and sent to all shareholders by
post as requested. The Company has also complied with
provisions of the Listing Rules by posting announcements,
notices, annual reports, interim reports, environmental, social and
governance report and shareholders’ circulars on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company (http://www.tanggong.cn).
Apart from these documents, press releases and newsletters are
posted on the Company’s website to enhance its transparency.
The Company’s website is updated in a timely manner and
contains a wide range of additional information on the Company’s
| business activities.
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In addition to publication of information, the annual general
meeting of the Company provides a forum for communication
between shareholders and directors. The chairman of the Board in
person chairs the annual general meeting to ensure shareholders’
views are communicated to the Board. Moreover, the briefing on
the Company’s business and the questions and answers session
at the annual general meeting allow shareholders to stay informed
of the Group’s strategies and goals.

In addition to the chairman of the Board, the chairman of the
board committees, or in their absence, other members of the
respective committees and the external auditors of the Company,
are available to answer any queries that shareholders may have.
The chairman of the Board will propose separate resolutions for
each issue to be considered at the annual general meeting.

The annual general meeting proceedings are reviewed from time
to time to ensure that the Company follows best corporate
governance practices and shareholders’ rights are preserved.
Notice of annual general meeting is delivered to all shareholders
at least 20 clear business days prior to the date of the annual
general meeting, setting out details of each proposed resolution,
voting procedures and other relevant information. The procedures
for demanding and conducting a poll will be explained by the
chairman of the Board at the annual general meeting. Poll results
are released by way of publication of an announcement.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the vyear, there was no significant change in the
Company’s constitutional documents.
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The board of directors is pleased to present this report of
directors and the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the
financial statements. There were no significant changes in the
nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s fair review of the business during the vyear,
discussion on the future business development of the Group and
the descriptions of important events affecting the Group that have
occurred since the end of 31 December 2020 (if any) are set out
in the “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” from pages 6 to 11 and pages 12 to 23 respectively of
this annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, businesses
and prospects could be affected by a number of risks and
uncertainties including business risks, operational risks and
financial management risks.

The details of financial risk management objectives and practices
of the Group are set out in note 33 to the financial statements.

There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those
mentioned above which are not known to the Group or which
may not be material now but could turn out to be material in the
future.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS, CUSTOMERS
AND OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its suppliers, customers and other stakeholders
to meet its immediate and long-term goals. The management will
continue to develop an efficient communication platform to
enhance relationships with individual and corporate customers,
and maintain good relationships with suppliers and customers.
During the year of 2020, there was no material and significant
dispute between the Group and its suppliers and/or customers.
The Group also recognises the importance of human resources to
its success and endeavours to recruit and retain qualified and
experienced personnel. Details are disclosed on page 22 in this
annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. Acting in an
environmentally responsible manner, the Group endeavours to
comply with laws and regulations regarding environmental
protection and continue to adopt effective measures to achieve
efficient use of resources, energy saving and waste reduction, and
review its effectiveness from time to time. Green initiatives and
measures have been adopted in the Group’s managed
restaurants. Such initiatives include recycling of recyclable waste,
various energy saving measures, water saving practices and
promoting the awareness of customers and employees. The
Group will disclose further details in its Environmental, Social and
Governance report which will be published subsequent to this
annual report in accordance with the requirement of Rule 13.91
and the reporting framework of Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries established in the Mainland China while the Company
itself is incorporated in the Cayman Islands with its shares listed
on the Stock Exchange. Our establishment and operations
accordingly shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in the
Cayman lIslands, Mainland China and Hong Kong. During the year
ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this report, as
far as the Board and management are aware, the Group has
complied with the relevant laws and regulations in the Mainland
China, Hong Kong and the Cayman lIslands that have a significant
impact on the Group.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on
page 95 of this annual report.

An interim special dividend of HK2.00 cents per ordinary share
amounting to approximately RMB18,938,000 in total was paid to
the shareholders of the Company during the year.

The directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HKS3.00 cents per ordinary share in respect of the year ended 31
December 2020 to the Shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on 18 June 2021, total
amounting to approximately RMB27,116,000. Subject to the
approval of the Shareholders at the forthcoming AGM, the final
dividend is expected to be paid on 30 July 2021.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

According to the dividend policy approved and adopted by the
Board of the Company with effect from 1 January 2019, the
Company considers stable and sustainable returns to
shareholders of the Company to be its goal and endeavours to
maintain a dividend policy to achieve such goal. In deciding
whether to propose a dividend and in determining the dividend
amount, the Board would take into account the Group’s results of
operations, earnings performance, cashflows, financial condition,
future prospects and other factors that the Board may consider
relevant. Whilst the Board will review from time to time for
determination on proposed dividend with the above factors taken
into account, there can be no assurance that dividends will be
declared or paid in any particular amount for any given period.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the entitlement of the
Shareholders to attend and vote at the AGM, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from 7 June 2021 to 11
June 2021 (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer
of share(s) will be effected. In order to be eligible to attend and
vote at the AGM, all transfers documents, accompanied by the
relevant share certificates, must be lodged with Tricor Investor
Services Limited, the branch share registrar and transfer office of
the Company in Hong Kong, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on 4 June 2021.

The proposed final dividend is subject to the passing of an
ordinary resolution by the Shareholders at the AGM. For the
purpose of determining the entitlement of the Shareholders to the
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 (if approved),
the register of members of the Company will be closed on
18 June 2021,
effected. To be entitled to the final dividend for the year ended

during which no transfer of share(s) will be

31 December 2020 (if approved), all transfers documents,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged
with Tricor Investor Services Limited, the branch share registrar
and transfer office of the Company in Hong Kong, at Level 54,
183 Queen’s Road East,
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 17 June 2021.

Hopewell Centre, Hong Kong for

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is
set out on pages 224 to 225 of this annual report. This summary
does not form part of the audited financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 25 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s distributable reserves as at 31 December 2020,
as calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands, amounted to RMB45,474,000 which
included the share premium account of the Company amounting
to RMB17,801,000. Under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and retasted) of the Cayman Islands and
the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association, the share
premium account of the Company is distributable to its
shareholders provided that immediately following the distribution
or the payment of dividends, the Company is able to pay its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions
amounting to RMB1,155,000.
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DIRECTORS =}

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report THAAFEREEAFEABIENES

were:
Executive Directors BITESE
Ms. WENG Peihe SERZ+
Mr. YIP Shu Ming BB E
Mr. CHAN Man Wai BRICB ST HE
Mr. KU Hok Chiu hHEREE
Mr. CHEN Zhi Xiong (appointed on 1 July 2020) BREHEEERZZEZZEFLA—BZHF)
Mr. WONG Chung Yeung (appointed on 1 July 2020) BERABAERZZZEF LA —HZEMF)
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIAFRITES
Mr. KWONG Chi Keung B AR L&
Mr. KWONG Ping Man B AR 32 45 A
¢ Mr. CHEUNG Kin Ting Alfred R BR BE ST A

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of READNGEGERMAZIE FERL
Association, Ms. WENG Peihe, Mr. CHAN Man Wai, Mr. CHEN Zhi T MRXELEE REBELEE BELHEE
Xiong, Mr. WONG Chung Yeung and Mr. KWONG Chi Keung will FEERLEBRERTAES  WEKE
retire as directors by rotation and, being eligible, will offer ERREFASEERERETES-
themselves for re-election as directors at the forthcoming AGM.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence RARERE EMBRAESASGH R EEE
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from Mr. KWONG Chi BERAEE - B EE MR ESLENTF
Keung, Mr. KWONG Ping Man and Mr. CHEUNG Kin Ting Alfred. EBIGHHRE -RARSTAH  KAF]
As at the date of this report, the Company still considers these NREBZEBUIFNTEESEER LT D °
independent non-executive directors to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Ms. WENG Peihe, Mr. YIP Shu Ming, Mr. CHAN Man
Wai, Mr. KU Hok Chiu, Mr. CHEN Zhi Xiong and Mr. WONG
Chung Yeung, all being executive directors, has entered into a
service contract with the Company for a specific term of three
years commencing from 1 July 2020 and expiring on 30 June
2023, which could be terminated by either party by giving not less
than three months’ written notice.

Each of Mr. KWONG Chi Keung, Mr. KWONG Ping Man and Mr.
CHEUNG Kin Ting Alfred, all being independent non-executive
directors, has been appointed for a specific term of three years
commencing from 1 July 2020 and expiring on 30 June 2023,
which could be terminated by either party by giving not less than
one month’s written notice. The appointments are subject to the
provisions of the Articles of Association with regard to vacation of
office of directors, removal and retirement by rotation of directors.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has
a service contract with the Company or any of our subsidiaries
which is not terminable by the employer within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group are disclosed in the section headed
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 24
to 38 of this annual report.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Option Scheme and Share Award Plan
disclosed below, at no time during the year was the Company, its
holding company, or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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EERFTETBRAERKRG REH
ROREEEBINESRAR

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

RZZ_TF+_A=+—H ARAESF
REBITBRABRARA MEEMAREE
(E&REFEHLHEEMEXVE) 2B - 18
Rl REEET  BEALERARFAR
EREFLHEGRIIEB2MEFEZELMA
ZREEAR  IRBERETAAMEAR
AR ER AR FHBEINNT

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares and
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
as follows:

Number of ordinary shares "7

wE R E g e
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding as
Held by at 31 December
controlled 2020
Beneficial corporation R-ZE-ZHF
Name of Director owners B EEH Totai +=A=+—H
EEnA ERnERA EEER B BRESNBEIHL
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each
of the Company
RAFEREMECOSE T2 E B
Ms. WENG Peihe 29,950,000 (L) — 29,950,000 (L) 2.78%
SERLZ+
Mr. YIP Shu Ming — 247,364,000 (L) 247,364,000 (L) 22.98%
ER AT E (Note 2) (#i22)
Mr. CHAN Man Wai 10,198,000 (L) 352,500,000 (L) 362,698,000 (L) 33.70%
|§$ ‘X {ﬁ 5% /_:E (Note 3) (1 :£3)
Mr. KU Hok Chiu — 105,850,000 (L) 105,850,000 (L) 9.83%
HEBELE (Note 4) (I} #4)
Mr. CHEN Zhi Xiong 5,020,000 (L) — 5,020,000 (L) 0.46%
PR A S
Mr. WONG Chung Yeung 990,000 (L) — 990,000 (L) 0.09%

BERBRE
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Notes:

(1) The letter “L” denotes the directors’ long position in the shares of
the Company or the relevant associated corporation.

2) These shares were held by Current Success Investments Limited,
which was wholly-owned by Mr. YIP Shu Ming. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. YIP Shu Ming is taken to be interested in the shares held
by Current Success Investments Limited.

(3) These shares were held by Best Active Investments Limited, which
was wholly-owned by Mr. CHAN Man Wai. By virtue of the SFO,
Mr. CHAN Man Wai is taken to be interested in the shares held by
Best Active Investments Limited.

(4) These shares were held by Bright Mind Investments Limited, which
was wholly-owned by Mr. KU Hok Chiu. By virtue of the SFO, Mr.
KU Hok Chiu is taken to be interested in the shares held by Bright

Mind Investments Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
directors or chief executive of the Company had registered an
interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
that was required to be recorded pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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WHEER -
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K ERE GBI - & 28 5 & AR A R Bright
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Bl o
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN FEBRRRRORAERRG N EzS

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests or short positions of the RZEBEZZEF+ZA=+—08 RERARK
1D AB B AR 1D P AR IR 3B 5 I HA & 16 1 55336
ARG BFHEEZEL([EENMPEED
B EEERIRE 2&F (R
RAIEBEREFBITHABRINGT :

persons (other than a director or chief executive of the Company)
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO (“SFO Register”) were as follows:

Number and

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding as at

class of 31 December 2020

securities ™o 7 R-ZE-EF

Name of Shareholders Capacity/nature of interest EHHEER +=A=+-—H

BR#ER 5o fEEME 7 g BRESAES L

Current Success Investments Beneficial owner 247,364,000 22.98%
Limited vete 2/ (#i2) EmEAA shares (L)
P& A5 (L)

Ms. WONG Sau Mui MNete 2 Interest of spouse 247,364,000 22.98%
& A g 2 Bic 48 # 2 shares (L)
B (L)

Best Active Investments Limited Beneficial owner 352,500,000 32.75%
(Note 3) (A 3) BB A shares (L)
B3 (L)

Ms. AU Yim Bing Mt 3 Interest of spouse 362,698,000 33.70%
@ WK 2L 4 s Bt 48 # 2= shares (L)
P& A5 (L)

Bright Mind Investments Beneficial owner 105,850,000 9.83%
Limited (ete 4)(#:24) EmEAA shares (L)
B (L)

Ms. KU Wai Man ete 9 Interest of spouse 105,850,000 9.83%
HER LW fig (B 7 &= shares (L)
B3 (L)

Orchid Asia IV, L.P. (Note §(#i5) Beneficial owner 82,705,000 7.68%
EmEA A shares (L)
P& A5 (L)
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Approximate

percentage of

Number and shareholding as at
class of 31 December 2020

securities e 7 R-ZE-FF

Name of Shareholders Capacity/nature of interest EHHER +=ZHA=+—8H

BRER B EmHE 7 g BESAT O

OAIV Holdings, L.P. (ote 9(iis) Interest of a controlled 82,705,000 7.68%
corporation shares (L)
P K B 5 A3 (L)

Orchid Asia IV Group Management, Interest of a controlled 82,705,000 7.68%
Limited (Note & (izz5) corporation shares (L)
EEHEE R AR (L)

Orchid Asia IV Group, Interest of a controlled 82,705,000 7.68%
Limited (Note 9 (17t5) corporation shares (L)
RAEHAE R A& (L)

Orchid Asia IV Investment, Interest of a controlled 82,705,000 7.68%
Limited (Note 9 (i25) corporation shares (L)
SV K B 5 B3 (L)

YM Investment Limited ®ete 9 (#izs) Interest of a controlled 84,115,000 7.81%
corporation shares (L)
EEHEE R AR (L)

Ms. LAM Lai Ming (et 9 Founder of a discretionary 84,115,000 7.81%
BB B 2 - (s trust shares (L)
2REETAITA A& (L)

Mr. LI Gabriel Note & Founder of a discretionary 84,115,000 7.81%
BB S A its) trust shares (L)
REFTEIMA A3 (L)

The LI Family (PTC) Limited Mete 945 Trystee 84,115,000 7.81%
ZEEA shares (L)
AR (L)
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The letter “L” denotes the shareholder’s long position in the shares
of the Company.

These shares were beneficially owned by Current Success
Investments Limited, which was wholly-owned by Mr. YIP Shu Ming
(“Mr. YIP”). By virtue of the SFO, Mr. YIP is taken to be interested
in the shares held by Current Success Investments Limited. Ms.
WONG Sau Mui (“Ms. WONG”) is the spouse of Mr. YIP. Under the
SFO, Ms. WONG is taken to be interested in the shares in which
Mr. YIP is interested.

These shares were beneficially owned by Best Active Investments
Limited, which was wholly-owned by Mr. CHAN Man Wai (“Mr.
CHAN?"). By virtue of the SFO, Mr. CHAN is taken to be interested
in the shares held by Best Active Investments Limited. Ms. AU Yim
Bing (“Ms. AU”) is the spouse of Mr. CHAN. Under the SFO, Ms.
AU is taken to be interested in the shares in which Mr. CHAN is
interested.

These shares were beneficially owned by Bright Mind Investments
Limited, which was wholly-owned by Mr. KU Hok Chiu (“Mr. KU”).
By virtue of the SFO, Mr. KU is taken to be interested in the shares
held by Bright Mind Investments Limited. Ms. KU Wai Man (“Ms.
KU”) is the spouse of Mr. KU. Under the SFO, Ms. KU is taken to
be interested in the shares in which Mr. KU is interested.
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5) So far as the directors are aware, these shares were beneficially
owned as to 82,705,000 shares by Orchid Asia IV, L.P. and as to
1,410,000 shares by Orchid Asia IV Co-investment, Limited. Orchid
Asia IV, L.P. was wholly controlled by OAIV Holdings, L.P., which
was in turn wholly controlled by Orchid Asia IV Group
Management, Limited, which was in turn wholly controlled by
Orchid Asia IV Group, Limited, which was in turn wholly controlled
by Orchid Asia IV Investment, Limited, which was approximately
92.61% controlled by YM Investment Limited. Orchid Asia IV Co-
investment, Limited was wholly controlled by YM Investment
Limited. Under the SFO, OAIV Holdings, L.P., Orchid Asia IV Group
Management, Limited, Orchid Asia IV Group, Limited, Orchid Asia IV
Investment, Limited and YM Investment Limited were taken to be
interested in the shares beneficially owned by Orchid Asia IV, L.P.,
and YM Investment Limited was taken to be interested in the
shares beneficially owned by Orchid Asia IV Co-investment, Limited.
Ms. Lam Lai Ming and Mr. Li Gabriel were also interested in YM
Investment Limited through The LI Family (PTC) Limited as Trustee
and were taken to be interested in the shares in which YM
Investment Limited was interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, no person
(other than a director or chief executive of the Company) had
registered an interest or short position in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of
the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND SHARE AWARD
PLAN

(a)

70

Share Option Scheme

Up to and as at 31 December 2020, no options have been
granted or agreed to be granted pursuant to the Share
Option Scheme. Summary of some of the principal terms of

the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

(1)

(1)

Purposes

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Company to grant options to selected participants
as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the
Company. The directors consider the Share Option
Scheme, with its broadened basis of participation, will
enable the Company to reward the employees, the
directors and other selected participants for their
contributions to the Company.

Qualifying participants

The directors may, at its absolute discretion, invite any
person belonging to any of the following classes of
participants, to take up options to subscribe for

shares:

(aa) any employee (whether full-time or part-time
including any executive director but excluding
any non-executive director) of the Company, any
of its subsidiaries or any entity (“Invested Entity”)
in which any member of the Company holds an
equity interest;

(bb) any non-executive directors
independent non-executive directors)

(including
of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity;

TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED &' (FREl) 2R BIR D F
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(cc)

(ee)

(ff)

(hh)

any supplier of goods or services to any member
of the Company or any Invested Entity;

any customer of any member of the Company or
any Invested Entity;

any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to
any member of the Company or any Invested
Entity;

any shareholder of any member of the Company
or any Invested Entity or any holder of any
securities issued by any member of the
Company or any Invested Entity;

any advisor (professional or otherwise) or
consultant to any area of business or business
development of any member of the Company or
any Invested Entity;

any other group or classes of participants who
have contributed or may contribute by way of
joint venture, business alliance or other business
arrangement to the development and growth of
the Company;

and, for the purposes of the Share Option Scheme,
the offer for the grant of option may be made to any

company wholly owned by one or more persons

belonging to any of the above classes of participants.

(cc)

(ff)
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(i) Maximum number of shares

(aa)

The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon the exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme adopted by the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 30% of the share
capital of the Company in issue from time to
time.

The total number of the shares which may be
allotted and issued upon the exercise of all
options (excluding, for this purpose, options
which have lapsed in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Company) to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme of the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in
issue on the Listing Date (“General Scheme
Limit”), being 80,000,000 shares (after pro-rata
adjustments upon the Share Subdivision effective
on 5 June 2018).
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(cc)

Subject to (aa) above but without prejudice to (dd)
below, the Company may seek approval of the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting
to refresh the General Scheme Limit provided
that the total number of shares which may be
allotted and issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option scheme of the
Company must not exceed 10% of the shares in
issue as of the date of approval of the limit and,
for the purpose of calculating the limit, options
(including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or
exercised in accordance with the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Company) previously granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Company will not be
counted. The circular sent by the Company to its
shareholders shall contain, among other
information, the information required under Rule
17.02(2)(d) of the Listing Rules and the
disclaimer required under Rule 17.02(4) of the
Listing Rules.

Subject to (aa) above and without prejudice to
(cc) above, the Company may seek separate
shareholders’ of the Company approval in
general meeting to grant options beyond the
General Scheme Limit or, if applicable, the
extended limit referred to in (cc) above to
participants specifically identified by the
Company before such approval is sought. In
such event, the Company must send a circular
to its shareholders containing a generic
description of the specified participants, the
number and terms of options to be granted, the
purpose of granting options to the specified
participants with an explanation as to how the
terms of the options serve such purpose and
such other information required under Rule
17.02(2)(d) of the Listing Rules and the
disclaimer required under Rule 17.02(4) of the
Listing Rules.

(cc)
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(v)

V)

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued and which may fall
to be issued upon the exercise of the options granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Group (including both exercised
or outstanding options) to each grantee in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued
share capital of the Company for the time being
(“Individual Limit”). Any further grant of options in
excess of the Individual Limit in any 12-month period
up to and including the date of such further grant
must be separately approved by the shareholders of
the Company in general meeting of the Company with
such grantee and his associates abstaining from
voting. The number and terms (including the exercise
price) of options to be granted must be fixed before
the approval of the shareholders of the Company and
the date of the board meeting for proposing such
further grant should be taken as the date of grant for
the purpose of calculating the exercise price under
note (1) to Rule 17.03(9) of the Listing Rules.

Time of acceptance and exercise of options

An option may be accepted by a participant within 21
days from the date of the offer of grant of the option.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time during
a period to be determined and notified by the
directors to each grantee, which period may
commence from the date of the offer for the grant of
options is made, but shall end in any event not later
than 10 years from the date of grant of the option
subject to the provisions for early termination thereof.
Unless otherwise determined by the directors and
stated in the offer for the grant of options to a
grantee, there is no minimum period required under
the Share Option Scheme for the holding of an option
before it can be exercised.

TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED &' (FREl) 2R BIR D F

(iv) HEDHE[EBRIELN_FR

(V)

RER2ME A BB RTERER
Pt At 8 R A R BAE ] E AR B ik
REt@mEamBERE(REE
BRETEXRHRTEREE) D
AR EARABITRETEITH
kﬁ%%? SHBEARAERE

TTREA1% ([MERI LR )  RE
ﬁmﬁﬂ%%ﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%

ZB(BREZA)LE-FETHE
BER EROBRE ARAR

AIRRAE FERSARRIRRS

TTHEAE - ﬁ%&A&ﬁ 5 YN
MEKRKE-BREMRAE
11mthEH HiIRH 2B

BB RIGH (BIERITRE) B
MEH%$“Th$mﬁmﬁ
CBETETEEMS CR2
Wﬁ%h%Zi%AQEZE%

WERREBH -

EARIT IR IEA R

SEEBANROBEREZZA B
E21TH RN B

BRETRNEEE T BANSE
% N\ B HA RS P B R AR 1 B IR AT
EIMIERITE  ZHE T RS
BREEZCBERHRL  BER
WA ZE P B B AR 7 B BR12 1045
A TE i A L - M AT AR BB B R 1R S
RERIE -BRIFEEZITRAER
FEmARARDERENEH

HIER - B RIBE AR R S AR E
EIERAMREAERENSR
BAPR



(Vi)

(vir)

(viif)

Subscription price for the shares and
consideration for the option

The subscription price for the shares under the Share
Option Scheme shall be a price determined by the
directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for trade in one or
more board lots of the shares on the date of the offer
for the grant, which must be a business day; (i) the
average closing price of shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of the offer for the
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on
acceptance of the grant of an option within such time
as maybe specified in the offer for the grant, which
shall not be later than 21 days from the date of the
offer for the grant.

Period of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme remained in force for a
period of 10 years commencing on 25 March 2011
and expired on 24 March 2021.

Shares available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme

As at 31 December 2020 and 24 March 2021 (being
the date of expiry of the Share Option Scheme), the
total number of shares which may be issued pursuant
to the exercise of options which may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme was 80,000,000
shares (after pro-rata adjustments upon the Share
Subdivision which became effective on 5 June 2018),
representing about 7.43% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at 31 December 2020 and 24
March 2021. As at the date of this report and, there
are no outstanding share options and thus no further
shares available for issue under the expired Share
Option Scheme.

(Vi)
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(viii)
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Share Award Plan

The Board may, subject to and in accordance with the rules
of the Share Award Plan, make an award of shares to
certain classes of eligible participants as specified in the
Share Award Plan, as determined by the Board from time to
time on the basis of the Board’s opinion as to the proposed
awardee’s contribution and/or future contribution to the
development and growth of the Group. The shares and
other trust fund for the implementation of the Share Award
Plan are administered by a trustee or trustees (the “Share
Award Plan Trustee”) to be appointed by the Company.

Under the Share Award Plan, the Board shall determine the
eligibility of the eligible participants and the number of
shares to be awarded (the “Awarded Shares”) and notify the
Share Award Plan Trustee of the making of awards. The
Share Award Plan Trustee shall then set aside the
appropriate number of Awarded Shares pending the transfer
and vesting to the relevant participants out of a pool of
shares which shall comprise of, among others, shares either
(1) transferred to it from any person (other than the Group)
by way of gift; (2) purchased by the Share Award Plan
Trustee out of the funds received by it by way of gift or for
nominal consideration; and (3) subscribed for or purchased
by the Share Award Plan Trustee out of the funds allocated
by the Board out of the Group’s resources, subject to the
terms and conditions of the rules of the Share Award Plan.
The Share Award Plan Trustee may purchase shares on the
Stock Exchange at the prevailing market price or off market.
In respect of off-market transactions, purchases shall not be
made with any connected person, nor shall the purchase
price be higher than the lower of (1) the closing market price
on the date of such purchase, and (2) the average closing
market price for the five preceding trading days on which
shares of the Company were traded on the Stock
Exchange. In any given financial year of the Company, the
maximum numbers of shares to be purchased by the Share
Award Plan Trustee shall not exceed 10% of the total
number of shares in issue of the Company at the beginning
of such financial year. The Share Award Plan Trustee may
also subscribe for new shares at par or at such other
subscription price as instructed by the Board out of the
Group’s contribution if the Board considers it appropriate to
do so. The Company shall comply with the relevant Listing
Rules when granting the Awarded Shares.
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The legal and beneficial ownership of the relevant Awarded
Shares shall vest in the relevant selected participant within
10 business days after the latest of (1) the date specified on
the notice of the award given by the Board to the Share
Award Plan Trustee; and (2) where applicable, the date on
which the condition(s) or performance target(s) (if any) to be
attained by such selected participant as specified in the
related notice of award have been attained and notified to
the Share Award Plan Trustee by the Board in writing.

The Share Award Plan was valid and effective for a term of
10 years commencing from 25 March 2011 and expired on
24 March 2021. During the year, a total of 5,245,000
Shares were granted and vested under the Share Award
Plan, of which 3,080,000 were existing Shares purchased by
the Share Award Plan Trustee on the open market and
granted to Ms. Weng Peihe, an executive director, and
2,165,000 were new Shares issued under the Share Award
Plan. Taking into account the effect of retrospective
adjustment made to the number of shares as a result of
Share Subdivision, up to and as at 31 December 2020,
37,249,000 shares had been regarded as awarded and
vested to selected grantees under the Share Award Plan.
Save as disclosed above, there was no movement of the
Awarded Shares during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 30(a) to the financial statements and in
the section headed “Directors’ Report — Continuing Connected
Transactions” in this annual report, no director nor a connected
entity of a director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance in relation to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party which subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had conducted the following non-
exempt continuing connected transactions which are required to
be disclosed pursuant to Rule 14A.71 of the Listing Rules. Save
as disclosed below, the related party transactions disclosed in
note 30 to the financial statements are either fully exempt or do
not constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(1) Continuing Connected Transactions — CCT
Tenancy Agreements

Meco Group, a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability, is principally engaged in property investment.
It is owned as to 50% by Mr. CHAN Man Wai, 35% by Mr.
YIP Shu Ming and 15% by Mr. KU Hok Chiu. Dongguan
Well Excellent, a company established in the PRC with
limited liability, is principally engaged in property leasing. It is
wholly owned by HK Well Excellent, an investment holding
company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability and
owned as to 50% by Mr. CHAN Man Wai, 35% by Mr. YIP
Shu Ming and 15% by Mr. KU Hok Chiu. As Mr. CHAN Man
Wai, Mr. YIP Shu Ming and Mr. KU Hok Chiu are the
controlling shareholders of the Company and executive
directors, each of Meco Group and Dongguan Well Excellent
is a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules.

Pursuant to the CCT Tenancy Agreements entered into
between the Group as lessee and Meco Group or (as the
case may be) Dongguan Well Excellent as landlord, the
Group agreed to lease the premises set out below for a
specific term expiring on 31 December 2021. The leased
premises are used for operation of restaurant or ancillary
office by the respective Group member.
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Further details in relation to the premises leased from Meco
Group and Dongguan Well Excellent are set out below:
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(i) Location; and
(i) Use

() 6% %

(i) A7

Total rent payable under
the CCT Tenancy
Agreements (Note 1)
RECCTHEHHREMH
wewEH)

Term of lease (Note 2)
HERR (M i2)

Terms

£58

S/N Date of Agreement

Fi#  HEBAH

Leases with Meco Group:

HEBKEHE:

(1) 21 December 2018
“E2-\F+ZA=t+-H

2) 21 December 2018
“E-N\F+ZA-t-H

(i) Units 2101, 2102, 2103, 2105,
2106, 2107 and 2108, Block
H, Expo Square, Dongcheng
District, Dongguan City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC

(i) Restaurant

() PEEREREMRMELE
BESHHE2101 + 2102+ 2108 »
2105+ 2106 + 2107 %2108F

(i) BB

Units, 2058, 2068, 2078,

2088, 2098, 2248, 2258,

2308, 2318, 2348, 2358,

2418, 2428, 2438, 2448,

2458, and 2468, Shenzhen

Cinema, Zhonghai Commercial,

1 Xinyuan Road, Luohu District,

Shenzhen, the PRC

i) Restaurant

BRI ZAEHRERIRHE
B R I8 BT2058 - 2068
2078 ~ 2088 ~ 2098 * 2248
2258 ~ 2308 » 2318 + 2348 »
2358~ 2418 ~ 2428 - 2438
2448 ~ 2458 [12468%F

(i) BB

1 January 2019 to
31 December 2021:
RMB3,960,000
“Z-NF-A—-HZE
—E-—F
+ZR=+—-8:
AR #3,960,0007T

1 January 2019 to
31 December 2021:
RMB1,656,000
“T-NF-A—-BZE
—E-—F
ToAZt-R:
AR #1,656,0007C

Monthly rent of RMB110,000 is
payable by the Group to
Meco Group in advance
each month. Such rent is
inclusive of rental tax and
exclusive of water,
electricity, telephone,
television, heat, gas,
property management,
cleaning, internet, car park
and indoor facilities
maintenance fees.

AEEABAREREBRA
% AT AR %110,000
ToZEEBEREHE
TREKE 5 &j
E ZHE BRRE MK
B MEEEE FZE.
THE FRERENR
MREE -

Monthly rent of RMB46,000 is
payable by the Group to
Meco Group in advance
each month. Such rent is
inclusive of rental tax and
exclusive of water,
electricity, telephone,
television, heat, gas,
property management,
cleaning, internet, car park
and indoor facilities
maintenance fees.

AREATARERERRM

S AT A K %46,000
ToZEeBEReRE
TREKE BE BE
: EHE KRE
B MEEEE FZE.
g FEEREAR
MEHEE -
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(i) Location; and

Total rent payable under
the CCT Tenancy

(i) Use Agreements (Note 1)
S/N  Date of Agreement () %% BRECCTHEHRBEEMN  Term of lease (Note 2) Terms
F¥  HEBH (i) A# weBEWH) HERK (W 22) 8
(3) 21 December 2018 (i) Units 3018, 3078, 3088, 3098, 1 January 2019 to Monthly rent of RMB29,000 is 1 January 2019 to
—Z2-\f+ZA=1+—-H 3108, 3118 and 3128 Level 3, 31 December 2021: payable by the Group to 31 December 2021
Shenzhen Cinema, Zhonghai RMB1,044,000 Meco Group in advance —Z-NF-R-HZ
Commercial, 1 Xinyuan Road, —T-NE-A-HZE each month. Such rent is —TZ-F
Luohu District, Shenzhen, the —T-—F inclusive of rental tax and +-A=+-H
PRC +-A=+—8: exclusive of water,
(i) Ancillary office AR %1,044,0007C electricity, telephone,
() FEFYEREHTERIR television, heat, gas,
8 R S B B 33018 - property management,
3078 ~ 3088 ~ 3098 * 3108 * cleaning, internet, car park
3118J23128% and indoor facilities
(i) BERAZE maintenance fees.
AEBERBARNESEER
Al 5 A7 A R #29,000
ToZMeREReH A
TREKE B BiF
E-ERE BEAE KA
B OMEERE FZE.
LBE REEREAR
M EE o
(4) 21 December 2018 (i) Unit 4001 on Level 4, 1 January 2019 to Monthly rent of RMB110,000 is 1 January 2019 to
Z-\§+=ZA=+—H Shenzhen Cinema, Zhonghali 31 December 2021: payable by the Group to 31 December 2021

80

Commercial, 1 Xinyuan Road,
Luohu District, Shenzhen, the
PRC

(i) Restaurant

() PEORYIE B 5 ER5
B BRI B R 4184001

(i) £E
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RMB3,960,000
ZZ-NF-A—-HZ
—E-—F
ToA=t-R:
AR #3,960,0007C

Meco Group in advance
each month. Such rent is
inclusive of rental tax and
exclusive of water,
electricity, telephone,
television, heat, gas,
property management,
cleaning, internet, car park
and indoor facilities
maintenance fees.

AEEARBAREREER
Al A7 AR 110,000
o ZMeaEEEH B
TREKE BE BFE
: ERE RRE
B ONEEEE FZE.
A2 FEEREARX
H#ES

—E-nE-A-HZ
—E-—F

+-A=+-8
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(i) Location; and

Total rent payable under
the CCT Tenancy

(i) Use Agreements (Note 1)
S/N  Date of Agreement () %% BRECCTHEHRBEEMN  Term of lease (Note 2) Terms
Fs$ HHEBES (i) A% HEeBBEW21) HERR (W it2) FH
(6) 21 December 2018 (i) Unit 1 on Level 6, Shenzhen 1 January 2019 to Monthly rent of RMB114,000 is 1 January 2019 to

“Z-N\§+ZA=t+—H

Lease with Dongguan Well Excellent:

ARZHFECHE:

(6) 21 December 2018
—E-\E+ZAZt+-H

Cinema, Zhonghai Commercial,
1 Xinyuan Road, Luohu District,
Shenzhen, the PRC

(i) Restaurant

() FERYIZEHNENEB R
FEBR R BRI E

(i) BB

(i) Units 3106, 3107, 3108, 4106,
4107 and 4108, Block H, Expo
Square, Dongcheng District,
Dongguan City, Guangdong
Province, the PRC

(i) Restaurant

() PEERERETRAE
E%HE3106 - 3107 + 3108
4106 + 41072 4108E

(i) 28

31 December 2021
RMB4,104,000
—E-NF-A-HE
—E-—F
+=ZA=+-R:
AR %4,104,0007C

1 January 2019 to
31 December 2021:
RMB3,276,000
—T-NF-A-HZ
—E-—F
TZAZt-A:
AR 3,276,000

payable by the Group to
Meco Group in advance
each month. Such rent is
inclusive of rental tax and
exclusive of water,
electricity, telephone,
television, heat, gas,
property management,
cleaning, internet, car park
and indoor facilities
maintenance fees.

AEEAREGAREREER
A AT AR 114,000
ToZMeREReH A
TREKE B BiF
E-ERE BEAE KA
B OMEERE FZE.
LBE REEREAR
MREE -

Monthly rent of RMB91,000 is
payable by the Group to
Dongguan Well Excellent
each month. Such rent is
inclusive of rental tax and
exclusive of water,
electricity, telephone,
television, heat, gas,
property management,
cleaning, internet, car park
and indoor facilities
maintenance fees.

AEEANEARNRZHER

Al S 5 A 78 A K 591,000

o ZMeaEEeH |

TREKE BEE B&F

B ERE RAE KK

B OMEEEE F2E.

FAE FEEREAR

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 £ ¥&

31 December 2021
—2-AF-A-RE

-7

1 January 2019 to
31 December 2021
“T-AF-A-BE
—E-—F

+ZA=+-8



Directors’ Report
EEERE

82

Notes:

(1) The rent was arrived at after arm’s length negotiations between
the parties and determined by reference to the prevailing
market rent of the premises.

(2) To ease the impact of COVID-19 pandemic on the Group’s
business, Meco Group and Dongguan Well Excellent have
during the year waived the rental of certain months in
respect of all those properties they leased to the Group as
restaurants and ancillary office.

Please refer to note 30 to the financial statement for the
rental details during the year.

3) The tenancy has early termination as at 12 April 2020 due to
the closure of the restaurant.

The independent non-executive directors have reviewed and
confirmed that the above continuing connected transactions
undertaken by the Group were entered into (i) in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (i) on
normal commercial terms or better; and (iii) in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing the transactions on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole, as required in
Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules.

Ernst & Young, the Company’s auditors, was engaged to
report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with the Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ernst &
Young have issued their unqualified letter containing the
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above by the Group in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

PENSION SCHEMES

The employees employed in the PRC are members of the state-
managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the PRC
government. The PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement benefit
schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefit schemes is to make the
required contributions under the schemes.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“MPF Scheme”) for all its qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in funds under the control of trustees. Under the rule of the
MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the scheme at rate specified in the rules.

The Group contributed RMB23.3 million to the above mentioned
schemes for the year ended 31 December 2020.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
were less than 30% of the Group’s total sales for the year and
aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers were less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases for
the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year, the trustee of the Share Award Plan adopted on
25 March 2011 by the Company and amended in 2013, pursuant
to the terms of the trust deed of the aforesaid plan, purchased on
the Stock Exchange a total of 3,082,000 shares of the Company at
a total consideration of approximately RMB2,299,000. Please refer
to note 27 to the financial statement for further details. Save as
disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is
recommended by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of
their merit, qualifications and competence. The emoluments of the
directors are reviewed by the Remuneration Committee, having
regard to the Company’s operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics. The Company has adopted
Share Option Scheme and Share Award Plan as an incentive to
directors and eligible employees, details of each of the schemes
are set out on pages 70 to 77 in this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on
a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the shareholders of the Company by reason of their
holding of the Company’s securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25%
of the Company’s total issued share capital was held by the
public as at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

None of the directors or substantial shareholders of the Company
or any of their respective associates has engaged in any business
that competes or may compete with the business of the Group.
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NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKING

Mr. CHAN Man Wai, Mr. YIP Shu Ming, Mr. KU Hok Chiu, Best
Active Investments Limited, Current Success Investments Limited
and Bright Mind Investments Limited, have given an irrevocable
non-compete undertaking in favour of the Group pursuant to
which each of them irrevocably, unconditionally, jointly and
severally undertaken, among other matters, not to, directly or
indirectly, carry on, invest in or be engaged in any business which
would or may compete with the business of the Group. Details of
the Non-compete Undertaking have been set out in the section
headed “Relationship with our Controlling Shareholders” in the
Prospectus.

The Non-compete Undertaking has become effective from the
Listing Date.

The Company has received the confirmation from the Controlling
Shareholders in respect of their compliance with the terms of the
Non-compete Undertaking from the Listing Date to the date of
this report.

The independent non-executive directors had reviewed the
compliance with and enforcement of the terms of the Non-
compete Undertaking by the Controlling Shareholders from the
Listing Date to the date of this report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that the
Directors for the time being of the Company shall be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them, shall or may incur or sustain
by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about
the execution of their duty or supposed duty in their respective
office, except such (if any) as they shall incur or sustain through
their own fraud or dishonesty.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liabilities and
costs associated with defending any proceedings which may be
brought against the Directors of the Company.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme and Share Award Plan
disclosed herein, no equity-linked agreements were entered into
during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting policies,
accounting standards and practices adopted by the Group and
the consolidated financial statements and results of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young will retire and a resolution for their re-appointment
as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
AGM.

On behalf of the Board
WENG Peihe
Chairman

Hong Kong
26 March 2021

86 TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED &= (R El) $Z=IRB IR A

i 3R 8 175

B L BE B 3 B 2 B AR A BV MR 15 SR 1 B
5h - AR R A R B SR A (7 85
181 4 T 574 0] AR SR 40 50 58
BERZESg

% 04 4 45 B 4R A 2 BT I
B ARAEEBE=T

S

il

E’_

fn\#é i3
IH%E

“EE+-AS+ - BLEFEZRAMBR
RREME -
% ]

KB R AN E AR R E - AR EEBCR
BEARELHRERER ENZRITLKE
FHEM =75 AT A AR R B X B o

RREES
Sy
HEXR

BB
T —®=ZA=-+xH



Independent Auditor’s Report

Ernst & Young
22/F, CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

e
EY:

To the shareholders of Tang Palace (China) Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tang
Palace (China) Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 95 to 223, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 December 2020,
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then

and of its consolidated financial

ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our

audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our
audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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BYZEMERSE
KEY AUDIT MATTER (Continued) BARETSE®
How our audit addressed the ZEEEBHRRE
Key audit matter key audit matter BREENEE 40 fa] & ¥ 1Y
Revenue recognition W 7 T 5%

The Group generates revenue
mainly from its restaurant
operations in Hong Kong and
the People's Republic of China
(the “PRC”) at the point in time
when control of the asset is
transferred to the customer,
generally on the delivery of the
goods. Majority of the sales of
the Group were cash sales
and credit card sales. The
Group also issued prepaid
cards to customers whereby
customers would deposit
certain amounts of cash in
advance in prepaid cards
which would be utilised for
future food consumption.
During the year, revenue
recorded under prepaid cards
amounted to
RMB217,146,000.

There is a risk of improper
revenue recognition which may
lead to a material
misstatement on revenue.
Accordingly, we identified this
matter as a key audit matter.

Relevant disclosures are
included in notes 3.1 and 5 to
the financial statements.

We have tested the design,
implementation and operating
effectiveness of the key
controls relating to revenue
recognition. We also
performed audit procedures
including cut-off test for the
transactions near the year end
and test of transactions by
vouching, on a sampling basis,
to the sales summary, sales
invoices and general ledger
postings. In addition, we
performed analytical review to
consider unusual trends that
could indicate material
misstatement to revenue.
Regarding the prepaid
customers, we checked to the
utilisation of card balances in
sales system and general
ledger postings for proper
revenue recognition upon the
consumption of food and
beverages.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER (Continued) BARETSE®
How our audit addressed the ZEEEBTHRR
Key audit matter key audit matter BRETEE o0 ] PE ¥ Y

Impairment assessment on property, plant and equipment

and right-of-use assets

As at 31 December 2020, the
Group had property, plant and
equipment of RMB130,739,000
and right-of-use assets of
RMB210,212,000. The Group’s
management performed
impairment assessment of
property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets for
identified restaurants with
impairment indicators by
estimating the recoverable
amount of their property, plant
and equipment and right-of-
use assets based on value-in-
use calculation. Impairment
losses of approximately
RMB2,503,000 and
RMB5,802,000 have been
recorded to write down the
carrying amount of certain
property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets,
respectively, to their estimated
recoverable amounts.
Significant judgement was
involved in the assessment of
the recoverable amounts of the
property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets of
those restaurants, including
assumptions on the budgeted
gross margin of respective
restaurants and discount rates.

Relevant disclosures are
included in notes 3.2, 13 and
14 to the financial statements.

Our audit procedures included
evaluating the Group’s policies
and procedures in identifying
impairment indicators and
assessing management’s
significant assumptions
adopted in the cash flow
forecasts by reviewing the
Group’s business plan and
evaluating the growth rate by
comparing to market data. In
addition, we involved our
internal valuation specialists to
assist us with our assessment
of the methodology and the
discount rates used to
determine the recoverable
amounts of the property, plant
and equipment and right-of-
use assets of those
restaurants. We also assessed
certain inputs of the cash flow
forecasts by comparing to
underlying records of the
Group.

90 TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED &' (FREl) 2R BIR D F

WH BERREAREHEEEH B

EaF 14
R-ZZE_FTF+_-A
=+—H ESEHE

EME - BEREHEA
R #130,739,0007T &
FPREBEBEARE
210,212,0007T ° B&%
EEREREHINNOY
¥ BEMZERER
EEEETRENMS -
ARARIEHABREREZN
REETTRENR
LREAEETE &
TEYME - BE - RiE
REREEERNIKE
8- BRSREEE
4 A R #2,503,0007T
& A R ¥5,802,000
T ABETYE K
BEREEBEREAEEE
KIERTE B 2 RIMUR = H
HEr AU & & - FE 1
ZEEBBEBHNYE  BE
LERERERAREEDN
AR E S5 REKXA
B BIEESEBENTE
HEFME RN KK

R EE RS R
RERMEE3.2 « 135014 ©

EEMBHIEFE
EE BE£EEE
BB ERIZ S @
RIEMZRF - LA
KiBREL &%
S R
BEETHEE2ME
BRERANERR
= WiERBET S
BB EER
Koo BEFERE
FETEMANIEHE
ERBHE ST
BUNBEZEERE
M- BE KK
BRERAEEEN
CIQEIER-1: 050N
MARIR K - EETR
BHE E5£@E2
fEEERE &R - AP IR
EREEANBY

W A BUE



OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT X EBHHREAESHERRARKENS
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL £

STATEMENTS (Continued)

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lai Ho Yin.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

M AEE 32
:2-51? (=] jﬁ o %:Z
Year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_T_TFT_A=THLFE

2020 2019
—E-EF —E—NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k3 ARET T ARBF T
Revenue U 28 5 1,105,103 1,495,087
Other income H bl A 5 41,044 41,393
Cost of inventories consumed EEFEKAR (422,638) (557,020)
Staff costs B TR (364,582) (472,265)
Depreciation of items of property, plant 1% - /= LR EHEB
and equipment e (48,267) (47,121)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE (92,718) (93,709)
Utilities and consumables NEFZHEFZ KB R (66,641) (81,707)
Rental and related expenses e REBRX (12,752) (25,607)
Other expenses HEmAX (93,362) (89,405)
Finance costs &b & Bk AR 7 (24,437) (27,707)
Share of losses of joint ventures JEheeE A FEBE (2,223) (3,817)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX Bt Al = F 6 18,527 138,122
Income tax expense B = 10 (15,369) (45,276)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REERF 3,158 92,846
Attributable to: EBER
Owners of the Company ZN/NEIEZ RSN 4,379 91,283
Non-controlling interests IR E S (1,221) 1,563
3,158 92,846
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE ZARAFEZEREREES
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF AEHZERER
THE COMPANY 12
Basic and diluted (RMB cents) EXREEARE D) 0.41 8.52

FRZFEREZFBERM MR 115 B

note 11 to the financial statements. B’ o

Details of the dividends proposed for the year are disclosed in
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SeEETEWER

Year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_T_TFT_A=THLFE

: 2020 2019
: —EEF —E-NF
? RMB’000 RMB’000
§ ICTEE N ARETR
3
; PROFIT FOR THE YEAR A E R 3,158 92,846
:, OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME H b2 (F5i8) W&
g
: Other comprehensive (loss)/income that may RBEEEIB A aEE#H D 4A
' be reclassified to profit or loss in EERNEMEE
subsequent periods: (B18) Mz
;
;' Exchange differences on translation of BRESBIINEHR 2
foreign operations fEH =58 (844) 3,511
, Other comprehensive income/(loss) that will REEE M S~ EFH
] not be reclassified to profit or loss in DHEEBREMNHM
= subsequent periods: 2EWE(EE)
Financial assets at fair value through other  ZAFEFFAHMEME
comprehensive income: Wz emEE:
Changes in fair value N ERE 5,454 (15,326)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) AEEHtE2mEWE
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (1] H#E 4,610 (11,815)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR FAZHEHWBEAE
THE YEAR 7,768 81,031
Attributable to: BB
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIEZ RSN 8,989 79,468
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR A (1,221) 1,563
7,768 81,031
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e MR &

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Investments in joint ventures

Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Financial asset at fair value through profit

or loss
Prepayments and deposits
Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade and other receivables and
prepayments

Due from joint ventures

Tax recoverable

Pledged time deposits

Time deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables

Due to related companies
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Lease liabilities

Tax payable

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Lease liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities
NET ASSETS
EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners of the

Company
Issued capital
Reserves

Non-controlling interests
Total equity
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31 December 2020

R-ZE_THE+_-_A=+—H

2020 2019
—R_RF —hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBTT
130,739 151,047
210,212 276,542
1,403 2,429
11,730 13,354
13,620 23,146
26,208 27,456
35,339 35,090
19,252 15,222
448,503 544,286
48,815 51,344
45,938 46,812
1,403 3,733
359 —
85,444 80,000
32,000 34,000
402,033 382,454
615,992 598,343
298,979 305,348
55 404
74,760 80,000
86,857 79,5083
10,478 10,511
471,129 475,766
144,863 122,577
593,366 666,863
169,256 230,929
5,232 6,895
174,488 237,824
418,878 429,039
45,821 45,726
370,332 378,167
416,153 423,893
2,725 5,146
418,878 429,039

YIP Shu Ming
E &8

Director
EF

CHAN Man Wai
BR 3 1

Director
EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 December 2020
BE-T-TF+-A=+—ALFE

Year ended 31 December 2019

BE-_2-NF+-A=+—-RLEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAREARLE

Fair value
reserve of
financial assets

at fair value
through other
Share Statutory  comprehensive Exchange Non-
Issued premium general income fluctuation Retained controliing Total
capital account reserve (‘FVOCI)  Other reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
RATEA
EhzEhs
HEBEEZ
BERE  RAEER AT-REE  LTEEE EfE EXRDEE RBEF @i FEkER s
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
i3 AR#TL  ARBTR  ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARBTR  ARETR ARBTR  AR%TR  ARETR
(ote 25) (ote 26) (ote 26)
(H#25) (H#2) (H#2)
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-A-R 45,496 9,853 33,156 4407 74,326 (1878) 292,072 457432 5407 462,839
Profit for the year ERET - - - - - - 91,283 91,283 1,563 92,846
Other comprehensive (loss)fincome for the year:  EAEMH2E (BE) /s
Changes in fair value of financial assets BATEFALB2ERES
at fair value through other comprehensive SHEEIATE
income, net of tax ug Hk - - - (15,326) - - - (15,326) - (15,326)
Exchange diflerences on translation RERNEBEREE
of foreign operations - - - - - 3511 - 3511 - 3511
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year £ A2 (558) /W88 - - - (15,326) - 3511 91,283 79,468 1,563 81,031
Issue of shares under share award plan BERG#DH ARG 256) o) 20 5833 - - - - - 6,063 - 6,063
Dividends paid to non-controling interests TRERRERRS - - - - - - - - (1,824) 1,824)
Final 2018 dividend declared ER-2-\FRERS - - - - - - (86,940) (86,940) - (86,940)
Interim 2019 special diidend “E-NERERHIRE 1t - - - - - - (32,130) (32,130) - (32,130)
Transfer from retaind profits BRARBEN - - 1456 - - - (1,456) - - -
At 31 December 2019 RZE-AE+-A=1-R 45,126 15,686" 34612 (10,919 74,326 1,633 262,829 423893 5146 429,039
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RERRBER
Year ended 31 December 2020

BE-T-FFT-A=t-ALFE

Year ended 31 December 2020 BE-Z_Z2+-A=+—HLEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARRREAESE
Fair value
Share Statutory reserve of Exchange Non-
Issued premium general financial assets Other fluctuation Retained controlling
capital account reserve at FVOCI reserve reserve profits interests  Total equity
BATEIA
Hp2EkE
hemEEL
BRRA  ROEER tE-REE ATERE RthE EXRDERE REEH B FERER 23
Nofes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
# ARETL  ARBTZ ARMTR ARETZ ARETR  ARMTR ARETRI  ARMTR ARETR  ARETR
(note 25) (note 26) (note 26)
(K#25) (H#26) (H#26)
At 311 January 2020 R-E-%£-f-8 45,726 15,686* 34,612 (10,919 74,326 1,633* 262,829 423,893 5,146 429,039
Proft for the year ERgi = = = = = = 4319 4319 (1,221) 3,158
Other comprehensive incomefloss) for the year: ~ £REM2ERE/(H8):
Changes in fair value of financial assets RATEFALB2ERES
at fair value through other SREEIATE
comprehensive income, net of tax ug Kk = = = 5,454 = = = 5,454 - 5,454
Exchange differences on translation BERNEHEREE
of foreign operations = = = = = (844) = (844) = (844)
Total comprenensive income{loss) for the year ER2ERE/ (BB 6E - - - 5,454 - (844) 4379 8,989 (1,221) 7,768
Shares repurchased RiAEE 7 - - - - (2,299) - - (2,299) - (2,299)
Award of repurchased shares under share RERDBEHHRLERRE
award plan 27 = = = = 2,298 = = 2,298 = 2,298
Issue of shares under share award plan BERG RO ARG 256) 95 2115 - - - - - 2210 - 2210
Dividends paid to non-controling interests TREERERES - - - - - - - - (1,200) (1,200)
Interim 2020 special dividend ZRCRERERIRS 1 - - - - - - (18,938) (18,938) - (18,938)
Transfer of fair value reserve upon disposal of HEERATESALNZE
financial assets at FVOCI haheBAEER RE
L - - - 4,085 - - (6085 - - -
Deregistration of subsidiaries HEHEAR = = (2,516) - - - 2516 - - -
Transfer from retained profits BRARBEN - - 503 - - - (503) - - -
At 31 December 2020 R-E-FF+-f=1-R 45,821 17,801 32,599 (1,380)* 74,325 789" 246,198 416,153 2725 418,878
These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of . HERERFPEEHEAMBREPNES

RMB370,332,000

(2019: RMB378,167,000)

statement of financial position.

in the consolidated

A R370,332,000 (ZE— F : A
R #378,167,0007T) °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER

Year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_T_TFT_A=THLFE

Notes
o &t
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHHMBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 81 A
Adjustments for: KR
Finance costs b & Bk A 7
Interest income B WA 5
Depreciation of items of property, plant 1% - M= LR EHHE
and equipment BEE 6
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CRAEEENE 6
Covid-19-related rent concession AR AR B
from lessors COVID-198 /Y
e ER
Gain on revision of lease terms arising A HEEESRA
from changes in the non-cancellable B8 M ¥ E B
periods of leases T8 2 W= 6
Amortisation of intangible assets | EEEH 6
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEYE - BE KK
plant and equipment HBIEE 2 K18 6
Impairment of property, plant and L E o R
equipment BHRE 6
Impairment of right-of-use assets TREEERE 6
Impairment of an investment in H—EREEE QA
a joint venture B 6
Impairment of an amount due from JEW —F & &R A
a joint venture B Z BB 6
Share of losses of joint ventures EiEAE R aEE
Equity-settled share award plan IR A4 B AR 1) B2 Eh &t
expense g1 27

Decrease/(increase) in inventories

Decrease in trade and other receivables
and prepayments

(Decrease)/increase in trade and other
payables

Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from
with joint ventures

(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to
related companies

Cash generated from operations
Interest paid

Interest element of lease payments
Income taxes paid

Net cash flows from operating activities

FERL,(Em)

B 5 N B Al WA e
B SRR A

B 5 K H AR OR
CRt4>) 742

W& & REIRIE
wD (&)

FE& 1 B8 & A B 3R
CRL )/ #m

RERPABET
EfHE
HENKZHE B
BB

REZPAERENE
Es

100 TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED &' (FREl) 2R BIR D F

2020 2019
—2=%F —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARET T
18,527 138,122
24,437 27,707
(5,757) (6,003)
48,267 47,121
92,718 93,709
(19,426) -
(1,572) -
1,022 1,255
1,156 345
2,503 589
5,802 1,372
1,199 -
1,500 511
2,223 3,817
4,508 6,063
177,107 314,608
2,529 (4,269)
625 10,300
(6,369) 16,422
830 (1,087)
(349) 51
174,373 335,075
(1,870) (2,151)
(22,567) (25,556)
(22,528) (46,819)
127,408 260,549




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEEHESRER

Year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HLHFE

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING

ACTIVITIES
Interest received

Purchases of items of property,

plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment
Advance of a loan/capital injection to

joint ventures

Purchases of financial asset at fair value

through profit or loss

Proceeds from disposal of financial asset
at fair value through other

comprehensive income

Decrease in time deposits
Increase in pledged time deposits

Net cash flows used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES

Repurchase of ordinary shares

New bank loans

Repayment of bank loans

Dividends paid

Dividends paid to non-controlling

interests

Principal portion of lease payments
Net cash flows used in financing activities
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents at

beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes,

net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

Non-pledged time deposits with original
maturity of less than three months

when acquired

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in
the consolidated statement of cash

flows

2020 2019
—E_EF —E-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
i it AR T AR T T
RETHMEBESHRE
2 U F B 5,757 6,003
BEWE WEMEH
18 H 13 (31,947) (59,305)
LENE BERSEE
BE ZF1B3IE 117 —
BRERETEEE
NG (1,760) (12,102)
BERAFLESAEZR
HEmEE - (27,456)
HERAFEGTAEM
AR ENE/EE
") BT 15 5078 14,457 -
EBFZORL 2,000 30,000
2 # E B 17 g (5,444) —
RETHARERE
e (16,820) (62,860)
BETBHMEESRE
o] 7% 58 A (2,299) —
HILIRITE R - 80,000
BERITEN (880) (79,200)
B E (18,938) (119,070)
A FEFE B AR B
(1,200) (1,824)
HENRKZAESEH D (65,163) (98,640)
RELHMAREAE
FRE (88,480) (218,734)
BeRBSEEEM
(R 2) F5E 22,108 (21,045)
FolzBRekBeEE
. 382,454 400,354
ERED) B FR
(2,529) 3,145
ERZRERBEELSEE
402,033 382,454
ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁ%%z
e LRI 20 351,618 203,195
BEWENEREIHE DR
= & A &y &K 19 E 5
53 20 50,415 89,259
REEBRSRERIE
MIRE KBS E
402,033 382,454
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7 3 3% Bt &

31 December 2020
R-ZZFZFTF+-A=+—H

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Tang Palace (China) Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the Companies
Law as an exempted company with limited liability and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The registered office of the
Company is located at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and
its principal place of business is located at Unit 3, 10th
Floor, Greenfield Tower, Concordia Plaza, No. 1 Science

Museum Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was principally engaged in

REEHR

EE(FRBE)ERERARTARAD
BREBEABARHASEHREEMALZ
ERRBRRAR HBROREL
RpMABRAR(BRA]) LM &

N B K 5 fff #% = BE (12 74 Cricket Square,

Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand

Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands -

METELXMBLUNBTENLEME

fE 1SR R 7R (B 15 P EE 10183 »

FRA AEEIERFEEREZERR

restaurant operations and food productions. FhEE °
Information about subsidiaries MBATIMER
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as FEWBRAFBENOT
follows:
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ equity interest
establishment registered share indirectly attributable
Name and operations capital to the Company Principal activities
EMRL/ BROLER/ FRABEEERE
£ BIREX B SR A Bk TEER
2020 2019
b Xl T F
Beijing Chaobei Tang Palace Seafood People’s Republic of HK$3,000,000 100 100 Restaurant operations
Restaurant F&B Co., Ltd.” China (the “PRC”)/ 3,000,000 7. MEEE
TRBNEESERHHRRERAR" Mainland China
hEARLM
(@) ,/#
it
Beijing Chaowang Tang Palace Seafood ~PRC/Mainland China HK$3,000,000 100 100 Restaurant operations
Restaurant Co., Ltd.” RE /B 3,000,000/ T KEEE

TRAZEZEENERAT"
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1.

Name

=1

CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operations
B VYe
PR £

Notes to the Financial Statements
BY 7 Ry R B &

31 December 2020

Issued ordinary/
registered share
capital
BRAEER/
Z R A

1.

R-—E-—=%

—_—= ==

2020
—e-2

Beijing Haoyuan Tang Palace Seafood
Restaurant Co., Ltd.”
tRERERREHERDA

Beijing Mingzu Tang Palace Seafood
Restaurant Co., Ltd.”

TRREESBEHBRAA"

Beijing New Century Tang Palace
Seafood Restaurant Co., Ltd.”
TRt gHnERAF"

Beijing Well Excellent Tang Palace
F&B Co., Ltd.”
IREEESHRRAERRA"

Beijing Well Excellent Tang Palace
Seafood Restaurant Co., Ltd.”
TREEEEEEHBRAF"

Chengdu Tang Palace Social Place
Catering Management Co., Ltd."”
KBEBEEREBFRAA"

PRC/Mainland China
RE/FEA

PRC/Mainland China
wE/ BB AL

PRC/Mainland China
RE/FEA

PRC/Mainland China
hE/ BB R

PRC/Mainland China
RE/FEA

PRC/Mainland China
wE/HE R

RMB3,000,000
3,000,000 A &

RMB5,000,000
5,000,000A R &

RMB3,000,000
3,000,000 A &

HK$3,000,000
3,000,000 7

RMBS5,000,000
5,000,000 A K

RMB100,000
100,000A R &

YNCIK-€-3¢ )

F+-_A=+—8H

MEBASMES (&)

Percentage of
equity interest

indirectly attributable

to the Company
ERREEEGRE
BAlkk

2019

Principal activities

IRER

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 £ ¥&

Restaurant operations

@
BERE

Restaurant operations
SEER

Restaurant operations

s
BERE

Restaurant operations
SEER

Restaurant operations

s
BERE

Restaurant operations
SRR
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7 3 3% B &

31 December 2020
R-ZZFZFTF+-A=+—H

1.

104

CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Name

=1

Place of

incorporation/ Issued ordinary/
establishment registered share
and operations capital
EMRL/ BROLER/
BYREXLE Z R A

Chengdu Well Excellent Tang Palace
Catering Management Co., Ltd.”
KB EEEERERERAA"

Dongguan Expo Tang Palace Seafood
Restaurant Co., Ltd.”

REHEESERHBRAA"

Hangzhou Well Excellent Tang Palace
Seafood Restaurant Co., Ltd.”
MMNEEESBRHERDA"

Prosperous Tang F&B Group Limited
BERREEERAA

Shanghai Changning Tang Palace
Seafood Restaurant Co., Ltd.”
TEREEEAEHBERDOA

Shanghai Honggiao Tang Palace Seafood

Restaurant Co., Ltd.”

LBARESEENBERRA"

PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000
RE/FEA 100,000A B #
PRC/Mainland China HK$3,000,000
RE/FEA 3,000,0007% 7¢
PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000
RE/FEA 3,000,000A R
Hong Kong HK$100,000
) 100,000/ 7T
PRC/Mainland China HK$3,000,000
RE/FEA 3,000,000 7¢
PRC/Mainland China RMB6,000,000
RE/FEA 6,000,000A R

TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED &= (R El) $Z=IRB IR A

YNCIK-€-3¢ )

Percentage of
equity interest

indirectly attributable

to the Company

FOABRESERE

Bk

2020 2019
=Sl A C TN F

MEBASMES (&)

Principal activities

IRER

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

Restaurant operations
KEER

Restaurant operations
KEER

Restaurant operations
KEER

Intangible asset holding
REEVEE
Restaurant operations

REEE

Restaurant operations
KEER
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Notes to the Financial Statements
BY 7 Ry R B &

31 December 2020

R-—E-—=%

—_—= ==

YNCIK-€-3¢ )

F+-_A=+—8H

CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Name

=1

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

Issued ordinary/
registered share

and operations capital
EMRL/ BROLER/
BYREXLE Z R A

Percentage of
equity interest

indirectly attributable

to the Company

Shanghai Kang Feng Food Co., Ltd.”
FERERMERRAT

Shanghai Minhang Mixc Tang Palace
F&B Co., Ltd.”
TERTERERERERDA

Shanghai Pudong Tang Palace Seafood
Restaurant Co., Ltd.”

LERRESEENBERRA"

Shanghai Putuo Tang Palace F&B Co.,
Ltd.”
TEERESERARAR"

Shanghai Yangpu Tang Palace Seafood
Restaurant Co., Ltd.”

LEBRESEENERAA"

Shanghai Yunshang Tang Palace F&B
Co., Ltd.”™
LBELEZEHERAA™

Shanghai Zhabei Tang Palace Seafood
Restaurant Co., Ltd.”

LERLEEERNERAE"

PRC/Mainland China
RE/FEA

PRC/Mainland China
RE/FEA

PRC/Mainland China
RE/FEA

PRC/Mainland China
RE/FEA

PRC/Mainland China
RE/FEA

PRC/Mainland China
RE/FEA

PRC/Mainland China
RE/FEA

US$150,000
150,000 T

RMB100,000
100,000A B %

US$150,000
150,000 T

RMB500,000
500,000 A &

HK$12,000,000
12,000,0007% 7T

RMB100,000
100,000A B %

HK$1,000,000
1,000,000/ 7T

MEBASMES (&)

Principal activities

KRR EESRE
BAlkk TEEH
2020 2019
t b2 T 0F
100 100 Food production
RmiEE
100 100 Restaurant operations
BegeE
100 100 Restaurant operations
BegeE
100 100 Restaurant operations
BegeE
100 100 Restaurant operations
BeZeE
100 100 Restaurant operations
BegeE
100 100 Restaurant operations
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1.

106

CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

1.

YNCIR-§ 3¢

g)

MEBASMES (&)

Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ equity interest
establishment registered share indirectly attributable
Name and operations capital to the Company Principal activities
EMRL/ BROLER/ ERREEEGRE
£ BYREXLE Z R A Bk TEXEK
2020 2019
it il T NF
Shenzhen Tang Palace Social Place PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000 100 100 Restaurant operations
Catering Management Co., Ltd.”" FE/RE AL 50,000 A R # KEER
ATES N EERERERAA
Shenzhen Well Excellent Tang Palace PRC/Mainland China HK$3,000,000 100 100 Restaurant operations
F8B Co., Ltd.” mE/FER 3,000,000/ 7 s
REEEHEERRERDA
Suzhou Well Excellent Tang Palace PRC/Mainland China HK$3,000,000 100 100 Restaurant operations
Seafood Restaurant Co., Ltd.” FE/RE AL 3,000,000/ 7T KEEE
BNAZERBERBERDA
Tang Dian (Shanghai) Catering PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 70 70 Restaurant operations
Management Co., Ltd.”" mE/ mERM 5,000,000A R meBeE
EH(LB)ERERARRA"
Tang Dian Shayue (Shanghai) Catering ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000 70 70 Restaurant operations
Management Co., Ltd.” FE/RE AL 100,000\ K KEER
BEVE(LB)ERERERAA
Tang Dian Yueshu (Shanghai) Catering ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000 70 70 Restaurant operations
Management Co., Ltd.”" mE/ RERM 100,000 A & # BeBeE

%5 (LE) SRELARAT"

TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED &= (R El) $Z=IRB IR A
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements
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B S R B A

31 December 2020
F+-—A=+—H

MEBASMES (&)

Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ equity interest
establishment registered share indirectly attributable
Name and operations capital to the Company Principal activities
EMRL/ BROLER/ ERREEEGRE
£ BYREXLE Z R A Bk TEXEK
2020 2019
= =t 3 _T-NF
Tang Palace Social Place Catering Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100 100 Restaurant operations
Limited BB 10,000,000/ 7. GeEm
BRI EERERAT
Tang Palace Trading (Shanghai) PRC/Mainland China US$2,100,000 100 100 Retail and wholesale
Co., Ltd.” mE/FER 2,100,000% 70 trading
BEEES(LB)BRAA SERMEES
Vital Power (Beijing) Catering PRC/Mainland China RMB21,000,000 90 90 Restaurant operations

Management Co., Ltd.”
ENHARER)ERERBRAAT

hE/RE AL

enterprises under Mainland China law.

>k

21,000,000 A &

These subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned

These subsidiaries are registered as limited liabilities company

(wholly owned by corporation) under Mainland China law.

disclosed above are for identification only.

The English company names of the Company’s subsidiaries

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the

results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the

net assets of the Group. Details of other subsidiaries had

not been included as, in the opinion of the directors, they

did not have any material

statements.

impact on these financial

s
BERE

T OREWBARRETE AR
BRI ARINERE-

v ZENBARREBETEAMERZE
MRZREREERRCEABE) -

" FPRARTBMBLRR 2 KX HIEE

A -

EERA LEMIAKETEFEFHE
XEIBRAKEEEFETZAD
ORI N =N 3 N A
BARZARE AREER/ZTM
BRARHZFNBERERLBEMEKR

2/ 48
%
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

108

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(*HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
(“HKICPA"),

in Hong Kong and the

Certified Public Accountants
principles generally accepted
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

accounting

Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for certain financial instruments
which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
“Group”) ended 31
December 2020. A subsidiary is an entity (including a

referred to as the for the vyear
structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED &' (FREl) 2R BIR D F

2.1
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

B S R B A

31 December 2020
RZE_ZEF+-_A=+—H
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2.1

2.2

110

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continuea)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)
If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises

liabilities of the
subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling

(i) the assets (including goodwill) and
interest and (i) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment
retained and (jiii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or
The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to

loss.

profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018 and the following revised HKFRSs
for the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3  Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions (early adopted)

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material

and HKAS 8

TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED &' (FREl) 2R BIR D F
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

The nature and the impact of the Conceptual Framework for

Financial Reporting 2018 and the revised HKFRSs are

described below:

(@)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018
(the “Conceptual
comprehensive set of concepts for financial reporting

Framework”) sets out a

and standard setting, and provides guidance for

preparers of financial statements in developing
consistent accounting policies and assistance to all
parties to understand and interpret the standards. The
Conceptual Framework includes new chapters on
measurement and reporting financial performance, new
guidance on the derecognition of assets and liabilities,
and updated definitions and recognition criteria for
assets and liabilities. It also clarifies the roles of
stewardship, prudence and measurement uncertainty
in financial reporting. The Conceptual Framework is not
a standard, and none of the concepts contained
therein override the concepts or requirements in any
standard. The Conceptual Framework did not have any
impact on the financial

significant position and

performance of the Group.

B S R B A

31 December 2020
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

112

(b)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The
amendments clarify that for an integrated set of
activities and assets to be considered a business, it
must at a minimum, an

include, input and a

substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create output. A business
of the

processes needed to create outputs. The amendments

can exist without including all inputs and
remove the assessment of whether market participants
are capable of acquiring the business and continue to
produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether
acquired inputs and acquired substantive processes
together significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs. The amendments have also narrowed the
definition of outputs to focus on goods or services
provided to customers, investment income or other
income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the
amendments provide guidance to assess whether an
acquired process is substantive and introduce an
optional fair value concentration test to permit a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The Group has
applied the amendments prospectively to transactions
or other events that occurred on or after 1 January
2020. The amendments did not have any impact on
the financial position and performance of the Group.

TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED &' (FREl) 2R BIR D F
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(©

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
address issues affecting financial reporting in the
period before the replacement of an existing interest
rate benchmark with an alternative risk-free rate
(“RFR”). The amendments provide temporary reliefs
which enable hedge accounting to continue during the
period of uncertainty before the introduction of the
alternative RFR. In addition, the amendments require
companies to provide additional information to
investors about their hedging relationships which are
directly affected by these uncertainties. The
amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group as the Group
does not have any interest rate hedging relationships.

Amendment to HKFRS 16 provides a practical
expedient for lessees to elect not to apply lease
modification accounting for rent concessions arising as
a direct consequence of the covid-19 pandemic. The
practical expedient applies only to rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the pandemic
and only if () the change in lease payments results in
revised consideration for the lease that is substantially
the same as, or less than, the consideration for the
lease immediately preceding the change; (i) any
reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and (iii)
there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease. The amendment is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020 with
earlier application permitted and shall be applied
retrospectively.

B S R B A

31 December 2020
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

114

(d)

(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, certain
monthly lease payments for the leases of the Group’s
leased properties have been reduced or waived by the
lessors upon reducing the scale of production as a
result of the pandemic and there are no other changes
to the terms of the leases. The Group has early
adopted the amendment on 1 January 2020 and
elected not to apply lease modification accounting for
all rent concessions granted by the lessors as a result
of the pandemic during the year ended 31 December
2020. Accordingly, a reduction in the lease payments
arising from the rent concessions of RMB19,426,000
has been accounted for as a variable lease payment
by derecognising part of the
crediting to profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2020.

lease liabilities and

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states that
information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. The amendments clarify that
materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of
information, or both. The amendments did not have
any significant impact on the financial position and

performance of the Group.
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2.3

Notes to the Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendment to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 27

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Insurance Contracts®

Insurance Contracts® ¢

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current® °

Property, Plant and
Equipment: Proceeds before
Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?

Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRS 9, lllustrative
Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and HKAS41?
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2.3

116

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong
Interpretation & Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains
a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October
2020 to align the corresponding wording with no change in
conclusion

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued
in October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the
temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39
rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1
January 2023

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is described below.
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2.3

Notes to the Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a
reference to the previous Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements with a reference to the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in
June 2018 without significantly changing its requirements.
The amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its
recognition principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual
Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or a
liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities and
contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of
HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred
separately rather than assumed in a business combination,
an entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual
Framework. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that
contingent assets do not qualify for recognition at the
acquisition date. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments prospectively from 1 January 2022. Since the
amendments apply prospectively to business combinations
for which the acquisition date is on or after the date of first
application, the Group will not be affected by these
amendments on the date of transition.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16 address issues not dealt with in the previous
amendments which affect financial reporting when an
existing interest rate benchmark is replaced with an
alternative  RFR. The Phase 2 amendments provide a
practical expedient to allow the effective interest rate to be
updated without adjusting the carrying amount when
accounting for changes in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows of financial assets and liabilities, if the
change is a direct consequence of the interest rate
benchmark reform and the new basis for determining the
contractual cash flows is economically equivalent to the
previous basis immediately preceding the change. In
addition, the amendments permit changes required by the
interest rate benchmark reform to be made to hedge
designations and hedge documentation without the hedging
relationship being discontinued. Any gains or losses that
could arise on transition are dealt with through the normal
requirements of HKFRS 9 to measure and recognise hedge
ineffectiveness. The amendments also provide a temporary
relief to entities from having to meet the separately
identifiable requirement when an RFR is designated as a risk
component. The relief allows an entity, upon designation of
the hedge, to assume that the separately identifiable
requirement is met, provided the entity reasonably expects
the RFR risk component to become separately identifiable
within the next 24 months. Furthermore, the amendments
require an entity to disclose additional information to enable
users of financial statements to understand the effect of
interest rate benchmark reform on an entity’s financial
instruments and risk management strategy. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2021 and shall be applied retrospectively,
but entities are not required to restate the comparative
information. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in
HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a gain
or loss when the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a
business. For a transaction involving assets that do not
constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only
to the extent of the unrelated investor’'s interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date
of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was
removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new
mandatory effective date will be determined after the
completion of a broader review of accounting for associates
and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available
for adoption now.

Amendments to HKAS 1 clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The
amendments specify that if an entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying
with specified conditions, the entity has a right to defer
settlement of the liability at the end of the reporting period if
it complies with those conditions at that date. Classification
of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will
exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability. The
amendments also clarify the situations that are considered a
settlement of a liability. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and
shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that
asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds
from selling any such items, and the cost of those items, in
profit or loss. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be
applied retrospectively only to items of property, plant and
equipment made available for use on or after the beginning
of the earliest period presented in the financial statements in
which the entity first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37,
the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that
relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a
contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an allocation
of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract
(e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of
property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract
as well as contract management and supervision costs).
General and administrative costs do not relate directly to a
contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly
chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied to contracts for
which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the
beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first
applies the amendments. Earlier application is permitted.
Any cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments
shall be recognised as an adjustment to the opening equity
at the date of initial application without restating the
comparative information. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are expected to be applicable to the
Group are as follows.

° HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that
an entity includes when assessing whether the terms
of a new or modified financial liability are substantially
different from the terms of the original financial liability.
These fees include only those paid or received
between the borrower and the lender, including fees
paid or received by either the borrower or lender on
the other’s behalf. An entity applies the amendment to
financial liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or
after the beginning of the annual reporting period in
which the entity first applies the amendment. The
amendment is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendment is not expected to have a
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

° HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments
from the lessor relating to leasehold improvements in
lllustrative Example 13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This
removes potential confusion regarding the treatment of
lease incentives when applying HKFRS 16.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

122

POLICIES

Investments in joint ventures

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
where exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require the unanimous consent of the parties

sharing control.

The Group’s investments in joint ventures are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting
less any impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of joint ventures is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when
there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of
the joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in
the joint ventures, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Goodwill
arising from the acquisition of joint ventures is included as
part of the Group’s investments in joint ventures.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investments in joint ventures (Continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not
investment continues to be

remeasured. Instead, the

accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of joint control over the joint venture, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair
value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the
joint venture upon loss of joint control and the fair value of
the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is

recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value-in-use and its fair value less costs of
disposal,

the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely

and is determined for an individual asset, unless

independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the
in which it arises

period in those expense categories

consistent with the function of the impaired assets.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to
the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it

arises.
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity and debt investments at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either in the principal market for the asset or liability,
or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market

participants act in their economic best interest.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which

the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueqd)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(0

(i

(i)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(0

(i

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (Continued)
(b)  (Continued)

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)() has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii)y the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueqd)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment
to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements The shorter of the period of the
respective lease and 5 years
Furniture, fixtures and 20%-383%
equipment
Motor vehicles 20%-25%
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
reviewed,

depreciation method are and adjusted if

appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continueqd)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least
at each financial year end.

Trademarks, franchises, licences and concession right

Purchased trademarks, licences and concession right are
stated at cost less any impairment losses and are amortised
on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of
10 years.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueqd)

130

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(@

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date
applicable,

less any lease incentives received. Where
the cost of a right-of-use asset also
includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset
or the site on which it is located. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings 2-10 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group
by the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is
calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease
payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if
there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies
the recognition exemption for leases of low-value
assets to leases of office equipment and laptop
computers that are considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that
do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair value,
plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do
not contain a significant financing component or for which
the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured
at the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not SPPI are classified and measured fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, while
financial assets classified and measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income are held within a business
model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which
are not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or

impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under HKAS
32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for
trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-
by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss
when the right of payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably, except when the Group
benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the
cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are
recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity
investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive

income are not subject to impairment

assessment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with
net changes in fair value recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as
other income in the statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In
that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Company could be
required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value
through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include
cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the
next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is
required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of
the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort, including historical and
forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset
to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A
financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueqd)

138

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive

income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to

impairment under the general approach and they are

classified within the following stages for measurement of
ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the simplified
approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 —

Stage 2 —

Stage 3 —

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial
assets and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continueqd)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified
approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk,
but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime
ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to
the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, payables or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, amounts due to related companies, lease liabilities
and interest-bearing bank borrowings.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueqd)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities at
amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts

and demand deposits, and short term highly
of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the

Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to
be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax

relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is

recognised outside profit or loss, either in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations
and practices prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the
Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable

temporary differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that

the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible

temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax

credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor

taxable profit or loss; and
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (Continued)
° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed
at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either
the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for
which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
The variable

goods or services to the customer.

consideration is estimated at contract inception and
constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty

with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point

in time when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer, generally on delivery of the goods.
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POLICIES (continueqd)
Revenue recognition (Continued)
Other income

Commission income is recognised at the later or when: (i)
the subsequent sales occurs; and (i) the performance
obligation to which some or all of the sales-based
commission has been allocated is satisfied.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received
or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Group transfers the related goods or services.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of
the related goods or services to the customer).

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share award plan for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Employees (including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity
instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to
the fair value at the date at which they are granted. Further
details of which are given in note 27 to the financial
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfiled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the
end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that  will
statement of profit or loss for a period represents the

ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date
fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but
without an associated service requirement, are considered
to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market
or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance
and/or service conditions are satisfied.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (Continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had
not been modified, if the original terms of the award are
met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the share-
based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee

as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or the
employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the

previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

The cost of cash-settled transactions is measured initially at
fair value at the grant date using the Black-Scholes formula,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the
instruments were granted. The fair value is expensed over
the period until the vesting date with recognition of a
corresponding liability. The liability is measured at the end of
each reporting period up to and including the settlement
date, with changes in fair value recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of its payroll costs to the central pension
scheme. The contributions are charged to the statement of
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the central pension scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part
of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (continueq)
Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare
interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are
recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed
and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is
the Company’s functional and presentation currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the
fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an
advance consideration, the date of initial transaction is the
date on which the Group initially recognises the non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for

each payment or receipt of the advance

consideration.
The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries are
currencies other than the RMB. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the
Company at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of the subsidiaries operate outside
Mainland China are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of the subsidiaries operate outside
Mainland China which arise throughout the year are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

3.1
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3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
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AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in
the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the
Group has to exercise judgement in the area of asset
impairment, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event
has occurred that may affect the asset value or such event
affecting the asset value has not been in existence; (2)
whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by
the net present value of future cash flows which are
estimated based upon the continued use of the asset or
derecognition; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to
be applied in preparing cash flow projections including
whether these cash flow projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected by
management to determine the level of impairment, including
the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the
cash flow projections, could materially affect the net present
value used in the impairment test.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND ESTIMATES
Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

The Group depreciates the different classes of property,
plant and equipment on a straight-line basis at applicable
depreciation rates over the estimated useful life. The useful
life is estimated with reference to the wear and tear history
of property, plant and equipment. The estimated useful life
reflects the directors’ estimate of the periods that the Group
intends to derive future economic benefits from the use of
the Group’s property, plant and equipment.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets

The Group determines whether property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are impaired when there
are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value of
the property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its
fair value less costs of disposal and its value-in-use. The
calculation of the fair values less costs of disposal is based
on available date from binding sales transactions in an arm’s
length transaction of similar assets or observable market
price less incremental costs for disposing of the asset.
When value-in-use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows from the
asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows. Further details are given in notes 13 and
14 to the financial statements.

B S R B A

31 December 2020
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3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
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AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of intangible assets

The Group determines whether intangible assets are
impaired whenever there are any indicators of impairment.
This requires an estimation of the value-in-use of the cash-
generating units. Estimating the value-in-use requires the
Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash
flows from the cash-generating units and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows. The carrying amount of intangible
assets at 31 December 2020 was RMB1,403,000 (2019:
RMB2,429,000). Further details are given in note 15 to the
financial statements.

Fair value of unlisted equity and debt investments

The Group determines the fair values of unlisted equity and
debt investments based on quoted market prices whenever
possible. If such quoted market prices are not available or
an active market does not exist, the Group determines the
fair values based on internally developed models which
make use of market parameters, such as net assets of the
underlying investments. Any changes in these parameters
can affect the estimates of the fair values of these
investments. The Group classifies the fair values of the
unlisted equity and debt investments as Level 3. The fair
values of the unlisted equity and debt investments at 31
December 2020 were RMB13,620,000 (2019:
RMB13,842,000) and RMB26,208,000 (2019:
RMB27,456,000), respectively. Further details are included in
note 17 to the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit
in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing
rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of
interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a
similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary
to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use
asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore
reflects what the Group “would have to pay”, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available (such as
for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing transactions)
or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and
conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not in
the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group estimates
the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest
rates) when available and is required to make certain entity-
specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone
credit rating).

B S R B A

31 December 2020
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on geographical areas and has four
reportable operating segments as follows:

(i) the Southern China region;

(i) the Eastern China region;

(i) the Northern China region; and
(iv)  the Western China region.

Management monitors the results of its operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment
profit/loss, which is a measure of adjusted operating profit/
loss before tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is
measured consistently with the Group’s profit before tax
except that certain interest income, share of losses of joint
ventures, unallocated expenses and finance costs (other
than interest on lease liabilities) are excluded from such
measurement.

Inter-segment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third
parties at the then prevailing market prices.

Information about major customers

There was no revenue from customers individually
contributing over 10% to the total revenue of the Group.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
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4, REPHTER (#)

(Continued)
Segment information about the business is presented X HHMEREIMT
below:
Northern China Eastern China Southern China Western China Total
FELH FERD PEFH FEED @it

Segment revenue (1oe 5 PHE (o)
Sales to external customers NPEFHE
Inter-segment sales PHEHE

Reconcilation: Bk
Elimination of inter-segment sales 7 257 $4 & 134

Revenue e

Segment results PHEE

Reconcilation: b

Interest income %‘ I8

Share of losses of joint ventures  EfEA 4 ARER

Unallocated expenses i PREX

Finance costs (other than BARA(TRE
interest on lease liabilties) REBEHS)

Profit before tax BB AR

Other segment information: ~ Eft 4 H &%

Depreciation of items of property, 1% BE k% &
plant and equipment ERHfE

Depreciation of items of FREEEBENE
right-of-use assets

Impairment of property, plant 9% BER&&ELZ
and equipment HE

Impairment of right-of-use assets (£ A& &7 2 5ifE

Amortisation of intangible assets B EEE &

Capital expenditure* ERRR

2020
S8C%%

RMB'000
ARBTR

2019
“E-nE

RMB'000
ARETR

2020
S8C%%

RMB'000
ARBTR

2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
LSRN --v: RN --v: REIUIN -¢-¢: IO
AR RMB'000 AR RMB'000 AUeH RMB'000 RMB'000
i /=x7x DS =n7c N A=v7r ISR

W735 416331 457648 STB0T2 247308 878393 112,807 124291 1105108 1,495,087
- - 52,898 58,700 - - - - 52,898 58,700
W7345 416331 510546 634772 247308 878393 112,807 124291 1158001 1,558,787
(52898 (58,700)

1105103 1495087

11,975 57,879 35,704 73,059 (@070 33577 24,361 25,785 67970 190300
114 70

(2.223) (3817)

(45464  (26920)

(1,870) ©2,151)

1857 138,122

9,301 8,597 15,823 16,930 16,615 15,518 6,528 6076 48,267 47,121
25,567 28,764 32,686 32,897 29,967 27,550 4,498 4,498 9,718 93,709
2,225 - - - 278 589 - - 2,503 589
5,066 - - - 73 1372 - - 5802 1372
118 124 500 500 - - - - 618 624
5394 16,072 9425 21,685 16,735 21,039 393 509 31,947 59,305

*

equipment and intangible assets.

Capital expenditure represents additions to property, plant and

- BEAFIEREDE BEERER
BVEE -
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31 December 2020
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

For management purposes, segment revenue and segment
results are the two key indicators provided to the Group’s
chief operating decision maker to make decisions about the
resource allocation and to assess performance. No segment
asset and liability information is presented as, in the opinion
of the directors, such information is not a key indicator
provided to the Group’s chief operating decision maker.

The Group’s revenue arises from restaurant operations and
food productions.

Geographical information
All of the Group’s operations are located in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”). The Group’s revenue from

external customers and all of its non-current assets are
located in the PRC, including Hong Kong.

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows:

reE>WER B)

REEME "HMRERDBEER
HAEBTELERARERLERD
M&%&“%%EMWKET cEBE
AR ARSI MEERABEMILIF
kﬁ%ﬁﬁliﬁ BERREZER
BE A E2REFTER -

AEBNKFZFERBEBRZENRR
DD$§°

REAH

AEERBERERBHUNFEAR
EMBE(HE]) -NEEXRBINBE
FHRam kR EMAEFRBEEDUR
hEBEEE-

Revenue from contracts with customers &5 & #1 a5
Restaurant operations BREEE

58 2 H A
AEBOKBEANWAT
2020 2019
—B-FF —ET-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARKET T
1,105,103 1,495,087
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Disaggregated revenue information
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Notes to the Financial Statements

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (Continued) 5.

Revenue from contracts with customers

B RS R R M B

31 December 2020
RZEZZEF+=-_A=+—H

W kEMEKA R
EESHIE

() DIFEEER

2020 2019
—R_RF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% T PNCLET

Type of goods or services

Revenue from Chinese restaurant
operations and total revenue from
contracts with customers

Geographical markets
Northern China
Eastern China
Southern China
Western China

Total revenue from contracts with
customers

Timing of revenue recognition
At a point in time

EmEREER
TEREREEN
BEFA#HW R

B 5 45
B 4 35
h B 1 56
o 3 7 46
o 8 7 4

Ik

EPEHKz

o

e

e 25 i SR B
A R — B [ B

1,105,103 1,495,087
287,345 416,331
457,648 576,072
247,303 378,393
112,807 124,291

1,105,103 1,495,087

1,105,103 1,495,087
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: 5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (continued) 5. WmkHEMWBAE

]

2 Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) EESHWEE)
Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from TRINFEREF AL ZEER D P
contracts with customers to the amounts disclosed in ERBEENSHENYE:

the segment information:

2020 2019
—E-EF ZE-NF
L5 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR¥EFTT
External customers NEEFE 1,105,103 1,495,087
V. Intersegment sales D EPE S 52,898 58,700
}L_.
el:
i 1,158,001 1,653,787
E’L Intersegment adjustments and 5 EP R K E8H
eliminations (52,898) (568,700)
Total revenue from contracts with EPAHNERE
customers 1,105,103 1,495,087
The following table shows the amount of revenue TRERRBEHVBEEER
recognised in the current reporting period that was BEPERAENRE BN K=
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of 8

the reporting period:

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREETF T

Revenue recognised that was included R¥R&E I B SEA R
in contract liabilities at the beginning B &R I B R
of the reporting period: W e
Restaurant operations EEEEIE 177,795 153,779
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(i)

Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligations
is summarised below:

Restaurant operations

The performance obligation is satisfied when the
catering services have been provided to customers.
The Group’s trading terms with its customers are
mainly on cash and credit card settlement. The credit
period is generally less than one month.

B RS R R M B

31 December 2020
R-ZE-ZTF+=-A=+—H
WamRHEMKA R
ERSHWE(#E)
(i) BAIEF

BERASRERAOEINERBM
LA

BEREZE

BHORERATFREHRERRSE
Bl AEBEREXFNRS
GREERERREREARE
H-FEEHBREIRN—M@A -

2020 2019
—E_EfF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT ARBFIT

Other income Hib A
Bank interest income |ITFE WA 5,757 6,003
Commission income el At 18,247 25,262
Government grants* AT 8 B 13,903 4,554
Others HAb 3,137 5,574
41,044 41,393
# Commission income represents commission received or # ReWAERHEEREMRBE

receivable in respect of sales of tea related products.

There are no unfulfiled conditions or contingencies
relating to these grants.

mEWEER AL -

- St 5% % 1 BY I S KW B 0 R 1
K4 o
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BiAlzF
A The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ REBMZRBATEFND MR (ER) T
: (crediting): P FEIA -
| 2020 2019
: —E-ZF —T-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k=3 AR%TR ARBTT
Directors’ remuneration EE T 8 9,031 9,913
Employee benefit expense (excluding BEERAAX(TBHE
directors’ and chief executive’s EERTBAEHS)
remuneration (note 8)): (Hii#8)
Wages and salaries TEEkE® 330,058 413,076
Equity-settled share award plan PARR AN 48 B R 10 52 B
expense FrEIFX 27 2,210 2,648
Pension scheme contributions (defined RIRFT B4 5%
contribution schemes)" (EREE NG 23,283 46,628
. Total staff costs BEIRARE 364,582 472,265

Depreciation of items of property, plant ¥ % - BENREBEB 2

and equipment e 13 48,267 47,121
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEEZIE 14(a) 92,718 93,709
Amortisation of intangible assets’ E 8 E SN 15 1,022 1,255
Variable lease payments not included in  TEEEHEAEFTE

the measurement of lease liabilities WA ERE R 14(c) 3,634 7,204
Gain on revision of lease terms arising A 7~ A i 55 7 & HB

from changes in the non-cancellable BEHMEHED

periods of leases BT RS (1,572) -
Auditor’'s remuneration’ ZE A& 1,008 1,144
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEME  BERRE

plant and equipment" B EE 1,156 345
Impairment of property, plant and mE - -BERREZ

equipment? E! 13 2,503 589
Impairment of right-of-use assets" FEREEEZRE 14(a) 5,802 1,372
Impairment of an investment in H-HRESZLRAA

a joint venture* WAE? 1,199 —
Impairment of an amount due from JEY — & % R Al IE

a joint venture* 2 RE* 1,500 511
Advertisement and promotion expenses’ B& RIiEEE! 17,468 21,722
Restaurant operating expenses and MEeEER R

charges* 25,487 19,996
Sanitation and maintenance expenses’ FERBEREE" 21,457 26,153
Travelling, carriage and freight* ERREHB 7,813 12,147
Foreign exchange differences, net* b 5 = B 5 R 3,668 919
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Continued)

" At 31 December 2020, the Group had no forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the
pension schemes in future years (2019: Nil).

# ltems are included in “Other expenses” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

B RS R R M B

31 December 2020

RZEZZEF+=-_A=+—H
BiA s A @)

" R-ZT-—FTHF+=-RA=+—H A&

3 AT AR E B R R B AR KA

B Rz2EBRER(ZZE—N

FoE) e

' HEHAGRABER ZIE MM X
o

B E A

BMEKADITMT

2020 2019
—E=FF —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T NSRE

Interest on bank loans RITE A

=N
Interest on lease liabilities HEAGFE

1,870 2,151
22,567 25,556
24,437 27,707
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a),
(b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

ESRTRARZHE

FAN EERTHREHZHM&BE L
R B & B QA& B 3383(1)(@)
©) ORNERARI(BRESHEE
B AR I E2Ep B R ¢

Fees we

Other emoluments: Hi NS -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥4 2B R EWH %

Performance related bonuses FKIRBHIEAT
Equity-settled share award plan
expense (note 27)

Pension scheme contributions BIRET IR

VARS8 B 2 B ) 22
i 8IF S (M i27)

2020 2019
—z-—z; EEEEPES
RMB’000 RMB’000
LR EETT
2,750 2,839

3,221 2,670

702 948

2,298 3,415

60 41

6,281 7,074

9,031 9,913
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Notes to the Financial Statements

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (continuea)

(@) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors
during the year were as follows:

B RS R R M B

31 December 2020
RZEZZEF+=-_A=+—H

EERTHRERZHME @)

(a) BIAFEBITESE

FR XNTREIFATESZ

Mr. Kwong Chi Keung BF 558 5 A&
Mr. Kwong Ping Man BB AR 32 5 A
Mr. Cheung Kin Ting, Alfred IR ERRE S A

waEmr
2020 2019
—ECEFE —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREF T
264 251
264 251
264 251
792 753

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2019: Nil).

FA-BEEMENELIFNT
EENFHN(CCZE-—NF:F)-
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31 December 2020
R-ZZFZFTF+-A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERITHAIZME )
REMUNERATION (continuea)
g (b) Executive directors and chief executive (b) BITESRITBARK
E Salaries,
K Performance allowances Pension  Equity-settled
1 related  and benefits scheme  share award Total
5:' Fees bonuses in kind  contributions  plan expense  remuneration
) RERBZ HE RER RAZER G
: ne #A ENAE BAHEMR RBIEEX WewE
; RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
; ARETT ARETT  ARBTR ARETT ARETT  ARBTR
: 2020 g 23
:‘ Executive directors: HTES:
Y Ms. Weng Peine SEALLO 518 702 1,270 17 2,208 4,805
: Mr. Yip Shu Ming (‘M. Yip") EEREE(ERE) 436 - 950 10 - 1,396
Mr. Chan Man Wai (“Mr. Chan’) BxErE(REED 396 - - - - 396
Mr. Ku Hok Chiu (“Mr. Ku") HERRE(EEED 396 = = = = 396
Mr. Chen Zhi Xiong® WS K e 106 - 552 25 - 683
Mr. Wong Chung Yeung® ERBRE0 106 - 449 8 - 563
g 1,958 702 3,221 60 2,298 8,239
2019 —Z-nE
Executive directors: 0TES:
Mr. Yip Shu Ming EWBEE 541 - 1,247 17 - 1,805
Mr. Chan Man Wai BXERE 502 - - 7 - 509
Mr. Ku Hok Chiu HEBEAE 502 - - - - 502
Ms. Weng Peihe! SERL L 541 948 1,423 17 3,415 6,344
2,086 948 2,670 #“ 3,415 9,160
M Ms. Weng Peihe resigned as the chief executive of the M BE-ZE-_ZEF+tHA—AHAE §

Group and appointed as the chairman of the Board
with effect from 1 July 2020.

Mr. Chen Zhi Xiong appointed as the chief executive of
the Group and an executive director with effect from 1
July 2020. The amount above includes only his
remuneration during his tenure as a director of the
Group.

Mr. Wong Chung Yeung appointed as an executive
director with effect from 1 July 2020. The amount
above includes only his remuneration during his tenure
as a director of the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% 3R 3% B &

31 December 2020

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9.

The five highest paid employees during the year included
four (2019: two) directors, details of whose remuneration are
set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the
year of the remaining one (2019: three) highest paid
employee who is neither a director nor chief executive of the

Basic salaries and other benefits in kind EA#H € & E i B % A %
KAz
BRAEERR D REN T8I
RREHEI R

Performance related bonuses
Equity-settled share award plan expense
Pension scheme contributions

TERE%HEER

RZE_ZEF+-_A=+—H

RER AEEeRHEEEBENA (=
E-NF -MB)ES FMFBEER
LM ES - REFEEH T —H(ZF
—NEF: ZR)EEFEEGEEAAA
EEATRARNFMAEBZ27 W

Company, are as follows: T :

2020 2019
—B_%F —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTR ARBT T
777 3,141

536 2,067

- 2,648

36 122

1,349 7,978

The number of non-director and non-chief executive, highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following
bands is as follows:

A T 55 E S B AT R
HOBEHMEEHABDT :

A R #1,000,001TE
A FR#1,500,0007T
AR #1,500,0017t 2
A R #2 000,0007T
AR #4,000,0017T &
A R #4,500,0007C

RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000

RMB1,500,001 to RMB2,000,000

RMB4,000,001 to RMB4,500,000

Number of employees

BEAH

2020
—E=%F

2019
—E-NF
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31 December 2020
RZEZTEF+_A=+—H

10. INCOME TAX 10.

The Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are subject
to income tax at the rate of 25% (2019: 25%). Taxes on
profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the
rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group

Fr g%t

NN DN i N NS PF
& BB (ZF—NF :25%) 2 FT
198 o H fth3th 75 & FE R B s A B IE Y
BRAEBEEMEREER ZRTH

operates. KErE o

2020 2019
g i —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARMF T

Current — PRC BIHR —
Charge for the year REFRE 17,953 37,600

(Overprovision)/underprovision in TF(BEBE) BE

prior years = (317) 110

Current — Hong Kong BNEg — &%
Charge for the year FRH X - 164
Overprovision in prior years T BERE (78) —
PRC withholding tax on dividend income f% 8 4% A 2 7 B 78 0 ¢ 3,504 5,286
Deferred (note 24) BT (ff it24) (5,693) 2,116
Total tax charge for the year AEERERIAE 15,369 45,276
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Notes to the Financial Statements

10. INCOME TAX (Continued) 10.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the statutory rate for the country in which the
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled
to the tax expense at the effective tax rate, and a
reconciliation of the applicable rate (i.e., the statutory tax
rate) to the effective tax rate, are as follows:

B RS R R M B

31 December 2020
RZEZZEF+=-_A=+—H

e ®)

BEBRARRREXED MM E R A
P E B3R 2 0% 8 Bt K Je BB A A1) &
BHAEBMERERREAE M
HERZEER RERRE (BUEEN
R)VERFEERBEHERNAT -

2020 2019
—E-EFE —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000 %
AR%¥ T ARBEF T
Profit before tax B £ BT 4 A 18,527 138,122
Tax at the statutory tax rate  ¥2% & Bt R & 4,632 25.0 34,531 25.0
Lower tax rates enacted by & BT &K
local authority RS 71 0.4 (1,238) (0.9
Losses attributable to joint A& N EEL
ventures B8 556 3.0 1,072 0.8
Adjustments in respect of 5t %t A B fH B B
current tax of previous I8 PR VR S B
periods (395) (2.1) 110 0.1
Effect of withholding tax on the 7K £ & B} B A
distributable profits of the A Al 9 K g
Group’s PRC subsidiaries BT E 3,504 18.9 5,286 3.8
Income not subject to tax BAEMT Z WA (1,249) (6.7) (186) (0.1)
Expenses not deductible TP 2R
for tax 4,748 25.6 4,862 3.5
Tax losses not recognised AERZHBEIE 5,143 27.8 1,384 1.0
Deferred tax assets B AT HIB R
recognised in respect of RIETIEE B
previous periods (1,354) (7.3) — —
Others Hb (287) (1.6) (545) (0.4)
Tax charge at the Group’s FREARE
effective rate for the year BB ERGFE 2
191 38 i 2 15,369 83.0 45,276 32.8
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31 December 2020
RZEZTEF+_A=+—H

11.

12.

170

DIVIDENDS

Interim special dividend — HK2.00 cents FFEI#ERIRE — G @AY

(2019: HK3.40 cents) per ordinary share
3.40% 1)

2008 (ZT— N5 :

Proposed final dividend — HK3.00 cents ZEi# AR E — SR T BT

(2019: Nil) per ordinary share

300 (=T —HnF : &)

2020 2019
e —FT-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
NaLhi ARETET
18,938 32,130
27,116 -
46,054 32,130

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 1,075,665,689 (2019:
1,071,760,226) in issue during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in

issue during the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019.

TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED /&= (FREI) =R BIRA A
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tFE -

AAREBERESIERAEMS
ZBRER

BREABFNESEHIRERARAIL B
BREREEABGERFERNRFEA
BB I7T % @K MmETH H
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31 December 2020
RZEZZEF+=-_A=+—H

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12. AR EBEREREREAREMN

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE ZBRERNE

COMPANY (Continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are BRERREERNOGE T EKE
based on:

2020 2019
—EB_EHF —EF-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AR T T

Earnings
Profit attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company, used in the

27
AABEBREDREAR A
FEEE R - AREHE

basic and diluted earnings per share ERERNREEREF
calculations 4,379 91,283
Number of shares
Shares B 12

Weighted average number of ordinary

shares in issue during the year used in
the basic and diluted earnings per share

calculations

ARt ESRERNREF
ANNEFANDETEBR
INHEF I
1,075,665,689  1,071,760,226
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31 December 2020
RZEZTEF+_A=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

172

31 December 2020

At 1 January 2020:

Cost
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

Net carrying amount

At 1 January 2020, net of
accumulated depreciation
and impairment

Additions

Depreciation provided during
the year

Impairment

Disposals

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2020, net of
accumulated depreciation
and impairment

At 31 December 2020:
Cost

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

Net carrying amount

13. X -BERRE

Furniture,

Leasehold fixtures and Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
HE
HEEE HEBERRE "E 5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AR® TR AR® TR ARET R
—EZEZH5+CZH
=t+—H
R-ZE-ZF
—A—H8:
B R 504,887 104,695 4,211 613,793
R ERRE
(385,483) (73,988) (3,275) (462,746)
FEEE 119,404 30,707 936 151,047
RZE-_ZTF—A
—B kR
TEMRE 119,404 30,707 936 151,047
RE 20,377 11,286 284 31,947
FRTERE
(36,500) (11,488) (279) (48,267)
HE (2,279) (224) - (2,503)
HE (784) (331) (158) (1,273)
fE AR (189) (23) - (212)
RZE-ZZTF+=A
=+—H Mk
R ERRE 100,029 29,927 783 130,739
i
+=ZA=+-8:
B 7R 521,423 110,949 4,180 636,552
2 MERRE
(421,394) (81,022) (3,397) (505,813)
REFE 100,029 29,927 783 130,739
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31 December 2020
RZEZZEF+=-_A=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ME - -BERRKRE®
(Continued)
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor

improvements equipment vehicles Total
18

MEEE RENEB HE @t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT

31 December 2019 —E-hE
+=-A=+-H
At 1 January 2019: RZT—NEF
—A—H:
Cost PR 463,075 93,325 4,297 560,697
Accumulated depreciation R ERRE
and impairment (350,671) (66,965) (3,330) (420,966)
Net carrying amount RHEFE 112,404 26,360 967 139,731

At 1 January 2019, net of R-ZZ—NF

accumulated depreciation —A—8 " Mk

and impairment 2T E LR E 112,404 26,360 967 139,731
Additions NE 44,756 14,252 297 59,305
Depreciation provided during 4 P37 & & &

the year (37,307) (9,514) (300) (4r,121)
Impairment oRE] (369) (220) - (589)
Disposals HE (135) (182) (28) (345)
Exchange realignment B H R 55 11 - 66

At 31 December 2019, net of R-Z— ¥+ -4

accumulated depreciation =+—8 Mk
and impairment 2R MERAE 119,404 30,707 936 151,047
At 31 December 2019: RZE-NF
+-B=+—-8:

Cost B AR 504,887 104,695 4,211 613,793
Accumulated depreciation ZEERAE

and impairment (385,483) (73,988) (3,275) (462,746)
Net carrying amount RHEFE 119,404 30,707 936 151,047

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 £F 3§ 173



Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% R R B &

31 December 2020
R-ZZFZFTF+-A=+—H

13.

14.

174

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

At 31 December 2020, the Group’s management identified
certain restaurants which were loss-making and performed
impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment for
identified
estimated corresponding
property,
calculation. Based on these estimates, an impairment loss of
RMB2,503,000 (2019: RMB589,000) was recognised to write
down the carrying amounts of certain property, plant and

restaurants with impairment indicators and
recoverable amounts of the

plant and equipment based on value-in-use

equipment to their estimated recoverable amounts as at 31
December 2020. The recoverable amount of the items of
property, plant and equipment is determined based on a
value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections based
on financial budgets covering the remaining useful lives of
the respective property, plant and equipment. The pre-tax
discount rates applied for the cash flow projections ranged
from 11.5% to 14.5%.

LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of
properties. The leases generally have lease terms between 2
and 10 vyears. Generally, the Group is restricted from
assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside the
include

Group. There are several lease contracts that

extension and termination options and variable lease

payments, which are further discussed below.

TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED &' (FREl) 2R BIR D F

13.

14.

ME - BERZRE®

RZEZTF+_RAR=+—H K&
EEEE#HNLETRABENE
B UEREEEHEHINEENY
¥ BELZBETRERTS  WRE
FEREETEGDE BEREE
MABFERT Wk Bl & 88 - BIRZ S (At
B HERREE B A RE2,503,0007T (=
Z—NF : AR¥ES89,0007T) © UAiEHE
T BFE KRR RE 5K
EER-ZE-FF+-A=1+—HHK
fHET AT &5 - W% - BE R&EE
BEWrA e SBEHIREFEAEENE
METE  WERASYE  BE MR
FAAIEAFHNTBBEERERD
REREEA -BHRESRFANR
HRAHFIR BN F11.5%E14.5% 5 o

HE
FEEERERBA

AEERZEMERBFEHES
o REHENES BN TIFME+
FoBEMS ASEEERELOHESE
BNHEHEEETEXR -ZEHEE
BREREREREEERTEH
ENFEEZHBRT X -



Notes to the Financial Statements

14. LEASES (Continued)

@)

B S R B A

31 December 2020
RZE_ZEF+-_A=+—H

14. & &)

The Group as a lessee (Continued) XEEBEEBERBEAE)
Right-of-use assets (@ RHAELE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use REBMRFANFERBREERE
assets and the movements during the year are as ER N
follows:
Buildings
LY
RMB’000
AR®TF T
As at 1 January 2019 M*"’—fwﬁ—ﬂ——a 277,249
Additions NE 93,901
Depreciation charge MEMX (93,709)
Impairment BE (1,372)
Exchange realignment ME 5, 3 473
As at 31 December 2019 and RZE—-—NF+ZA=+—H
1 January 2020 EZZ-FF—-—H—H 276,542
Additions NE 34,186
Depreciation charge TEMX (92,718)
Revision of lease terms arising from changes TABEHESREE
in the non-cancellable periods of leases mE A EHETIER] (874)
Impairment A (5,802)
Exchange realignment ME 5, 3 B (1,622)
As at 31 December 2020 R_ZE_ZEF+_HF=+—H 210,212

At 31 December 2020, the Group’s management
identified certain restaurants which were loss-making
and performed impairment assessment of right-of-use
assets for identified restaurants with impairment
indicators and estimated corresponding recoverable
amounts of the right-of-use assets based on value-in-
use calculation. Based on these estimates, an
impairment loss of RMB5,802,000 (2019:
RMB1,372,000) was recognised to write down the
carrying amounts of certain right-of-use assets to their
estimated recoverable amounts as at 31 December
2020. The recoverable amount of the items of right-of-
use assets is determined based on a value-in-use
calculation using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets covering the remaining lease terms
plus the anticipated renewal periods of the respective
right-of-use assets. The pre-tax discount rates applied
for the cash flow projections ranged from 11.5% to
14.5%.

RZEZFTF+_A=+—80"
REBEEEEZANLE TRALS
BRERE TRBERZYEH
RIEBMF AEEEEITREAER
& WIREEREAETEGE
AEEEMMEETKESE R
BREG CHEIBEEBEEA
R ¥5,802,00070 (= & — JLF ¢
A R #1,372,0007T) * A i#§ & F
FTRAEEENEESEMREHE
RZZE-_ZTF+_A=+—HH
HEATKE S E - FREEER
Bmr el eEREEAER
SFEmET  WERAUSERE
EEMNGHAERREHHEEHN
Hﬁﬂ&iﬁ\ 7%% miﬁimuif’g
B o T8 {8 IR & 7 B R &9 BR B AT 4T
BWENF115%E14.5% 15 o
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31 December 2020
R_T_ZEF+_A=+—H
14. LEASES (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
(b) Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the
movements during the year are as follows:

14. & &)

FXEEEBEZRBAE)

(b) HEERE

FRABEAERRELRESN

T

2020 2019
—R_RF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® Tt ARETT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—H®MEAEE 310,432 314,739
New leases MEE 34,186 93,901
Accretion of interest recognised FRNEBRRFHE
during the year 22,567 25,556
Covid-19-related rent concessions 1 A 2 £ B1COVID-19
from lessors BEMNESER (19,426) —
Payments E-N (87,730) (124,196)
Revision of lease terms arising from F“~A] BT € H B & &)
changes in the non-cancellable ¥ & EITIEET
periods of leases (1,946) -
Exchange realignment E H (1,970) 432
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A =+—HMNEEE 256,113 310,432
Analysed into: PR i=1
Current portion BN HA 8 > 86,857 79,503
Non-current portion JE BN HA 36 5 169,256 230,929

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in
note 33 to the financial statements.

As disclosed in note 2.2 to the financial statements,
the Group has early adopted the amendment to
HKFRS 16 and applied the practical expedient to all
eligible rent concessions granted by the lessors for
leases of certain properties during the year.
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14. LEASES (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to

(@)

()

Notes to the Financial Statements
BY 7 Ry R B &

31 December 2020
RZEZZEF+=-_A=+—H
14. HE %)
AXEKEEBRBANE)

() MBmEANEEHEBEFEN

leases are as follows: T
2019
—E-NF
RMB’000
ARMF T
Interest on lease liabilities HEBBNTE 22,567 25,556
Depreciation charge of right-of-use #REEETER X
assets 92,718 93,709
Expense relating to short-term FHAAR T —NF
leases and other leases with +ZA=+—RHA%kzH
remaining lease term ended on or &R HE HIF 49 & E fth
before 31 December 2019 HAOMBERZ (GFAETL
(included in staff costs and rental AN S R ABEFL)
and related expenses) 37,362 36,584
Variable lease payments not TEEFHESEFED
included in the measurement of AEHENKGIARS
lease liabilities (included in rental MABEER )
and related expenses) 3,634 7,204
Covid-19-related rent concessions HE AL FHOFHETRES
from lessors EEHEEESESR (19,426) —
Gain on revision of lease terms TAMEEHEREEZEMm
arising from changes in the HHEEHETERT NS
non-cancellable periods of leases (1,572) —
Impairment of right-of-use assets  {ERE&AE 2 FE 5,802 1,372
Total amount recognised in REZERNBEHE
profit or loss 141,085 164,425
Variable lease payments (a) FIEHETH

The Group leased a number of restaurants which
contain variable lease payment terms that are based
on the Group’s turnover generated from the
restaurants. There are also minimum monthly base
rental arrangements for these leases. The amounts of
the fixed and variable lease payments paid to relevant
lessors are RMB87,730,000 (2019: RMB122,476,000)

and RMBS3,634,000 (2019: RMB7,204,000),
respectively.
The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note (e)

28(c) to the financial statements.

AEEHEZHERE EFYES
EARAEEEZSEBMELS
EEMAUSHEENTER -ZE
METEREARETH - T
HELHEAMNEERTEREN
HEBwo Al A ARS7,730,000
T(Z T — L F: AR B
122,476,0007T) & A R ¥
3,634,000 (ZE—NF: AR
#7,204,0007T) °

SRS R AEREENRM SR
7 i 528(c) °
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Bt 7% SRR MY &

31 December 2020
R-ZZFZFTF+-A=+—H

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS BmEEE
Licences and Concession
franchises Trademarks _right Total
RERGTTE 2 HE-¥ @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREF T AREFT AREBEFT AREFT
31 December 2020 :§:§$+:E
=+—-H
At 1 January 2020; _§_ TF-A—H
Cost B, 2R 4,233 4,564 5,000 13,797
Accumulated amortisation B (3,552) (4,066) (3,750) (11,368)
Net carrying amount RmEE 681 498 1,250 2,429
Cost at 1 January 2020, net of R _-ZT_-FF—F—H
accumulated amortisation 2R Mk 25
b3 681 498 1,250 2,429
Amortisation provided during & A S5
the year (237) (285) (500) (1,022)
Exchange realignment B 71, 38 % © ?) - ()
At 31 December 2020 RZEZZE+ZA
=+—H 442 211 750 1,403
At 31 December 2020; %:§12¢+:H
=+-R:
Cost 4 $ 4,109 4,322 5,000 13,431
Accumulated amortisation EXig 3 (3,667) (4,111) (4,250) (12,028)
Net carrying amount RmEE 442 211 750 1,403
31 December 2019 - _l_jL £+=8
At 1 January 2019; R-% 7L¢ A—8
Cost B, 2R 4,210 4,515 5,000 13,725
Accumulated amortisation S5 (3,199) (3,596) (3,250) (10,045)
Net carrying amount FEFE 1,011 919 1,750 3,680
Cost at 1 January 2019, net of R -Z—hL&—H—H
accumulated amortisation ZW$ Nk 25t
1 54 1,011 919 1,750 3,680
Amortisation provided during & A S5
the year (330) (425) (500) (1,255)
Exchange realignment B K 50 % - 4 - 4
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+ZA
=+—A 681 498 1,250 2,429
At 31 December 2019: %:%—n¢+:ﬂ
=+-R:
Cost RN 4,233 4,564 5,000 13,797
Accumulated amortisation RiT# (3,552) (4,066) (3,750) (11,368)
Net carrying amount EEFE 681 498 1,250 2,429
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INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

B RS R R M B

31 December 2020
RZEZZEF+=-_A=+—H

Share of net assets EHEEFE
Loans to joint ventures

Impairment B

HELRNFANER

The loans to joint ventures are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. In the opinion of the directors, these
loans are unlikely to be repaid in the foreseeable future and
are considered as part of the Group’s net investments in the
joint ventures.

During the year, the Group has provided an impairment loss
of RMB1,199,000 (2019: Nil) for an interest in a joint venture
as the joint venture has been loss-making for some time and
the carrying amount exceed the recoverable amount of the
investment.

The amounts due from joint ventures are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

During the year, the Group has provided an impairment loss
for an amount due from a joint venture of RMB1,500,000
(2019: RMB511,000).

2019

—hEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR ARBETT

9,187 10,505

3,742 2,849

(1,199) —

11,730 13,354

BEARMNERSEEN 28 RIK

BREE -EFRR  RFERTKA

ERARBRESRE THREAKRER
BERRKFREN 5 o

FR AEERPD —HEEDRIHE
AT IR EE B A R #1,199,0007T (=
T-NF Z) AAEZALERAINR—
BEEERN—EENEBRKE BER®A
BHRBREEENA WO &5 -

ERAEERBZHARBEER 28
WiZBRERE -

FAAKERER-HEAEE QAR

TEET IR E B 1B A R #1,500,0007T (=
—NE: AR#511,0007T) °
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INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 16. REGE R a(#®)
(Continued)
Particulars of the Group’s principal joint ventures are as REBEFEGERAIZFBIENOT
follows:
Percentage of
Aok
Place of
Issued incorporation Ownership Voting Profit
Name shares capital  and business interest power sharing  Principal activities
T AL R
A% ERTRE  EEHEY EEERS REE RV TEXE
Tang & Rich Holdings () Limited US$1,000  British Virgin 56 56 56  Restaurant operations
BREBROERAR 1,000E 7T Islands KEEE
RERTES
Tang & Rich Holdings (Il) Limited US$10  British Virgin 60 60 60  Restaurant operations
BREBIER AR 10ETT Islands KEEE
RERTES
Shanghai Ben Tang Catering RMB1,000,000  PRC/Mainland 49 49 49  Restaurant operations
Management Limited A K #1,000,0007T China mEEE
LEBREERERERAA HEl/ R E R
Shenzhen Bao Ma Catering RMB1,000,000  PRC/Mainland 30 30 30  Restaurant operations
Management Limited A K #1,000,0007T China mEEE
RYIREERERERAF HEl/ R E R
Taiwan Tang Palace Catering TW$60,000,000  Taiwan 45 45 45 Restaurant operations
Management Limited ¥716%60,000,0000 AE KEEE
AEEEEHREREMERRAA
Social Place Singapore Pte Limited SG$100,000  Singapore 40 40 40  Restaurant operations
HA0%T100,00070  # AN BEEE
Foodmazing Limited HK$300,000  Hong Kong 33 33 33 Restaurant operations
EXEEFRLA 300,000  EE BEEE

The above investments are indirectly held by the Company.

TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED &= (R El) $Z=IRB IR A
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Notes to the Financial Statements

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(Continued)

The Group had discontinued the recognition of its share of
losses of Tang & Rich Holdings (I) Limited and its
subsidiaries (collectively, “T&R (I) Group”) and Tang & Rich
Holdings (ll) Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively, “T&R (I)
Group”) because the share of losses of T&R (I) Group and
T&R () Group exceeded the Group’s interests in T&R (I)
Group and T&R () Group, and the Group had no obligation
to take up further losses.

The amounts of the Group’s unrecognised share of losses of
T&R (I) Group and T&R (ll) Group for the current year were
RMB1,456,000 (2019: Nil) and RMB47,000 (2019:
RMB439,000), respectively, and cumulatively were
RMB1,456,000 (2019: Nil) and RMB1,449,000 (2019:
RMB1,402,000), respectively.

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group’s joint ventures that are not
individually material:

16. RES

Bt 7% SRR MY &

31 December 2020
RZEZZEF+=-_A=+—H

ENTF(8)

AEBEERIEBHAEGEEBRITROE
RARKEWMB AR (GHEIER(N)E
)Rk ERERIBRRR KENE
NE(MEIEENEE]D) 2EE -
REGEEENEERERINEEZER
BHASERERONEELREEHRIER
ZHEs - BASEYEEEAEELE—
FERE-

REBRAFE 2 RBEREAL = ()
SEMERWSEECZEESNAAR
#1,456,000C (Z 2 — L F : T) R A
R#¥47000(ZE—NLF: ARK
439,0007T) A & 2 A A R &
1,456,000 (ZZE —NF : ARBES)
M AR #1,449,000L (ZE—NF A
R #1,402,0007T) °

TRIINBAKEERIBTEAZAE
NAZEBETEER

Share of the joint ventures’ losses for
the year

Share of the joint ventures’ other
comprehensive income/(loss)

Share of the joint ventures’ total
comprehensive loss

Aggregate carrying amount of the
Group’s investments in the joint REE
ventures

W, (B51R)

#

FAREAZERAER
EiEARERREMER
BiEAERFE2EEBEAR

AEBREERAZKREZ
8

2020 2019
—B_%F —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T IPNSLRET
(2,223) (3,817)

38 )

(2,185) (3,826)
11,730 13,354
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FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 17. BAFEFAHMEZEKE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE BEazEetmEE
INCOME/PROFIT OR LOSS
2020 2019
—E-ZF ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR®F T
Equity investments designated at fair EEZRLAFEFAHMEE
value through other comprehensive WEzRAERE
income
Listed equity investment, at fair value BEAFEFTEN EMRA
®E — 9,304
Unlisted equity investment, at fair value & A FETEMHIE EHAR A
®E 13,620 13,842
13,620 23,146

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income as the Group
considers these investments to be strategic in nature.

In the current year, the Group disposed of the above listed
equity investment as the investment no longer meets the
investment objective of the Group. The fair value on the
date of sale was RMB14,457,000 and the accumulated loss
recognised in other comprehensive income of
RMB4,085,000 has been transferred to retained profits.

TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED /&= (FREI) =R BIRA A

EA AR E S B R E R IR A
FEHFAEMBZEAKRGZER  REZA
SERSZEREBREIEE -

AEFEE - BAREMETRERETH
REeAXEENKREER AEEEH
EZERE HEZBEHNRAFEAA
R #14,457,0007C * 25 E B AR
4,085,0007C A H fih 2 E U A TER - I
EEBERBER -
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17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME/PROFIT OR LOSS (continuea)

17. ROFPEFAELEZE KRR/
BRsEMEE @

2020 2019
—EB-2F —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR®F T
Debt investment designated at fair EERATETFTARBRZEZ
value through profit or loss BEERE
Unlisted debt investment, at fair value BRAFEFENILTEY
®E 26,208 27,456

LM EBIRE R ARAR & 558 6 o
BHAEATEFAEBZZEMEE
REAGHNRSRWIFERAINEE R
solely payments of principal and interest. B e

The above debt investment was a convertible loan and was
mandatorily classified as a financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss as its contractual cash flows are not

18. INVENTORIES 18. #&

2020 2019
—ECER —ZT-hNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AR T T
Food and beverages, and other operating B fh & 8+ LA & & B2 15 HY
items for restaurant operations HAth /& & 18 B 48,815 51,344
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 3R 183
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 19. EZRHEMERRERBMNRK
PREPAYMENTS b= |
2020 2019
—B_%F i
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARET T
Trade receivables 2 5 rEWFE 17,772 13,571
Prepayments A R 25,008 20,557
Deposits and other receivables e & HAth fE I GROR 38,497 47,774
81,277 81,902
Less: Prepayments and deposits classified & : DB AERBHEEZ
as non-current assets ENFERES (35,339) (35,090)
45,938 46,812

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit. The credit period is generally 30 days. Each
customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact
that the Group’s trade receivables relate to a large number
of diversified customers, there is no significant concentration
of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over its trade receivable
balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED /&= (FREI) =R BIRA A

AEBREEFPZXZHHEREZER
EE-EEH-—MRA/WVE-BHEFP
BEFEE LR -AEEYHERKEE
WHRIBEERBRRES - SREEES
EHEMANGR - EN Ll ARA
SECZESERRFELEZHOHMEP
B MUBEREESETEAR KK
B EREE S EPKAGERIT AL
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Notes to the Financial Statements

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

PREPAYMENTS (continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on invoice date and net of
provisions, is as follows:

Bt 7% SRR MY &

31 December 2020
RZEZZEF+=-_A=+—H

B 5 RE i EURIRREMN K
15 (#)

REZHMFE 2 HREKBERE
EHRZERESNNBREE BT

Within 30 days 30H A

31 to 60 days 31260H
61 to 90 days 61£290H
Over 90 days 908 M £

2020 2019
—EB_EHF —EF-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T T
17,177 13,072

195 239

135 59

265 201

17,772 13,571

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses.
The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments with similar loss
patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type,
customer type and rating). The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and
reasonable and supportable information that is available at
the reporting date about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions. Generally, trade
receivables are written off if past due for more than one year
and are not subject to enforcement activity. As at 31
December 2020 and 2019, the Group assessed the loss
allowance and the expected credit loss rate under the
application of HKFRS 9 were insignificant.

RERESOHRAREEREETRE
AW AR RETEREERBE - BHEXD
ARABBEUBERANZEER, S
HER M@ AsEE IR B
HA - BPEBRTR) - ZeTHERM
RAREMELER EERBEERNRE
HEAR IS EBBATEIE IR
RARRGEBEGEENNEGERTEE
B —fiME - B REWRR NG AR
B—FRBAZRNEGHITIEEA
T LA R_T_TFR_F—N
F+-_A=+—H XxKEEFHEAR
BBV BWEEREN TR EERE
LEHEEBBERAMTRE -
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19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 19. EZRHMEVRREBERBAMNRK
| PREPAYMENTS (Continued) H (%)
§ An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of 7 ¥R 2 B R 3 4 (R Bl sk 3 R 4 4R 1B R
: the reporting period that were not individually nor collectively ENESEWBFIERRITOT :

considered to be impaired is as follows:

Sommh s el

2020 2019

u
i
1
;
:

—EB_EHF —EF-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T T

Neither past due nor impaired R I RORUE
1 to 30 days past due #1 HA1 2308

31 to 60 days past due B HA31 260 H
Over 60 days past due #HIG0OH N £

17,177 13,072
195 239
135 59
265 201

17,772 13,5671

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental
deposits and deposits with suppliers. Where applicable, an
impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date by
considering the probability of default of comparable
companies with published credit ratings. In the situation
where no comparable companies with credit ratings can be
identified, expected credit losses are estimated by applying
a loss rate approach with reference to the historical loss
record of the Group. The loss rate is adjusted to reflect the
current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions, as appropriate. As at 31 December 2020 and
2019, the Group assessed the loss allowance and the
expected credit loss rate under the application of HKFRS 9
were insignificant.

186 TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED &= (R El) $Z=IRB IR A

RekEMERFBEXZEEERS
FHEEEFNZES RE®REBHE
BEBEEAMEEFAMATLAGE
KB AT REMEETT IR E D AT (W) -
WMEEZZINEBEEETFRAMNALR
A TEHEEFERABLEASER
TEBERSERAEBREETMHE -
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20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bt 7% SRR MY &

31 December 2020
RZEZZEF+=-_A=+—H

0. RERREEE

Be RRITES
Time deposits 7E BRI F 3K

Cash and bank balances

Less: Pledged deposits (note 23)
Time deposits with original maturity
over 3 months

Cash and cash equivalents Re kR FE

B B IR R (A E23)
ERIBMEBBE=MA
B E HI7F 3K

2020 2019
—E_EH —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TFT AREF T
351,618 293,195
167,859 203,259
519,477 496,454
(85,444) (80,000)
(32,000) (34,000)
402,033 382,454

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group held in Mainland China amounted to
RMB461,349,000 (2019: RMB470,192,000). The RMB held in
Mainland China is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Certain of the Group’s cash at banks earns interest at
floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term
time deposits are made for varying periods of between
seven days and six months (2019: seven days and twelve
months) depending on the immediate cash requirements of
the Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term
time deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

REWERR AEEBRFEAMIFEAR
ZHReRBITHEBRERFHEAR
#£461,349,0007C (ZZE—hF : AR
470,192,0007T) - AR P E RN IFE
ZARBIITEHERAEMEY -
SR - AR IR AR B A M B SN BE B IR (K
RiE  EERNETERTE A5H
BREFARERTEARBELAH
fEE - LAEITINEER -

AEBEETRTRESEENRRITEAR
TFRFE 2 FEERREMFE - 2 H
EHFERZHRBLAEANEA(ZF
—hWF: EBRE+Z@RTE - RTF
AEBZABREFRME  LiRA
EZREBERFRERRIMAME - R
TEBNIFENEEREFZRITHES
E I\ R FIRA 8 -
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:
:
: 21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21. EFRHMENRE
’{i‘ 2020 2019
E —EoEH —ZET-AF
: Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B it AR%T ARMF T
Trade payables 5 RIE 68,311 68,908
Other payables and accruals H b 5RIB R
FE &t RIA 17,949 27,231
s Salary and welfare payables e & RAEF 22,478 31,414
i Contract liabilities ARAR (@) 190,241 177,795
3 298,979 305,348
& An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of BEREAHGE  BHRMNZIERK
i the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as HHRZERITOT
E follows:
2020 2019
—E-FF —FT-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARMF T
Within 30 days 30BN 56,754 60,383
31 to 60 days 31£260H 4,224 3,818
61 to 90 days 61290H 1,967 1,143
91 to 180 days 91£180H 2,759 1,838
Over 180 days 180H KA E 2,607 1,726
68,311 68,908

The trade and other payables are non-interest-bearing and
are normally settled on terms of 30 days to 90 days.

188 TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED /&= (FREl) #Z2IREIRA A
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21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 21. ES R EHMENRE®)
Note: et -
(a)  Details of contract liabilities are as follows: (a) AFAHEBEFBUOT:

31 December 31 December
2020 2019
—E-BF —T-hF
= =R s +—— A=+ — A
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T T ARBT T
Short-term advances received from WEF Y 7 B 52 B
customers A E
Contract liabilities in relation to customers’ HEFEMNREEEDN
advance payments ERAE 190,241 177,795
Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to ERABEEEARMNEYIMUKEE
deliver goods. The increase in contract liabilities in 2020 and BHENR —_Z2TER_T—N
2019 was mainly due to the increase in short-term advances FEHNBBEN TEZEHARFER
received from customers in relation to the restaurant B PR & BB R X T5 A B A R ER
operations at the end of the years. TEFFRIBIE INATEL -
22. DUE TO RELATED PARTIES 22, FE{SREEE 5 RIE
The amounts due to related companies are unsecured, EREEARCRBEARELRE 28
interest-free and repayable on demand. In the opinion of WEEEREE EFERE ZBEL
directors, the directors, shareholders and beneficial owners AZESE WEMEZRBEAEAALRD
of the related companies are the common directors and Ao HRESFEREIERR -

major shareholders of the Company.
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—= —=

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

23.

2019
—T-NE
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB'000 rate (%) Maturity RMB’000
BB FE%) EEA INGE SN BB A (%) HEA ARBFT
Current B
Bank loans — secured RTEHR - BEF 2.38%  On demand 74,760  2.20%-3.83%  On demand 80,000
REX REX
2020 2019
— et —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARETIT
Analysed into: DHTIAT -
Bank loans: MITE N
On demand RE K 74,760 80,000
Notes: B it
(a)  The Group’s banking facilities amounting to RMB74,760,000 (@ AEEIRTHEARKET4,760,0007T
(2019: RMB80,000,000), of which RMB74,760,000 (2019: (ZZF—h%F : AR%80,000,0007T)
RMB80,000,000) had been utilised as at the end of the &R AR 74,760,000 (ZFE—H
reporting period, are secured by the pledge of certain of the & A R #80,000,0007T) 1 ¥ 4 HA
Group’s time deposits amounting to RMB85,444,000 (2019: REWBH AASEEEHRE T EH
RMB80,000,000) (note 20). FRAR85,444,0000 (Z 2 — 1
F + AR #80,000,0007T) 1 # # (Ff
§£20) °
(o) Al borrowings are in Hong Kong dollars. () FBEEERBITHIE-
(c)  The Group’s interest-bearing bank borrowings in the amount () AEENGFERTEREBAAR

of RMB74,760,000 (2019: RMB80,000,000) containing a
repayment on demand clause have been classified as current
liabilities. For the purpose of the above analysis, the loans are
included within current interest-bearing bank borrowings and
analysed into bank loans repayable on demand.

TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED /&= (FREI) =R BIRA A

74,760,000t (T ZE—NF: AR
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24. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during

24. &

Bt 7% SRR MY &

31 December 2020
RZEZZEF+=-_A=+—H

BiE

FRCEERBERBREENEHN

the year are as follows: ™~
Deferred tax liabilities BREHIEE R
Undistributed
profits of the
Right-of-use PRC
assets subsidiaries Total
REHE A A
EHEEE K2R R et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T T AR T T AR T T
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—NF—HF—H 65,280 6,780 72,060
Deferred tax (credited)/charged to the F AR B R (K%),/
statement of profit or loss during Bk 2 R E T IE
the year (note 10) (K1&#10) (20,992) 115 (20,877)
At 31 December 2019 and RZZE—-—hF+=A
1 January 2020 =+t—HK
—ET-FTF—A—H 44,288 6,895 51,183
Deferred tax credited to the FARBEZE
statement of profit or loss during |2 IBERTE
the year (note 10) (H17£10) (19,710) (1,663) (21,373)
At 31 December 2020 RZEZETHF
+=-—A=+—H 24,578 5,232 29,810
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24. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

24, EEHIE (&)

Deferred tax assets BEHRIEEE
Losses
available for
offsetting
against future Other
Lease taxable temporary
liabilities profits differences Total
FEAEH
BERERS
HEERE SHANEE HHNIZKEER #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREBTT ARETT ARETTT
At 1 January 2019 R_ZE-NF
—H—H 78,095 - 4,408 82,503
Deferred tax charged to HFAREBREXINK Z
the statement of profit — ¥EIE BB (475270)
or loss during the year
(note 10) (22,232) - (761) (22,993)
At 31 December 2020 HRZ-ZT_TF+_A
and 1 January 2020 =t+—Bk=F
—EF¥—HA—H 55,863 = 3,647 59,510
Deferred tax (charged)/  FRMNEBHFR
credited to the (pR) oz
statement of profit or RIEFE (B 3E10)
loss during the year
(note 10) (20,936) 4,016 1,240 (15,680)
At 31 December 2020 R _ZT_ZTHF
+-A=+—8~ 34,927 4,016 4,887 43,830
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31 December 2020
RZEZZEF+=-_A=+—H

24. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 24, EEBIE (&)
Deferred tax assets (Continued) BEHRBESE(Z)
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and RERME ETELHBEEERE
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of B BEARA RS NEEEY
financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred BHRERABR ZBELEHBESOITTOT -
tax balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:
2020 2019
—EB-EF —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® Tt ARETT
Net deferred tax assets recognised RERE BBk R R
in the consolidated statement of BEEHIEEEFHE
financial position 19,252 15,222
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised 15/‘ T A MR R R
in the consolidated statement of BELEHIEAEFHE
financial position (5,232) (6,895)
14,020 8,327

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
RMB20,019,000 (2019: RMB6,360,000) that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against the future taxable profits of
the company in which the losses arose. As at 31 December
2020, no deferred tax asset was recognised in respect of
the tax losses in Hong Kong of RMBG6,287,000 (2019:
RMB6,360,000).

The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
RMB31,802,000 (2019: RMB8,293,000) that will expire in one
to five years for offsetting against future taxable profits of
the companies in which the losses arose. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the tax losses of
RMB24,881,000 in Mainland China (2019: RMB8,293,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

AEERBEEELEHEBBARE
20,019,000 (Z T — AL &FE: AR
6,360,0007T) * AJ R R AR {EHE B AR
AR ZERMEN(BEBEHLE
E) RZEZTF+=_A=+—8"
RABERBENHIEBEBRRELETIE
B EH ANRES,287,000(—F — A,
. AR%6,360,0007T) °

AEBRPERMELEZBER—Z1
FAIB2HMBEBEBEEARE
31,802,000 (ZE — L F: AR K
8,293,0007T) Al AN HE A ZE B
B2ERAIZAKRERB AT - BB
i I B N e o A i 2 N i
B ) 3 & £ 18 B 18 A R 624,881,000

—NF : AR #8,293,0007T) &
RIEEFIEEE o
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24,

194

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)
Deferred tax assets (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is
a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of
the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is
5% or 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding
taxes when dividends distributed by those subsidiaries
in Mainland China in

established respect of earnings

generated from 1 January 2008.

At the end of the reporting period, the aggregate amount of
temporary difference associated with undistributed earnings
of subsidiaries was approximately RMB298,692,000 (2019:
RMB347,533,000).
recognised in respect of approximately RMB104,645,000
(2019: RMB137,900,000) of such undistributed earnings. No
deferred tax liability has been recognised in respect of the

A deferred tax liability has been

undistributed earnings of certain subsidiaries of
RMB194,047,000 (2019: RMB209,633,000)
Group is in a position to control the timing of the reversal of

because the

the temporary differences and it is probable that such
differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable future.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
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25. ISSUED CAPITAL 25. BERITRAX

AT DT lo S gz As at 31 December 2019
R=-F=%F RZF—NF
+=-—A=+-—H +=ZA=+—8

RMB’000 RMB’000

HK$’000 equivalent HK$’000 equivalent
£E £E

TERXT AR%®TR TET AR®TT

Authorised: ETE
4,000,000,000 (2019: 4,000,000,0000%
4,000,000,000) ordinary (ZE—Nn%F:
shares of HK$0.05 each 4,000,000,000
iR & RmEmE
0.058 L2
R 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BETEHE
1,076,027,500 (2019: 1,076,027,5000%
1,073,862,500) ordinary —E-NF:
shares of HK$0.05 each 1,073,862,500
f2) R EE
0.05% T2
Rl 53,801 45,821 53,693 45,726
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25. ISSUED CAPITAL (continueqd) 25. BEITRA®)
A summary of the transactions during the year with KEEZRGBMEELELRRAZE
reference to the movements in the Company’s issued BOEBRERAEE  FHBOT

ordinary share capital is as follows:

Number of
shares in issue Issued capital
=5 L0)
RBEE BRITRE
(equivalent to)
ZE
Notes HK$'000 RMB'000
it FET ARBEFT
Issued and fully paid: BRTRAE:
At 1 January 2019 R-_FE-N%F—A—H 1,068,617,500 53,431 45,496
Issue of shares under share RER G LB 81 B TR
i award plan @ 2,165,000 108 95
Issue of shares under share RER D RE B TR
award plan ) 3,080,000 154 135
At 31 December 2019 and RIZBE-NE+ZA=+—HEK
1 January 2020 —Z-25—-H—H 1,073,862,500 53,693 45,726
Issue of shares under share RER M RE B FTRN
award plan ©) 2,165,000 108 95
At 31 December 2020 R-E-TF+-H=+-§ 1,076,027,500 53,801 45,821

Notes: M it -

(a)  On 25 April 2019, 2,165,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each (a RZZE—NFMNAZ+HH KRAF
of the Company were issued to certain employees pursuant BERMDEZBFTERE TIEEET
to a share award plan. The shares were deemed to be 2,165,0000% & f% M {60.05/8 7T 2 &
issued at HK$1.39 each, being the market price at the grant AR - BRARMD R RIEER1.39%
date. The total deemed consideration for the issue of shares TLET BRLEBMNTE- - ®RG
was HK$3,009,000 (equivalent to RMB2,648,000), of which 17 2 R AEK B 4 88 /3,009,000
HK$108,000 (equivalent to RMB95,000), representing the par oL (HH & W A R #2,648,0000L) * &
value of the shares of the Company, was credited to the #1108,000/% 7t (18 & 7 A R #95,000
Company’s share capital and the remaining deemed TL)RARRARRMDEE Bt ALRRD
consideration of HK$2,901,000 (equivalent to RMB2,553,000) AR 7N - 82 T AR 1E (X (82,901,000
before issuing expenses was credited to share premium 7T (& B A R #2,553,0007T) (k0
account. MRETHZ)GTARMDRER -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

25. ISSUED CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(o)

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders
on the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on
14 June 2019, on 19 June 2019, 3,080,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.05 each of the Company were issued to Ms. Weng
Peihe, being an executive director and the chief executive
officer of the Company who has abstained from the voting
in the related resolution, pursuant to a share award plan. The
shares were deemed to be issued at HK$1.26 each, being
the market price at the date the shares were awarded. The
total deemed consideration for the issue of shares was
HK$3,881,000 (equivalent to RMB3,415,000), of which
HK$154,000 (equivalent to RMB135,000), representing the par
value of the shares of the Company, was credited to the
Company’s share capital and the remaining deemed
consideration of HK$3,727,000 (equivalent to RMB3,280,000)
before issue expenses was credited to share premium
account.

On 24 January 2020, 2,165,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.05
each of the Company were issued to certain employees
pursuant to a share award plan. The shares were deemed to
be issued at HK$1.16 each, being the market price at the
grant date. The total deemed consideration for the issue of
shares was HK$2,511,000 (equivalent to RMB2,210,000), of
which HK$108,000 (equivalent to RMB95,000), representing
the par value of the shares of the Company, was credited to
the Company’s share capital and the remaining deemed
consideration of HK$2,403,000 (equivalent to RMB2,115,000)
before issuing expenses was credited to share premium
account.

Share awards

Details of the Company’s share award plan are included in

note 27 to the financial statements.

B S R B A

31 December 2020
RZZFZFTF+-A=+—H

25. EBITRA(#)

Wit - (&)

(o)

BERER-_ZT—ALFNA+TA
BOZARRIRREIN RS LAB
ZEBRBE E-_T—NFNA
+HhB - ARRRED BE T E
[EARLT(BAERRRZHATES
HROTBBE YEBBRERLME
&% 2 ) %% 773,080,000/ & A% M {60.05
Bz LBk e BEARMERAILS
B1.268 LT NERHRKEBRN
ME - R BT ZEEREREA
3,881,000% 7L(#H & W A R &
3,415,0007T) * & 154,000/ T (48
BN AR#135,00070) AR R R D
HE Dt ARRARBRA - 2 TEE
K {83,727,0007 JC (H & N AR
3,280,0007T) (R OB B 1T =) 5 A

B B B e

R-ZTE-ZTE—F-+MAB  AQA
BIERGO R ERE TIEEZT
2,165,000% & i% ™ 80.05% 7T 2 &
M - BRI AR AEERI 168
TLET O AREEBNTE - RG
BT 2 RAERE B A2,511,0007%
ot (& W A R #2,210,0000T) © &
#1108,000/% 7t (18 & P A K 895,000
T)AARARRMEE EFfALRR
AR 7N - 82 T R 1E (X (82,408,000
7T (A& N A R #2,115,0007T) (K 1
BREBEITHRZ)FFARMDEER -

B 153 2% B

AR AR5 SR AT 8 5 1B SR B S R
= M 527 -
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26.

198

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 98
and 99 of the financial statements.

Statutory general reserve

The statutory general reserve represents the appropriation
of 10% of profit after taxation determined based on the
relevant accounting rules and regulations of the PRC as
required by the Articles of Association of the Company’s
PRC subsidiaries. The appropriation may cease to apply if
the balance of the statutory general reserve has reached
50% of the PRC subsidiaries’ registered capital.

Other reserve

The other reserve includes: (a) the difference between the
nominal value of the share capital issued by Tang Palace
F&B Enterprise Limited (“Tang Palace BVI”) and the nominal
value of share capital of the subsidiaries acquired by Tang
Palace BVI, (b) the deemed contribution from a controlling
shareholder of RMB1,866,000 arising on the acquisition of
the remaining 10% equity interest in Meco Petrochemical
Limited from Mr. Hui Yui Chuen (“Mr. Hui”), a non-
controlling shareholder, by Mr. Chan, a founder shareholder
of the Company, on 23 December 2009 and representing
the unaudited combined net asset value of Meco
Petrochemical Limited attributable to Mr. Hui as at 30
November 2009 reclassified from non-controlling interests as
deemed contribution by Mr. Chan, (c) the difference
between the subscription price and the nominal value of the
shares allotted and issued by Tang Palace BVI of
RMB35,014,000 and the deemed contribution from
controlling shareholders of RMB107,215,000 and (d) the
difference between the nominal value of 1,999,999 shares of
HK$0.1 each in the Company’s issued share capital and the
entire issued share capital of Tang Palace BVI of US$50,000
eliminated as a result of the Group Reorganisation.

TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED &' (FREl) 2R BIR D F
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Hi#EEEQESRREEBR AR
([ Tang Palace BVI]) E# 1Tl AHE A
By Tang Palace BVIU BE BT & A &) f%
AEEZHENZERE  OBRAARE
MABRTRRXBEER-_TTNF
T A=+t =HMR— BB EF
BREE(THEEDKEZSABE
THR D E T #10% # M & 4 7 2k
BT R R R AR E D IR A R 1,866,000
TR ZTEEANF+—A=THF
EERBREERARLEIABRAFRE
BERAHEEFE HIIETRERE
¥ SRR XUE R £ AR 1E 5 Ik K(c)
Tang Palace BVIEZ 2 R 1TH R H R
BEEBAEZEANEZEEARE
35,014,0007T LA F2 B % A% i 5 /E i 79
BA1ED K AR #107,215,0007T © K (d)
RATEBEITRAFRFREBECIHE T
$1,999,9990% & 5 ® (B 1 HTang
Palace BVIF) 2 B8 C 217 A & [E S 4
5 A9 B% 450,000 L HEI{E 2 B R 258 -



27.

Notes to the Financial Statements

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Share Award Plan

The Company adopted a share award plan on 25 March
2011 which was revised on 22 March 2013 (“Share Award
Plan”) pursuant to which the board of directors may, subject
to and in accordance with the rules of the Share Award
Plan, make an award of shares to certain classes of eligible
participants as specified
determined by the board of directors from time to time on

in the Share Award Plan, as

the basis of the opinion of the board of directors as to the
proposed awardee’s contribution and/or future contribution
to the development and growth of the Group. The shares
and other trust fund for the implementation of the Share
Award Plan are administered by a trustee or trustees (the
“Share Award Plan Trustee”) to be appointed by the
Company.

Under the Share Award Plan, the board of directors shall
determine the eligibility of the eligible participants and the
number of shares to be awarded (the “Awarded Shares”)
and notify the Share Award Plan Trustee of the making of
awards. The Awarded Shares are either (1) transferred from
any person (other than the Group) by way of gift; (2)
purchased by the Share Award Plan Trustee out of the
funds received by way of gift or for nominal consideration;
or (3) subscribed for or purchased by the Share Award Plan
Trustee out of the funds allocated by the board of directors
out of the Group’s resources, subject to the terms and
conditions of the rules of the Share Award Plan. The Share
Award Plan Trustee may purchase shares on the Stock
Exchange at the prevailing market price or off market, or
subscribe for new shares at par or at such other
subscription price as instructed by the board of directors
out of the Group’s contribution if the board of directors

considers it appropriate to do so.
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27.

200

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Share Award Plan

On 25 April 2019, 2,165,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.05
each were awarded to certain employees under the Share
Award Plan at HK$1.39 each, being the market price at the
grant date. The total deemed consideration of
HK$3,009,000 (equivalent to RMB2,648,000) was recognised
as an expense during the year in relation to the shares
awarded under the Share Award Plan as further detailed in
note 25(a) to the financial statements.

On 19 June 2019, 3,080,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.05
each were awarded to Ms. WENG Peihe, an executive
director and the chief executive officer of the Company
under the Share Award Plan at HK$1.26 each, being the
market price at the grant date. The total deemed
consideration of HK$3,881,000 (equivalent to
RMB3,415,000) was recognised as an expense during the
year in relation to the shares awarded under the Share
Award Plan as further detailed in note 25(b) to the financial
statements.

On 24 January 2020, 2,165,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.05
each were awarded to certain employees under the Share
Award Plan at HK$1.16 each, being the market price at the
grant date. The total deemed consideration of
HK$2,511,000 (equivalent to RMB2,210,000) was recognised
as an expense during the year in relation to the shares
awarded under the Share Award Plan as further detailed in
note 25(c) to the financial statements.
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28.

Notes to the Financial Statements

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Share Award Plan (Continued)

In addition, during the year, 2,918,000 and 164,000 existing
shares of the Company were purchased from the open
market in April 2020 (at the prices ranging from HK$0.72 to
HK$0.92 per share) and in May 2020 (at HK$0.75 per share)
respectively, among which 3,080,000 shares were awarded
to Ms. Weng Peihe, an executive director and the chief
executive officer of the Company at that time. The
consideration of HK$2,612,000 (equivalent to
RMB2,298,000) was recognised as expense during the year
in relation to the shares awarded under the Share Award
Plan and the remaining 2,000 shares of RMB1,000 were
included in other reserve at cost. No gain or loss is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss on the
purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s own
equity instruments.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

(@) Major non-cash transactions

(i) On 24 January 2020, 2,165,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.05 each of the Company were issued
under the Share Award Plan to the employees
with no consideration received.

(i)  On 25 April 2019 and 19 June 2019, 2,165,000
and 3,080,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.05 and
HK$0.05 each of the Company, respectively,
were issued under the Share Award Plan to the
employees and a director with no consideration
received.

(i)  During the vyear, the Group had non-cash
additions to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities of RMB34,186,000 (2019: RMB93,901,000)
and RMB34,186,000 (2019: RMB93,901,000),
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for
buildings.

27.

28.
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URHBBERBSIRRS &)

B 3 BE b =t &l (=)
BESN - RAEE - ARRHBIR =T =

%imﬂ({ﬂgﬁ%i%om;‘%ﬁi
0BT MN_ZE-_EFRHAEESE
f%0.75%87C) B AFH™ i%,ﬂﬁ,az,gm,ooo
% 164,000/ B R Rl fh - 1EE
N F 5 K0.72/8 jT £0.9278 T 0 B
3,080,000/ i 17 % T A A 7 & I 2 i
TESERTHBHESERZL -RE
2,612,000 7T(MH & N A B &
2,298,0007T) RENERBFALZ - W
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2,165,0000% %3,080,000/%

A% B A0.058 TR AR

A AR IR AR 1 SR ED T &
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iy FA- TEERMEHEELR
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28. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

. mEHRERERMTE)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) MMEEHELANBRBEH
activities

Bank loans Lease liabilities

RITEXR HEAE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T AR®F T
At 1 January 2019 —h&E—H—H 79,200 314,739
Changes from financing cash flows MERESREH 800 (98,640)
New leases e — 93,901
Foreign exchange movement fE & & F) - 432
Interest expense F 2B 2 — 25,556
Interest paid classified as operating DHERKERESREN
cash flows B F B — (25,556)
At 31 December 2019 RZTE-NF+A
and 1 January 2020 =—+t—8k
—E-FEF—H—H 80,000 310,432
Changes from financing cash flows BERSREDH (880) (65,163)
New leases MAEE — 34,186
COVID-19-related rent K8 i A #COVID-19
concession from lessors HEBERE — (19,426)
Revision of lease terms arising from A EEEE & AR
changes in the non-cancellable BEIMYMEE
periods of leases Z& TIEET - (1,946)
Foreign exchange movement fE & & &) (4,360) (1,970)
Interest expense T'J B - 22,567
Interest paid classified as operating DEAKEREREN
cash flows =ENEAIESS = (22,567)
At 31 December 2020 RZZE_TF
+=-A=+—H 74,760 256,113
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28. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 28. e B & RERMW =T &)
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HERERHEHE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the BenhsrAnEgRant @
statement of cash flows is as follows: EER (N

2020 2019
LRI -z
RMB’000 RMB’000
LEE  EETT

Within operating activities KEEHNR 63,563 69,344
Within financing activities BMEZBHNR 65,163 98,640
128,726 167,984
29. COMMITMENTS 29. AiE
The Group had the following capital commitments at the end AEBRBERRB AT ERRKIE

of the reporting period:

2020 2019
—ECEHF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREEF T

Contracted, but not provided for: DRI 4B R B
property, plant and equipment W - B k& E 7,484 3,047
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\ 30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30. EEBAERS
>
4 (@) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in () HEAREE BRUETBREHE LI
E these financial statements, the Group had the following WA R Z 50 A S B AR
i material transactions with related parties during the ETTTWNERRS
E year:
. 2020 2019
E —B-EF —T-AF
y Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
; b & AR%¥ T ARMF T
2 Rental payments to a related X F—E@EER
‘5 company Al ] 455 956
A Rental payments to a related X F—E@EER
5 company AlzEe (i) 2,777 4,908
; Rental payments to a related 3z {4 F — & A Bt 5
party e (i) 2,181 2,520
;
gl

Notes: M it

REBEDEEERBERD
A(IR=HE D RAEEER
EHRERENHES WRBEERN
R ARAEERERES
£ BRXEEERGEETRR
REBENEERERR -

(i) The rental payments were charged by Dongguan Well (i)
Excellent Hotel Management Services Co., Ltd.
(“Dongguan Well Excellent”) at rates agreed between
the Group and Dongguan Well Excellent. Mr. Yip, Mr.
Chan and Mr. Ku, directors and shareholders of the
Company, are also the directors and shareholders of
Dongguan Well Excellent.

FA - B ERALEE R
A& £ A R #637,0007T °

During the year, Dongguan Well Excellent has waived
rental of RMB637,000 for the Group.
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continuea)
(@  (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i) The rental payments were charged by Meco Group
Company Limited (“Meco Group”) at rates agreed
between the Group and Meco Group. Mr. Yip, Mr.
Chan and Mr. Ku, directors and shareholders of the
Company, are also the directors and shareholders of
Meco Group.

During the year, Meco Group has waived rental of
RMB1,735,000 for the Group.

(iif) The rental payments were charged by Mr. Yip and Mr.
Yip Ka Fai (the “Related Landlord”) at rates agreed
between the Group and the Related Landlord. Mr. Yip
is a director and shareholder of the Company, and Mr.
Yip Ka Fai is the son of Mr. Yip and thus both of them
are related persons of the Company.

During the year, Related Landlord has waived rental of
RMB198,000 for the Group.

(b)  Outstanding balances with related parties:

Details of the Group’s outstanding balances with joint
ventures and related companies as at the end of the
reporting period are included in notes 16 and 22 to
the financial statements.

(c) Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group:

Details of directors’ and the chief executive’s
emoluments and the five highest paid employees are
included in notes 8 and 9, respectively.

The related party transactions in respect of items (i), (i) and
(i) above also constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.
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30. BEAXRSZ &)

@ (&)
HraE - (&)

ih Z=ZmEEHARAFA(ESS
B RAEERXSEERE
#iE e WEHEE RN K - AA A
EERBRRELRE BRXEL
ERERENTAESEENE
ERIRE -

FR > EoEERAERRK
A& £ AR ¥1,735,0007T °

(i) BEEERERELAE((HEEE
FDRAEEEBEXEIRAE
WESKBBENR x4t
BARNRERERRE  EXRE
EEBEREZRT  AE
EHAARBIZBEAL -

FR-BAEEFITAAEERK
74 £ A R #198,0007T °

%ﬁ%%ﬁmﬁﬂo
) AEBTFTEERBAEZFE:

§$&EWMEAEM§&£%
=¥ EE MBS DRI E N M T
8)529o

bt () (i) M (i) TEEY BB EL T 2 5 OhiE

)
A ETRBB AR ENBEI F L
SEER S o
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 3. REFE s 2ccMITE

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RBEHR SEEINSHIT AN
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as BREENT

follows:

Financial assets SREE

2020 —E-EF

Financial assets Financial

Financial at fair value assets at fair

assets at  through other value
amortised comprehensive through
cost income profit or loss

BRBHEEE BLOFERA N

FIRRE Htt2EKEN FAREH
tREE TREE TREE |t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBTR AR®TRT AR®Tx

Financial assets at fair value &R QA FET A H A
through other comprehensive 2 8 Y % £

income eREE - 13,620 = 13,620

Financial asset at fair value wATERTA
through profit or loss BEmemEE = — 26,208 26,208

Trade receivables (note 19) B 5 R FIA
(Htit19) 17,772 - - 17,772

Deposits and other receivables &4 K H fth JE U

(note 19) FOR (H7E£19) 38,497 = = 38,497
‘ Due from joint ventures FE UL A& % A A 1,403 - - 1,403
Pledged deposits BHEEEFER 85,444 - - 85,444
N Time deposits THER 32,000 - - 32,000
Cash and cash equivalents RekBLEE 402,033 - - 402,033
; 577,149 13,620 26,208 616,977
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Bt 7% SRR MY &

31 December 2020
RZEZZEF+=-_A=+—H

3. EHE s ZzEM T E &)

(Continued)
Financial assets (Continued) EREE &)
2019 —E-NEF
Financial assets Financial
Financial at fair value assets at fair
assets at through other value
amortised ~ comprehensive through
cost income  profit or loss Total
BB  BLOTEEA BAYE
SIRE) EHEME2EKEN FABEDN
EREE CREE CREE B
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT AR®FRT AREFRT
Financial assets at fair value &R FEFTAEM
through other comprehensive 2 Y % £
income CHREE - 23,146 - 23,146
Financial asset at fair value BAFERGA
through profit or loss BRMNEREE - - 27,456 27,456
Trade receivables (note 19) 2 5 W HIA
(Htit19) 13,571 - - 13,571
Deposits and other receivables &4 K& H it JE U
(note 19) HIE (K7 iE19) 47,774 - - 47,774
Due from joint ventures JEWA & DA 3,733 — — 3,733
Pledged time deposits BEFERTR 80,000 - - 80,000
Time deposits EBFR 34,000 - - 34,000
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEE 382,454 - - 382,454
561,532 23,146 27,456 612,134
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F 3% 207



Notes to the Financial Statements

: 81 75 3R % MY F

31 December 2020
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(Continued)

Financial liabilities

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

EMER

31. REHE 2 Z2EBMIT A

Financial liabilities

at amortised cost

Trade payables (note 21)
Other payables and accruals (note 21)

Due to related companies
Interest-bearing bank borrowings

Lease liabilities

B 5 N FOR (K iE21)
H b FE A 3R &2

F& 5t 3R (B i221)
& 1+ B8 2 2 B 5RIR
ARRITREE
HE&E

BBERAIRzeREE
2020 2019
—E-EF —E—NnF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBF T
68,311 68,908
17,949 27,231

55 404

74,760 80,000
256,113 310,432
417,188 486,975
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Notes to the Financial Statements

32. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, time deposits, pledged time deposits,

trade receivables, trade payables, interest-bearing bank
borrowings, deposits and other receivables, other payables
and accruals and balances with related companies and joint
ventures approximate to their carrying amounts largely due

to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on
quoted market prices. The fair value of unlisted equity
investment designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income has been estimated using an asset-
based approach based on assumptions that are not

supported by observable inputs.

The fair value of financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss is measured based on adjusted net asset method
performed by an independent valuer.

The directors believe that the estimated fair values based on
the above valuation techniques, which are recorded in profit
or loss or other comprehensive income, are reasonable, and
that they were the most appropriate values at the end of the
reporting period.

32.

B S R B A

31 December 2020
RZE_ZEF+-_A=+—H
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32. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 2. TMIANAFERAFEE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) &oE)

Fair value hierarchy AFEER

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TRITAEEEMIA 2 A FER
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: EER:

Assets measured at fair value: BRATEFEZEE:

As at 31 December 2020 R-ZB-FH+_-A=+—H

Fair value measurement using
AYEHERANTER
Quoted Significant Significant
prices in observable unobservable
active markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

R B EAAEE EBEAFRUEE

miEZHE WA RS WA RS
(-8 € =" (=) ot
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥T T AR¥T T AR¥T T

Financial assets at fair &2 FEz A
value through other Hi2EK &

J comprehensive HMEeRmEE

income = = 13,620 13,620
\ Financial asset at far XA F{E:
\ value through ABEE
\\ profit or loss CREE = = 26,208 26,208
\
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32. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 2. TRMTENAFERAFEERE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) &E)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AXFEER &)
As at 31 December 2019 RZE—-NF+ZA=+—H

Fair value measurement using

ATEERANTEE

Quoted Significant Significant

prices in observable unobservable

active markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

R E B BERABE BERPAER

M52 RE A BUE A BUE
(B—&) (BE=H) (B=%) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Financial assets at fair A FEFAHE
value through other i, 2 T R 55 6
comprehensive CREE
income 9,304 — 13,842 23,146

Financial asset at fair &2 FEE A

value through B
profit or loss & E — — 27,456 27,456
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32. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 32.
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

212

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3

during the year are as follows:

)

AFEEER B

ERMITANAFERLQFEE

FAZ=MAFEFEZHOT

2020 2019
—E-EF —ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARMF T
Equity investments at fair value through 12 A F BT A E At bz & W
other comprehensive income MRAKE — FELm:
— unlisted:
At 1 January Ww—H—H 13,842 15,000
Total losses recognised in other FFAEMEE SR EE
comprehensive income (222) (1,158)
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 13,620 13,842
2020 2019
—E-FF —FT-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARMF T
Debt investment at fair value through BAFEFABZOER
profit or loss — unlisted: ®E — L
At 1 January n—H—H 27,456 —
Addition 18 = 27,456
Exchange realignment & H (1,248) -
At 31 December WR+—_A=+—H 26,208 27,456
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33.

Notes to the Financial Statements

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
Liabilities measured at fair value:

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at
fair value as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value

measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and

financial liabilities (2019: Nil).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash
and bank balances, short-term deposits and interest-bearing
bank borrowings. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities
such as trade receivables, deposits and other receivables,
balances with related companies, trade payables and other
payables and lease liabilities, which arise directly from the
Group’s operations.

32.

33.

Bt 7% SRR MY &

31 December 2020
RZEZZEF+=-_A=+—H

SHMITANAFERIFERE
A& m)

AFEHESR &)
BEAFEFECEE
RZE_ZEFR_FT—NLE+A
—t—H XEBEWVELHIEZAFE
rEZemAaE-
FARFEFERFE—FERE R

ZHEABRERNLSREERSRE
BYEE="QREAXEBBL( =T A
FE) -

TRHABEEERRBE

$“ﬁ$%%@lﬂa%ﬁ%&ﬁ“

BER - RHIER R RRITEE - %F
ﬁﬂIEZIKEWEE$%.¥%
EREES -AKBNTAZHEERNE
BEEZHEBEREENAE  HimM
B 5 RWHRIE  BE KE M E WK
HEHEBARNER  BHRAK
HoHEENRAREERE-
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33.

214

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
directors meet periodically to analyse and formulate
measures to manage each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating units
in currencies other than the units’ functional currencies. It is
the Group’s policy not to enter into forward contracts until a
firm commitment is in place.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
Hong Kong dollar exchange rate, with all other variables
held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due to
changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities)
and the Group’s equity.

TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED &= (R El) $Z=IRB IR A
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT V. 2RAMEEABERBE#®)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk (Continuead) ShEsEBE (&)
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in in profit (decrease) in
exchange rate before tax equity*
IS IE X RR Bt A & R LM
LA (TR & ORD) O ) >
% RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBT T

2020 —E-EF
If Renminbi weakens against fis A R H B TRE
HK$ 5 746 =
If Renminbi strengthens against i A R # 5,8 T FH&
HK$ (5) (746) -
2019 —T-NF
If Renminbi weakens against fin N R H B TR E
HK$ 5 1,398 —
If Renminbi strengthens against  fif A R ¥ 5,78 ;T 7B
HK$ 5) (1,398) -
* Excluding retained profits * TEIERE & F)
Credit risk & & & ba
The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy AEFERERBBLEEEBZE=X
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who o REBBER  SAEEKERR
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit SCRPERBEEZERF It
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are N AEBERETY FRERE
closely monitored on an ongoing basis to minimise the B REREAEE 2 ZRER -

Group’s exposure to bad debts.
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33. eRIEMEEEEREEK®
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (Continued) EEREE)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging SV W
The tables below shows the credit quality and the maximum TRERNR-ZZZZEFR_ZF—NF
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, +ZA=Z+—HHRBEXAEEEER
which is mainly based on past due information unless other R(EZERBEDEER - BRIEEA
information is available without undue cost or effort, and EREESHEAZKNARE N TA
year-end staging classification as at 31 December 2020 and AESMEEEZRESEERRIN
2019. The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts FFEEREBR B M2 cHE RS
for financial assets. EEMNKRERME-
As at 31 December 2020 R-EBE-_ZEF+=-HA=+—H

12-month

ECLs Lifetime ECLs
T=@A

RH
FEER EHRMEEER

Simplified

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F-BR EER F=ZRR B A% At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AR®TR ARBTRT AR%TR AR%TR

Trade receivables* Z 5 WA = = = 17,772 17,772
Deposits and other receivables Re REMEKTE
\ — Normal** — EE* 38,497 - - - 38,497
Due from joint ventures B A & ARIFE 1,403 - 1,500 - 2,903
Pledged time deposits BHEATEHER
\ — Not yet past due - X 85,444 - - - 85,444
Time deposits EHER
— Not yet past due - X 32,000 - - - 32,000
\ Cash and cash equivalents RekFAEZED
\ — Not yet past due - X 402,033 - - - 402,033
\
559,377 = 1,500 17,772 578,649
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continuead)

Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements
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31 December 2020
RZEZZEF+=-_A=+—H

33. ¢REAMEEEERKIE®

EEREM &)
R e B R AR B R ()

R-ZE—hnhF+=-A=+—8H

12-month

ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+Z@A

8 5
EEER 2HEBHEERR

Simplified

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
ERli-24 FRE E k7% @

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETL ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR

Trade receivables* B 5 MW IE - - - 13,571 13,571
Deposits and other receivables Re REMEKTE

— Normal** - EE~ 47,774 - - - 47,774
Due from joint ventures WA B RRFRE 3,733 - - - 3,733
Pledged time deposits BHEATEHEFER

— Not yet past due — K@ 80,000 - - - 80,000
Time deposits EBER

— Not yet past due - K@ H 34,000 - - - 34,000
Cash and cash equivalents BehBeEED

— Not yet past due - K@ 382,454 - - - 382,454

547,961 - - 13,571 561,532
* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified * AR AEERBELCTERENE

approach for impairment, information is disclosed in note 19
to the financial statements.

** The credit quality of deposits and other receivables is
considered to be “normal” when they are not past due and
there is no information indicating that the financial assets had
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial
considered to be “doubtful”.

assets is

FEBHE - AR EERHHBEN
B19 -

* EREREMBKRFENEEEER
AEHMEEERKRPABMAERR
ZEBMEENERRBBRZEME
BRAEIEE] B8 2BMEENRE
EHEWARIEIAER] -
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continuead)

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a
recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial assets
(e.g., trade receivables) and projected cash flows from
operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank
loans and overdrafts and lease liabilities. The Group’s policy
is to maintain the Group at a net current asset position.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

33.

TREARBEEEERBE @)

AEERAERLFERDE TS
TAEERESEBRNER ZTAZE
BEPEEMTARSREE(MES
JEWRIE) 2 BIEAH A ok B 2 B % T
ZTEHBRERE

AEEZBERBBERRITERR
BEXMHERE #EFESRHENR
Bt cEz P AEEZHRE
MEAEEENRBEEFR MM -

RBREHR AEEL BB END
BETERUTHAE L RITIRFA
ENWME

2020
=

(o])] Less than 1to Over

demand 12 months 5 years 5 years Total
RERMEE 128AUT 1855 5F Lk Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®BTRT AR%¥TR AR®BTRT AR%¥TxR

Trade payables B S EHIE - 68,311 - - 68,311
Other payables and accruals E h FE A 5RE &
FERT B - 17,949 - - 17,949
Due to related companies FER &R RIRIE 55 - - - 55
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFRBRITEE 74,760 - - - 74,760
Lease liabilities HEEE = 91,461 173,925 18,308 283,694
\ 74,815 177,721 173,925 18,308 444,769
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continuead)

N—ZE=

EE+-A=+—H

33. ¢REAMEEEERKIE®

Liquidity risk (Continuead) REEEEMEE)
2019
—T-NE
On Less than 1to Over
demand 12 months 5 years 5 years Total
HEREE 12ANRT 158545 5% Ak #Et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFIT ARBFTT ARBTT ARBTIT ARETT
Trade payables B S ENHIE — 68,908 — — 68,908
Other payables and accruals E fh FE A FRE &
FE&T IR - 27,231 - - 27,231
Due to related companies R ERRIRIE 404 — — — 404
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FERITIEE 80,000 — - - 80,000
Lease liabilities HEAE - 117,920 252,983 11,891 382,794
80,404 214,059 252,983 11,891 559,337
Capital management BEXEHE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

AEBEAEENTIEZAREERE

REBRRENFEKLE

MBEALERAXHHEENRMEER

TtIREREE-
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33.

220

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31
December 2019.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued capital and reserves as
disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and risk associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the
Group will balance the overall capital structure of the Group
through the payment of dividends, new share issues as well
as the raising of new bank loans.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
calculated as bank borrowings divided by total equity. The
gearing ratio as at the end of the reporting periods was
17.8% (2019: 18.6%).

TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED &' (FREl) 2R BIR D F
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 34. AR BWEEARR
THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the REBARRRHREBROT BN
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: KEBEINGAT

2020 2019
—E_EH —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR T T

NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE

Investments in subsidiaries REERAIEE 7,097 7,097

Due from subsidiaries JFE W Bf 88 7~ B) R IB 126,136 141,132

Total non-current assets IEMBEERTE 133,233 148,229

CURRENT ASSETS RBEE

Other receivables and prepayments H th W SR IE R TR SRR 144 161

Cash and cash equivalents BekBeEE 26,296 1,217
26,440 1,378

CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE

Other payables H A 3R IE 170 239

Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFERITEER 74,760 80,000
74,930 80,239

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES FEBEEFEE (48,490) (78,861)

Net assets BEFE 84,743 69,368

EQUITY R

Issued capital BT A 45,821 45,726

Reserves (note) 1 () 38,922 23,642

Total equity B 84,743 69,368
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 34. XABWE KRR #2)

THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note: B it
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: AAvfFEHEIBENT
Share Exchange
premium Other fluctuation Retained
account reserve reserve profits Total
IR 43 % B Hitfte ERRBFEE REEAH @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®TR ARETFT ARETT AR®TR
At 1 January 2019 S R I - = 9,853 - (2,861) 23,954 30,946
Profit for the year FRRE - - - 105,228 105,228
Other comprehensive income FREMPAKS:
for the year:
Exchange differences on BEGMNER 2
translation of foreign EXESE
operations - - 705 - 705
. Total comprehensive income FREERELE:
gl for the year - - 705 105,228 105,933
Issue of shares under share BERM LB &7
award plan & 17 5,833 - - - 5,833
Final 2018 dividend declared ERZT-N\EF
KER S - - - (86,940) (86,940)
Interim 2019 special dividend ZE-NEHRH
BRI E - - - (32,130) (32,130)
At 31 December 2019 and RZZ-NF
1 January 2020 +ZA=+—-8k
RZ_Z_ZHF
—HA—H 15,686 = (2,156) 10,112 23,642
Profit for the year F A& A = = - 36,500 36,500
Other comprehensive income FREMEEKS :
for the year:
Exchange differences on BMERNEBLER
translation of foreign EE
operations = = (4,396) = (4,396)
Total comprehensive income FREENEEE:
for the year = = (4,396) 36,500 32,104
Shares repurchased i [ AR £ - (2,299) - - (2,299)
Award of repurchased shares R 17 2B 5T B
under share award plan BOmMKH - 2,298 - - 2,298
Issue of shares under share RERD LB &% 1T
award plan & m 2,115 = = = 2,115
Interim 2020 special dividend ZEZTERHER
&R e = - - (18,938) (18,938)
At 31 December 2020 RZZEZTF+ZA
=f+—H 17,801 (1) (6,552) 27,674 38,922
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% 3R 3% B &

31 December 2020
RZEZZEF+=-_A=+—H

35. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 35. #LEBFE®K
STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for A BBEROEETERN_TE_—F
issue by the board of directors on 26 March 2021. AT ARBHEREETE -
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Summary Financial Information

MBREREE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non- REBRBIREVREFENEEME - U
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, REE BERFEREZ  DHEEEEN
as extracted from the published audited financial statements is set HENEEZTBHRE -

out below.

RESULTS £

Year ended 31 December
BE+-BA=+—-BHLEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
=t —T—fF —T-N\F —ZT—tF ZT-—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
INELET ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Revenue & 1,105,108 1,495,087 1,492,128 1,356,142 1,248,455
Other income and gain, H At A R
net W= FE 41,044 41,393 38,221 36,734 33,716
Cost of inventories consumed T 17 &K & (422,638) (557,020) (551,109) (482,112) (463,580)
Staff costs BT (364,582) (472,265) (448,071) (383,611) (337,491)
3 Depreciation of items of ME - -BMER
property, plant and HBEEEFE
equipment (48,267) (47,121) (50,420) (51,095) (55,306)
Depreciation of right-of-use CREEENE
assets (92,718) (98,709) — - —
Utilities and consumables NHERHEFRT
OB (66,641) (81,707) (77,498) (71,347) (66,780)
Rental and related expenses & MA@ X (12,752) (25,607) (189,875) (122,078) (112,815)
Other expenses H A5 (93,362) (89,405) (89,722 (82,756) (92,990)
Share of results of JE (& &R A
joint ventures - (2,223) (3,817) (3,803) (4,304) (6,961)
Finance costs BE KR (24,437) (27,707) (1,870) (1,038) (978)
Profit before tax 754 i 4 A 18,527 138,122 167,981 194,535 145,270
Income tax expense FriS B = (15,369) (45,276) (50,975) (61,349) (42,997)
Profit for the year KEEREF 3,158 92,846 117,006 133,186 102,273
Attributable to: HER:
Owners of the Company ERAEE A 4,379 91,283 115,173 131,329 100,992
Non-controlling interests R ER (1,221) 1,563 1,833 1,857 1,281
3,158 92,846 117,006 133,186 102,273
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ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING

Py R O A T e AT N O Ly

Summary Financial Information

MBENBE

EE - BERFERESR

INTERESTS

As at 31 December

R+=ZBA=+—-H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
= tab b —T-HF —E-N\F —E—+F —ZT-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
N ARBETT ARETT ARETT ARETRT
Total assets EERE 1,064,495 1,142,629 893,063 889,659 773,464
Total liabilities BEQE (645,617) (713,590) (390,430) (355,585) (294,157)
Non-controlling interests FEE R = (2,725) (5,146) (6,187) (3,438) (1,581)
416,153 423,893 496,446 530,636 477,726
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Glossary
=1
7A| 5

Abbreviation

fa

AGM
BRBEKRE

Articles of Association
HEERAR

Audit Committee
EREESg

Board

Exg

CCT Tenancy Agreements

CCTH & 1 &
Chiu Kwun

iz picd
Company

ZANYNE]

Controlling Shareholders

PERBCR

Corporate Governance Code

®ERERSA

Definition

Bz

annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 11 June 2021
RARABR B —FRAT BRI ZRRBEFARE

articles of association of the Company adopted on 25 March 2011 and as
amended from time to time
RARIRZE——F A+ HHRARETRE 2 EBERMAA

audit committee of the Company established on 25 March 2011 with written
terms of reference (as amended and supplemented)
ARABIRZE——F=ZA-+HABRUZERZES EHXEEOREEaE
(F1ERT R 78)

board of directors of Tang Palace (China) Holdings Limited
EE(hE)IERERAFEESE

tenancy agreements entered into between the Group as lessee and Meco
Group or Dongguan Well Excellent (as the case may be) as landlord

AEBERABAN EBEESEEARELE(RFBEAME)WEREL)ATL
CORIER- R

Chiu Kwun Engineering (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd., a company established in the PRC
with limited liability on 4 April 1990 and indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. KU Hok
Chiu, being one of our executive directors and substantial shareholders
HBEFAEBHERMORINDERRAR  E-—MNEFOANBETBEXNIZE
RO ARTESRTIZERRERLIBBRAEEEL2ERE

Tang Palace (China) Holdings Limited
FE(PEDERER QA

Mr. CHAN Man Wai, Mr. YIP Shu Ming, Mr. KU Hok Chiu, Best Active
Investments Limited, Current Success Investments Limited and Bright Mind
Investments Limited collectively known as the Controlling Shareholders of the
Company

PRER A ERIRBLEAE  HBHB%E A Best Active Investments Limited -
Current Success Investments Limited 2 Bright Mind Investments Limited * £t 78

BARRAEBRBER

Corporate governance code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules

E R R S14RT 2 R EA 5T Al
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Abbreviation

fa

CPPCC
B i

Dongguan Well Excellent

[

L
=

R

ol

X
#

EGM
PR A5 Bl K &

il

Group
REHE

HK Well Excellent

BEHEE

Listing Date

£ A H

Listing Rules
EARAY

Meco Group

EE S

Model Code

2% 57 B

Nomination Committee

RELZE®

Glossary
AR

Definition

Bz

Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference

TRARBGHAER

Dongguan Well Excellent Hotel Management Services Co., Ltd., a company
established in the PRC with limited liability on 27 October 2006 and wholly
owned by HK Well Excellent

REREREEERBERAF — KR _ZZRXF AT LREFEK
YWERAF BEEREZEHEA

extraordinary general meeting

BRFERIAE

Tang Palace (China) Holdings Limited, together with its subsidiaries
EE(PEDERAERAAREWE A F

Well Excellent Development Limited, an investment holding company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability and owned as to 50% by Mr.
CHAN Man Wai, 35% by Mr. YIP Shu Ming, 15% by Mr. KU Hok Chiu
MEZRARDA —KREBAMAINERKREZERAT - ARXESL
B EBREERETEBEEDFITEAS0% - 35%K%15%

date on which the trading of the Company’s securities commenced, i.e. 19
April 2011
ARAEFRABKEBEBZAH M-_ZE——FMA+NH

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

Bt XA A8 5 AR A

Meco Group Company Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability on 14 July 1992 and owned as to 50% by Mr. CHAN Man Wai,
35% by Mr. YIP Shu Ming and 15% by Mr. KU Hok Chiu

ER&EEHARAR " ZRR - ANZFEtATHBERAZMKINERA
A BRXELAE  EBREERTEBEEDBHEE50% - 35%&15%

Model code for securities transactions by directors of listed issuers as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
EHARBIMEI0ME EMETAZEFTETESF RS 2 F ST

nomination committee of the Company established on 25 March 2011 with
written terms of reference

ARARZTE——F=ZA-+HABNIZERZES ERAEERERE
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Glossary

AR

Abbreviation Definition

5 78 Bx

Non-compete undertaking an irrevocable non-compete undertaking in favour of the Group pursuant to

which each of the Controlling Shareholders will not directly or indirectly, carry
on, invest in or be engaged in any business which would or may compete with
the business of the Group

N F R MAEBEED 2 AL AR F A Bt SERBREE TS EESEEE
T REINREFEMEREEEERFXARRFIED

PRC People’s Republic of China

H REARKA

Prospectus the Company’s prospectus dated 7 April 2011 for the initial public offering

HBiRER ARARBHA-ZTE——FHNALtEBZEAARAEERRER

Remuneration Committee remuneration committee of the Company established on 25 March 2011 with
written terms of reference

FMEge ARAIRZE——F=ZA-+HARIZFNEES EXEEEBREHRE

SFO Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

FHRBEED BEBENESNERF KRB RO (G AEER] - s A &4 7 X Eek)

Share Award Plan share award plan adopted by the Company on 25 March 2011 (as amended or
supplemented) and expired on 24 March 2021

% 17 22 Eh =t & ARBIRZTE——F=ZAZ+HB (KEFSHER)RA R EBFELE
RZEZ—F=A=+MAIH

Share Options Scheme share option scheme adopted by the Company on 25 March 2011 and expired
on 24 March 2021

BB AR ST 2 ARBIRZE-——F=A-_+HBRAZEREFETER_ZE_—F=A
—+ e R

Share Subdivision the subdivision of the Company’s previous ordinary share(s) of HK$0.10 each

in the share capital of the Company (issued and unissued) into two(2) existing
ordinary share(s) of HK$0.05 each that was approved at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 4 June 2018 and became effective
on 5 June 2018

Ay HEAARARAFREFROIOBE T2 ERAR(BETRABIT) HHAMQMK
REFROSETLZEBR HR-ZE—NFAARARTZRER ARG
FEME IR N\FXARHEN

Stock Exchange The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
B4t 22 P EEBMERSMARRDA
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